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DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

33 CAPITOL STREET
CONCORD, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03301-6397

JANE E. YOUNG |
DEPUTY ATTORNEY GENERAL

GORDON J. MACDONALD
ATTORNEY GENERAL

February 11,2019

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, NH 03301

Your Excellency and Members of the Council:

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Justice to enter into a subgrant with the programs listed
below, in the amount totaling $742,073, from the Federal Fiscal Year 2018 U.S. Office of Justice
Programs, Office for Victims of Crime (OVW) Project Grant for the purposes of providing
services to children and youth who are impacted by the opioid crisis upon Governor and
Executive Council approval through September 30, 2021. 100% Federal Funds.

Funding is available in account number 02-20-20-201510-5897, (Job # 20VOCA
OPIOID18), Department of Justice, Grants Administration, Swiff Sanctions Grant for the
following subgrants:

SFY 2019 -

Class Program Véndor# Amount
072-500575 Manchester Community Health Center . 157274-B001 $670,496
072-500575 YWCA New Hampshire ' 154141-B001 $ 71,577

EXPLANATION .

The New Hampshire Department of Justice (DOJ) is seeking approval to subgrant funds
to the Manchester Community Health Center (MCHC) and the YWCA of New Hampshire from
the Office of Justice Programs, Office for Victims of Crime entitled OVC Opioid Adverse
Childhood Experiences Response Team (ACERT) Project to help serve young victims of the
opioid crisis.
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MCHC will hire a Project Coordinator and provide a Behavioral Health Consultant and
an Adolescent Health Case Manager to deliver mental health services in clinical and school
settings to support children impacted by the opioid crisis.

MCHC will subcontract funds to an expert trainer. This trainer will teach school
professionals how to better support students exposed to trauma, including familial substance
misuse and opioid addiction.

MCHC will also subcontract with the Judge Baker Children’s Center at Harvard
University to train Pediatric Behavioral Health Staff in the Modular Approach to Therapy for
Children (MATCH), a scientifically proven counseling program for children, teenagers, and
families. In addition to intensive MATCH training, staff will receive support from MATCH
experts and additional behavioral health paraprofessionals from MCHC. Other community
partners will receive enhanced education and support from the MATCH Treatment Program and
learn how to refer to, and collaborate with, MATCH clinicians to support client treatment goals.

The YWCA NH will offer up 1o three weekly trauma-informed support groups for
children affected by the opioid crisis according to age and interest. These groups will include
interventions such as dance or creative movement class, art therapy, expressive therapy, cooking,
team building, social skills, and journaling. The YWCA NH will also offer barrier resolution,
such as transportation and language interpretation to ensure broad access to this service.

As the State Administering Agency (SAA) for this funding, DOJ 1s well-versed in
collecting and reporting data into the Federal Performance Measuring Tool (PMT) system. The
objectives and outcomes of this project are to increase access to behavioral health services and
assistance to staff of community youth serving agencies and the youth that they serve.

Sub-grantees will be expected to collect and maintain data in accordance with
requirements of the grant.

In collaboration with the project coordinator, the lead evaluator will collect and report
the required performance measures in alignment with the Office of Victims of Crime guidelines,
including data regarding the number of victims served and number of professionals trained.

The lead evaluator will review both the process of data collection, as well as the data
itself, to measure the program’s effectiveness. Upon review, the lead evaluator will help DOJ
and subgrantees buitd internal capacity to collect program-level data, build procedures for data
sharing, analyze data, write reports, and disseminate findings to program staff, program
leadership, grantors, and the genera! public. The grant is anticipated to provide:

e 50 hours of consultation hours to staff of youth serving agencies as needed.
e 50 hours of group Behavioral Health training to staff of youth serving agencies.
¢ 50 hours of group facilitation to youth groups at partner agencies.
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e 250 hours of individual behavioral health services to middle and high school age youth
referred by partner agencies.

e 80 mental health appointments in middle and high school settings

e 1000 behavioral health consultation appointments to children impacted by familial
substance use disorder and opioid addiction.

» 144 hours of training and consultation to administrative staff, guidance counselors,
teachers, and paraprofessionals and two elementary schools in trauma-informed care.

In the event federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Please let me know if you have any questions. Your consideration of this request is
greatly appreciated.

Resbeclfully submitted,

Attorney General

#2293077
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GRANT AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Subrecipient hereby
Mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Identification and Definitions.
1.1. State Agency Name 1.2. State Agency Address
New Hampshire Department of Justice 33 Capitol St. Concord, NH 03301
1.3, Subrecipient Name 1.4. Subrecipient Address
Manchester Community Health Center 145 Hollis St. Manchester, NH 03101
1.5 Subrecipient Phone # 1.6. Account Number 1.7. Completion Date 1.8. Grant Limitation
603-626-9500 5897-072-500575 09/30/2021 ’ 670,496.00
1.9. Grant Officer for State Agency 1.10. State Agency Telephone Number
Kathleen B. Carr 603-271-1234

"By signing this form we certify that we have complied with any public meeting requirement for acceptance of this grant,
including if applicable RSA 31:95-b."

1.11. Subrecipien) Signature | 1.12. Name & Title of Subrecipient Signor |
Kr.s Mg&ac&a Prandedlts])
Subrecipient Signature 2 {f Applicable . Name & Title of Subrecipient Signor 2’{{' Applicable

I 13 Acknowledgment: State of New Hampshire, County of H i n‘sbomoah

4.-25-17, before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12., known to me (or
sailsfaclonly proven) to be the person whose name is signed in block 1.11., and acknowledged that helshe e\'ecuted this .« -
document in the capacity indicated in block [.12. P ) \\,

1.13.1. Signature gff Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

- ot LT
.o = el
L - R
- ‘1 N e ~
A A —_ 2L RO E

(Seal)
1.13.2. Name & Title of\lotary Public or JustlceKﬂi R-JONES, Notary Public S
State of New Hampshire ‘
My Commission Expires October 17, 2023
.14, State Agency Signature(s) 1.15. Name & Title of State Agency Signor(s)

KO:HMM Cm~ LA Yoo (Cact’ Dlicta & Bdria oo

1.16 7 Approval by Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if G & C approval required)

. 1 ]
By: Lt ‘/}; //M/I ' Assistant Atorney General, On: 2 /g / /G

1.17. Approval by Governor and Council (if applicable)

By: On: I

2.3COPE OF WORK: In exchange for grant funds provided by the State of New Hampshire, acting through the Agency
identified in block 1.1 (hereinafier referred to as “the State™), the Subrecipient identified in block 1.3 (hereinafier referred to as
“the Subrecipient™), shall perform that work identified and more particularly described in the scope of work attached hereto as
EXHIBIT A (the scope of work being hereinafier referred to as “the Project™).

-
Rev, 972015 Page 1 of 6 Subrecipient Initial(s): -/‘/L
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AREA COVERED. Except as otherwise specifically provided for herein, the
Subrecipient shall perform the Project in, and with respect to, the State of New
Hampshnrc

This Agrcement, and all obligations of the pnmts hereunder, shall become
effective on the date on the date of approval of this Agreement by the Governor
and Council of the State of New Hampshire if required (block 1.17), or upon
signature by the State Agency as shown in block 1.14 (“the efTective date™).
Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, the Project, including alt
reports required by this Agreement, shall be completed in TS entircty prior 10
the date in block 1 7 (hcrcmﬂﬂcr referred to as “the Complcuon Date™).
V .

The Grant Amount is identified and more particularly described in I:XHIB] B,
anached hereto,
‘The manner of, and schedule of payment shall be as set forth in EXHIBIT B.
In accordance with the provisions set forth in EXHIBIT B, and in consideration
of the satisfactory performance of the Project, as determined by the Siate, and ss
limited by subparagraph 5.5 of these gencral provisions, the State shall pay the
Subrecipient the Grant Amount. The State shall withhold from the amount
oltherwise payable 10 the Subrecipient under this subparagraph 5.3 those sums
required, or permitted, to be withheld pursuant to N.H. RSA 80:7 through 7.
The payment by the State of the Grant amount shall be the only, and the
complete payment to the Subrecipient for all expenses, of whatever nature,
incurred by the Subrecipicnt in the performance hereof, and shall be the only,
and the complele, compensation to the Subrecipient for the Project.  The Siate
shall have no liabilitics 1o the Subrecipient other than the Grant Amount.
Notwithstanding anything in this Agrecment to  the contrary, and
notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no event shall the total of all
payments authorized, or actually made, hereunder exceed the Grant limitation
set forth in block 1.8 of these general provisions,

S o NT WITH W o S
In connection with the performance of the Project, the Subrecipient shall comply
with all statuntes, laws regulations, and orders of federal, stave, county, or
municipal authorities which shell impose any obligations or duty upon the
Subrecipient, including the acquisition of any and all necessary permits,

Between the Effective Date and the date three (3) years afler the Completion
Date the Subrecipient shall keep detailed accounts of all expenses incurred in
connection with the Project, including, but not limited 10, costs of
administration, transportation, insurance, telephone calls, and clerical materials
and services, Such accounts shall be supported by receipts, invoices, bills and
other similar documents.

Between the Effective Date and the date three (3) years afier the Completion
Date, at any time during the Subrecipient’s normal business hours, and as often
as the State shall demand, the Subrecipient shall make available 1o the State all
records pertaining to matters covered by this Agreement, The Subrecipient shall
permit the State to sudit, examine, and reproduce such records, and to make
audits of all contracts, invoices, materials, payrolls, records of personnel, data
(as that term is hercinafier defined), and other information relating to all matiers
covered by this Agreement. As used in this paragraph, “Subrecipient™ includes
all persons, natural or fictional, affiliated with, controlled by, or under common
ownership with, the entity identified as the Subrecipient in block 1.3 of these
provisions

The Subrecipient shall, al ils own expense, provide all personnel necessary to
perform the Project. The Subrecipient warrants that atl personnel engaged in the
Project shall be quatified 1o perform such Project, and shall be properly licensed
and authorized wo perform such Project under all applicable laws,

The Subrecipient shall not hire, and it shall not permit any subcontractor,
subgrantee, or other person, firm or corporation with whom it is engaged in a
combined efTort to perform the Project, to hire any person who has a contractual
relationship with the State, or who is a Stale officer or employce, elected or
appointed.

The Grant Officer shall be the representative of the State hercunder. In the event
of any dispute hereunder, the interpretation of this Agreement by the Grant
Oﬂ't.cr and hw’hcr decnsnon on any dispule, shall be final.

As used in L'hls Agreement, the word “data” shatl mean all information and
things developed or obtained during the performance of, or acquired or
developed by reason of, this Agreement, including, but not limited (o, all studies,
reports, files, formulac, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, enalyses, graphic representations,
computer programs, computer printouts, notes, letters, memorandy, paper, and
documents, all whether finished or unfinished.
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Between the Effective Date and the Completion Date the Subrecipient shall
grant to the State, or any person designated by it, unrestricted access (o all data
for examination, duplication, publication, translation, sale, disposal, or for any
other purposc whatsoever.

No data shall be subject to copyright in the United States or any other country by
anyone other than the State,

On and after the Effective Date all data, and any property which has been
received from the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose under
this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and shall be retumed 1o the
State upon demand or upon termination of this Agreement for any reason,
whichever shall first cccur.

The Siate, and anyone it shall designate, shall have unrestricted authority Lo
publish, disclose, distribute and otherwise use, in whole or in part, all data,
CONDITIONAL NATURE OR AGREEMENT. Notwithstanding anything in
this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the Siate hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are contingent upon
the availability or continued appropriation of funds, and in no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of such available or
appropriated funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of those funds, the
State shall have the right 10 withhold payment until such funds become
available, il ever, and shall have the right to lerminme this Agrecment
immediately upon glvmg the Subrccnptem notice of such termination.

LVE

Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the Subrecipient shali
constitute &n event -of default hereunder (hercinaficr referred (o as “Events of
Default™):

Failure to perform the Project satisfactorily or on schedule; or

Failure to submit any report required hereunder; or

Failure to maintain, or permit access 1o, the records required hercunder; or
Failure to perform any of the other covenants and conditions of this Agreement,
Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may take any one, or
more, or all, of the following actions:

Give the Subrecipient a written notice specifying the Event of Default and
requiring 11 10 be remedied within, in the absence of a greater or lesser
specification of time, thity (30) days from the date of the notice; and if the
Event of Default is not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
{2) days afier giving the Subrecipicnt notice of termination; and

Give the Subrecipient a wrilten notice specifying the Event of Default and
suspending all payments to be made under this Agreement and ordering that the
portion of the Grant Amount which would otherwise accrue to the Subrecipient
during the period from the date of such notice until such time as the Stae
determines that the Subrecipient has cured the Event of Default shall never be
paid to the Subrecipient; and

Set ofT against any other obligation the State may owe to the Subrecipient any
damages the Siate suffers by reason of any Event of Defauly; and

Treat the agreement s breached and pursue any of its remedies at law or in
equity, or both.

In the event of any early termination of this Agreement for any reason other than
the completion of the Project, the Subrecipicent shall deliver to the Grant OfTicer,
not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of termination, a report (hereinafter
referred 1o as the “Termination Report™} describing in detail all Project Work
performed, and the Grant Amount eamed, to and including the date of
termination.

In the event of Termination under parugraphs 10 or 12.4 of these general
provisions, the approval of such a Termination Report by the State shall enuile
the Subrecipient to receive that portion of the Grant amount eared to and
including the date of termination,

In the event of Termination under paragruphs 10 or 12.4 of these general
provisions, the approval of such a Termination Report by the State shail in no
event relieve the Subrecipient from any and all liability for damages sustained or
incurred by the State as a result of the Subrecipient’s breach of its obligations
hereunder,

Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, either the Siate or,
except where notice default has been given to the Subrecipient hereunder, the
Subrccipient, may terminate this Agreement without cause upon thirty {30) days
written notice.

CONFLICT QF INTEREST. No officer, member of employee of the
Subrecipient, and no representative, officer or employee of the State of New
Hampshire or of the governing body of the locality or localities in which the
Project is to be performed, who exercises any {uncuions or responsibilities in the
review or approval of the undertaking or carrying out of such Project, shall
participate in sny decision relating to this Agreement which affects his or her

W
Subrecipient Initial(s):

2S||A

Date: )
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personal interest or the inierest of any corporation, partnership, or association 17.2.

in which he or she is direcily or indirectly interested, nor shall he or she have
any personal or pecuniary intercst, direct or indirect, in this Agreement or the
proceeds thereof.

SUBRECIPIENT'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the performance of this
Agreement the Subrecipient, its employees, and a&ny subcontractor or
subgrantee of the Subrecipient arc in all respects independent contractors, and
are neither agents nor employees of the Swute. Neither the Subrecipient nor any
of its officers, employces, agents, members, subcontractors or subgranices,
shall have authority to bind the State nor are they entitled to any of the benefits,
workmen's compensation or cmoluments provided by the State 10 its
employees.

ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTS. The Subrecipient shall not assign,
or otherwise transfer any interest in this Agreement without the prior written
consent of the State, None of the Project Work shall be subconkracted or
subgranted by the Subrecipient other than as set forth in Exhibit A without the
prior written consent of the State.

INDEMNIFICATION. The Subrecipient shall defend, indemnify and hold
harmless the State, its officers and employees, from and against any and all
losses suffered by the State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penaltics assened against the Siate, its officers and employees, by
or on behalf of any person, on account of, based on, resulting from, ansing out
of (or which may be claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Subrecipient or subcontractor, or subgrantee or other agenl of the Subrecipiens,
Notwithstending the foregoing, nothing herein contained shall be deemed to
constitute a waiver of the sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is
hereby reserved to the State. This covenant shall survive the termination of
this agreement.

INSURANCE AND BOND.

The Subrecipient shall, at its own expense, obtain and maintain in force, or
shall require any subcontractor, subgrantec or assignee performing Project
work 10 obtain and maintain in force, both for the benefit of the State, the
following insurance:

Statutory workmen’s compensation and employees liability insurance for all
employees engaged in the performance of the Project, and

Comprehensive public tiability insurance against all claims of bodily injuries,
death or property damage, in amounis not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence
and $2,000,000 aggregate for bodily injury or death any one incident, and
$500,000 for property damage in any one incident; and
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The policies described in subparagraph 17.1 of this paragraph shall be the
standard form employcd in the State of New Hampshire, issued by underwriters
acceptable 1o the Stme, and authorized to do business in the State of New
Hampshire. Each policy shall contain a clause prohibiting cancellation or
modification of the policy earlier than ten (10) days after written notice thereof
has been received by the State.
WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions
hercof after any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event, or any subsequent Event. No express waiver of any Event
of Default shall be deemed a waiver of any provisions hereof. No such failure of
waiver shall be deemed a waiver of the right of the State 10 enforce each and all
of the provisions hercof upon any further or other defaull on the part of the
Subrecipient.
NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party shall be deemed to
have been duly delivered or given at the time of mailing by centified mail,
postage prepaid, in a United States Post Office addressed to the parties al the
addresses first above given,
AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived or discharged only
by an instrument in writing signed by the partics hereto and only after approval
of such amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and Council of the
State of New Hampshire, if required or by the signing Swuate Agency.
CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS. This Agreement shall be
construed in accordance with the law of the Statec of New Humpshire, and is
binding upon and inures to the benefit of the panies and their respective
successors and assignees. The captions and contents of the “subjeet”™ blank are
used only as a matter of convenicnee, and ere not to be considered a pant of this
Agreement or 1o be used in determining the intend of the parties hereto,

TIES. The partics hereto do rot intend to benefit any third parties
and this Agreement shall not be construed 1o confer any such benefit.
ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be executed in a number
of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, constitutes the entire
agreement and understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings relating hereto.
SPECIAL PROVISIONS. The additional provisions set forth in Exhibit C

hereto are incorporated us part of this agreement,

\h

Subrecipient Initial(s):
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EXHIBIT A

-SCOPE OF SERVICES-

Manchester Community Health Center as Subrecipient shall receive a grant from the New
Hampshire Department of Justice (DOJ) for expenses incurred for services provided to
victims of the opioid cnsis in compliance with the terms, conditions, specifications, and
scope of work as outlined in the joint OVC federal Grant application titled; 2018
Enhancing Community Responses to the Opioid Crisis: Serving Out Youngest Crime
Victims.

The Subrecipient shall be reimbursed by the DOJ based on budgeted expenditures
described in Exhibit B. The Subrecipient shall submit incurred expenses for
reimbursement on the state approved expenditure reporting form as provided.
Expenditure reports shall be submitted on a quarterly basis, within fifteen (15) days
following the end of the current quarterly activities. Expenditure reports submitted later
than thirty (30) days following the end of the quarter will be considered late and out of
compliance. For example, with an award that begins on January 1, the first quarterly
report is due on April 15" or 15 days after the close of the first quarter ending on March
31

Subrecipient is required to maintain supporting documentatton for all grant expenses both
state funds and match if provided and to produce those documents upon request of this
office or any other state or federal audit authority. Grant project supporting
documentation should be maintained for at least 5 years after the close of the project.

Subrecipient shall be required to submit an annual application to the DOJ for review and
compliance.

Subrecipient shall be subject to periodic desk audits and program reviews by DOJ. Such
desk audits and program reviews shall be scheduled with Subrecipient and every attempt
shall be made by Subrecipient to accommodate the schedule.

All correspondence and submittals shall be directed to:
NH Department of Justice
Grants Management Unit
33 Capitol Street
Concord, NH 03301
603-271- 8090 or Thomas Kaempfer@doj.nh.gov.
¢
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EXHIBIT B

-SCHEDULE/TERMS OF PAYMENT-

. The Subrecipient shall receive reimbursement in exchange for approved expenditure
reports as described in EXHIBIT A.

. The Subrecipient shall be reimbursed within thirty (30) days following the DOJ’s
approval of expenditures. Said payment shall be made to the Subrecipient’s account
receivables address per the Financial System of the State of New Hampshire.

. The State’s obligation to compensate the Subrecipient under this Agreement shall not
exceed the price limitation set forth in form P-37 section 1.8.

3a.The Subrecipient shall be awarded an amount not to exceed $670,496.00 of the
total Grant Limitation upon Governor and Council approval through 09/30/2021,
with approved expenditure reports. This shall be contingent on continued federal
funding and program performance.

Page 5of 6 ;
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EXHIBIT C

-SPECIAL PROVISIONS-

1. Subrecipients shall also be compliant at all times with the terms, conditions and
specifications detailed in the Special Conditions as Appendix 1 which is subject to annual
review.

[
Page 6 of 6 -
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Appendix |
I. Requirements of the award; remedies for non-compliance or for materially false statements

The conditions of this award are material requirements of the award. Compliance with any
certifications or assurances submitted by or on behalf of the recipient that relate to conduct
during the period of performance also is a material requirement of this award.

Failure to comply with any one or more of these award requirements -- whether a condition set
out in full below, a condition incorporated by reference below, or a certification or assurance
related to conduct during the award period —may result in the Office of Justice Programs ("OJP")
taking appropriate action with respect to the recipient and the award. Among other things, the
OJP may withhold award funds, disallow costs, or suspend or terminate the award.

The Department of Justice ("DOI™), including OJP, also may take other legal action as
appropriate.

Any materially faise, fictitious, or fraudulent statement to the federal government related to this
award (or concealment or omission of a material fact) may be the subject of criminal prosecution
(including under 18 U.S .C. 1001 and/or 1621, and/or 34 U.S .C. 10271-10273), and also may
lead to imposition of civil penalties and administrative remedies for false claims or otherwise
(including under 31 U.S.C. 3729-3730 and 3801-3812).

Should any provision of a requirement of this award be held to be invalid or unenforceable by its
terms, that provision shall first be applied with a limited construction so as to give it the
maximum effect permitted by law. Should it be held, instead, that the provision is utterly invalid
or -unenforceable, such provision shall be deemed severable from this award.

2. Applicability of Part 200 Uniform Requirements

The Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements in 2 C.F.R.
Part 200, as adopted and supplemented by DOJ in 2 C.F.R. Part 2800 (together, the "Part 200
Uniform Requirements™) apply to this FY 2018 award from OJP.

The Part 200 Uniform Requirements were first adopted by DOJ on December 26, 2014. If this
FY 2018 award supplements funds previously awarded by OJP under the same award number
(e.g., funds awarded during or before December 20 14), the Part 200 Uniform Requirements
apply with respect to all funds under that award number (regardless of the award date, and
regardless of whether derived from the initial award or a supplemental award) that are obligated
on or after the acceptance date of this FY 2018 award.

For more information and resources on the Part 200 Uniform Requirements as they relate to OJP

awards and subawards ("subgrants"}, see the OJP website at
https://ojp.gov/funding/Part200UnifonnRequirements.htm.

1 e
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Record retention and access: Records pertinent to the award that the recipient (and any
subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier) must retain -- typically for a period of 3 years from the
date of submission of the final expenditure report (SI° 425), unless a different retention period
applics -- and to which the recipient (and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier) must
provide access, include performance measurement information, in addition to the financial
records, supporting documents, statistical records, and other pertinent records indicated at 2
C.F.R. 200.333. In the event that an award-related question arises from documents or other
matcrials prepared or distributed by OJ P that may appear to conflict with, or differ in some way
from , the provisions of the Part 200 Unilorm Requirements, the recipient is to contact OJP
promptly for clarification.

3. Compliance with DOJ Grants Financial Guide

References to the DOJ Grants Financial Guide are to the DOJ Grants Financial Guide as posted
on the OJP website (currently, the "DOJ Grants Financial Guide” available at
https://ojp.gov/financialguide/DOJ /index.htm), including any updated version that may be
posted during the period of performance. The recipient agrees to comply with the DOJ Grants
Financial Guide.

4. Reclassification of various statutory provisions to a new Title 34 of the United States Code

On Seplember [, 2017, various statutory provisions previously codified elsewhere in the U.S.
Code were editorially reclassificd to a new Title 34, entitled "Crime Control and Law
Enforcement." The reclassification encompassed a number of statutory provisions pertinent to
OJP awards (that is, OJP grants and cooperative agreements), including many provisions
previously codified in Title 42 of the U.S. Code.

Effective as of September |, 2017, any reference in this award document to a statutory provision
that has becn reclassified to the new Title 34 of the U.S. Code is to be read as a reference to that
statutory provision as reclassified to Title 34. This rule of construction specifically includes
references set out in award conditions, references set out in material incorporated by reference
through award conditions, and references set out in other award requirements.

3. Required training for Point of Contact and all Financial Points of Contact -
Both the Point of Contact (POC) and all Financial Points of Contact (FPOCs) for this award must
have successfully completed an "OJP financial management and grant administration training”

by 120 days afier the date of the recipient's acceptance of the award. Successful completion of
such a training on or afler January |1, 2016, will satisfy this condition.

2 (2
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In the event that either the POC or an FPOC for this award changes during the period of
performance, the new POC or FPOC must have successfully completed an "OJP financial
management and grant administration training" by 120 calendar days after-- (1) the date of OJP's
approval of the "Change Grantee Contact” GAN (in the case of a new PQC), or (2) the date the
POC enters information on the new FPOC in GMS (in the case of a new FPOC). Successful
completion of such a training on or after January 1, 2016, will satisfy this condition.

A list of OJP trainings that OJP will consider "OJP financial management and grant
administration training” for purposes of this condition is available at
https://www.ojp.gov/training/fmts.htm . All trainings that satisfy this condition include a session
on grant fraud prevention and detection.

The recipient should anticipate that OJP will immediately withhold ("freeze") award funds if the
recipient fails to comply with this condition. The recipient's failure to comply also may lead QOJP
to impose additional appropriate conditions on this award.

6. Requirements related to "de minimis" indirect cost rate

A recipient that is eligible under the Part 200 Uniform Requirements and other applicable law to
use the "de minimis” indirect cost rate described in 2 C.F.R. 200.414(!), and that elects to use the
"de minimis" indirect cost rate, must advise OJP in writing of both its eligibility and its election,
and must comply with all associated requirements in the Part 200 Uniform Requirements. The
"de minimis" rate may be applied only to modified total direct costs (MTDC) as defined by the
Part 200 Uniform Requirements.

7. Requirement to report potentially duplicative funding

If the recipient currently has other active awards of federal funds, or if the recipient receives any
other award of federal funds during the period of performance for this award, the recipient
promptly must determine whether funds from any of those other federal awards have been, are
being, or are to be used (in whole or in part) for one or more of the identical cost items for which
funds are provided under this award. If so, the recipient must promptly notify the DOJ awarding
agency (OJP or OVW, as appropriate) in writing of the potential duplication, and, if so requested
by the DOJ awarding agency, must seck a budget-modification or change-of-project-scope grant
adjustment notice (GAN) to eliminate any inappropriate duplication of funding.

8. Requirements related to System for Award Management and Universal Identifier
Requirements

The recipient must comply with applicable requirements regarding the System for Award
Management (SAM), currently accessible at https://www.sam.gov/. This includes applicable
requirements regarding registration with SAM, as well as maintaining the currency of
information in SAM.
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The recipient also must comply with applicable restrictions on subawards ("subgrants") to first-
tier subrecipients (first-tier "subgrantees”), including restrictions on subawards to entities that do
not acquire and provide (Lo the recipient) the unique entity identifier required for SAM
registration.

The details of the recipient’s obligations related to SAM and to unique entity identifiers are
posted on the OJP web site at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/SAM.htm (Award condition:
System for Award Management (SAM) and Universal Identifier Requirements), and are
incorporated by reference here.

This condition does not apply to an award to an individual who received the award as a natural
person (i.¢., unrelated to any business or non-profit organization that he or she may own or
operate in his or her name).

9. Requirement to report actual or imminent breach of personally identifiable information (PII}

The recipient (and any "subrecipient” at any tier) must have written procedures in place to
respond in the event of an actual or imminent "breach” (OMB M-17-12) if it (or a subrecipient)--
[) creates, collects, uses, processes, stores, maintains, disseminates, discloses, or disposes of
"personally identifiable information (P11)" (2 CFR 200.79) within the scope of an OJP grant-
funded program or activity, or 2) uses or operates a "Federal information system" (OMB

Circular A-130). The recipient's breach procedures must include a requirement to report actual or
imminent breach of PIl to an QOJP Program Manager no later than 24 hours after an occurrence of
an actual breach, or the detection of an imminent breach.

10. All subawards ("subgrants") must have specific federal authorization

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable
requirements for authorization of any subaward. This condition applies to agreements that -- for
purposes of federal grants administrative requirements -- OJP considers a "subaward" (and
therefore does not consider a procurement "contract”).

The details of the requirement for authorization of any subaward are posted on the OJP web site
at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/SubawardAuthorization.htm (Award condition: All subawards
("subgrants") must have specific federal authorization), and are incorporated by reference here.

I1. Specific post-award approval required to use a noncompetitive approach in any procurement
contract that would exceed $ 150,000
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The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee™) at any tier, must comply with all applicable
requirements to obtain specific advance approval to use a noncompetitive approach in any
procurement contract that would exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold (currently, $
150,000). This condition applies to agreements that -- for purposes of federal grants
administrative requirements -- OJP considers a procurement "contract" (and therefore does not
consider a subaward).

The details of the requirement for advance approval to use a noncompetitive approach in a
procurement contract under an OJP award are posted on the OJP web site a
https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/NoncompetitiveProcurement.htm (Award condition: Specific
post-award approval required to use a noncompetitive approach in a procurement contract (if
contract would exceed $ 150,000)), and are incorporated by reference here.

12. Requirements pertaining to prohibited conduct related to trafficking in persons (including
reporting requirements and OJP authority to terminate award)

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable
requirements (including requirements to report allegations) pertaining to prohibited conduct
related to the trafficking of persons, whether on the part of recipients, subrecipients
("subgrantees"), or individuals defined (for purposes of this condition) as "employees" of the
recipient or of any subrecipient.

The details of the recipient's obligations related to prohibited conduct related to trafficking in
persons are posted on the OJP web site at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/ProhibitedConduct-
Trafficking.htm {(Award condition: Prohibited conduct by recipients and subrecipients related to
trafficking in persons (including reporting requirements and OJP authority to terminate award)),
and are incorporated by reference here.

13. Compliance with applicable rules regarding approval, planning, and reporting of conferences,
meetings, trainings, and other events

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable
laws, regulations, policies, and official DOJ guidance (including specific cost limits, prior
approval and reporting requirements, where applicable) governing the use of federal funds for
expenses related to conferences (as that term is defined by DOJ) , including the provision of food
and/or beverages at such conferences, and costs of attendance at such conferences.

Information on the pertinent DOJ definition of conferences and the rules applicable to this award
appears in the DOJ Grants Financial Guide (currently, as section 3.10 of "Postaward
Requirements” in the "DOJ Grants Financial Guide”).
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14. Requirement for data on performance and effectiveness under the award

The recipient must collect and maintain data that measure the performance and effectiveness of
work under this award. The data must be provided to OJP in the manner (including within the
timeframes) specified by OJP in the program solicitation or other applicable written guidance.
Data collection supports compliance with the Government Performance and Results Act (GPRA)
and the GPRA Modermization Act 0of201 0, and other applicable laws.

15. OJP Training Guiding Principles

Any training or training materials that the recipient -- or any subrecipient ("subgrantee™) at any
tier -- develops or delivers with OJP award funds must adhere to the OJP Training Guiding
Principles for Grantees and Subgrantees, available at https
://ojp.gov/funding/Implement/TrainingPrinciplesForGrantees-Subgrantees.htm.

16. Effect of failure to address audit issues

The recipient understands and agrees that the DOJ awarding agency (OJP or OVW, as
appropriate) may withhold award funds, or may impose other related requirements, if (as
determined by the DOJ awarding agency) the reciptent does not satisfactorily and promptly
address outstanding issues from audits required by the Part 200 Uniform Requirements (or by the
terms of this award), or other outstanding issues that arise in connection with audits,
investigations, or reviews of DOJ awards.

| 7. Potential imposition of additional requirements

The recipient agrees to comply with any additional requirements that may be imposed by the
DOJ awarding agency (OJP or OVW, as appropriate) during the period of performance for this
award, if the recipient is designated as "high risk" for purposes of the DOJ high-risk grantee list.

18. Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination - 28 C.F.R.
Part 42

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable
requirements of 28 C.F.R. Part 42, specifically including any applicable requirements in Subpart
E of 28 C.F.R. Part 42 that relate to an equal employment opportunity program.

19. Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination - 28 C.F.R.
Part 54
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The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable
requirements of 28 C.F.R. Part 54, which relates to nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in
certain "education programs.”

20. Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination - 28 C.F.
R. Part 38

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable
requirements of 28 C.F.R. Part 38, specifically including any applicable requirements regarding
written notice to program beneficiaries and prospective program beneficiaries.

Among other things, 28 C.F.R. Part 38 includes rules that prohibit specific forms of
discrimination on the basis of religion, a religious belief, a refusal to hold a religious belief, or
refusal to attend or participate in a religious practice. Part 38 also sets out rules and requirements
that pertain to recipient and subrecipient ("subgrantee”) organizations that engage in or conduct
explicitly religious activities, as well as rules and requirements that pertain to recipients and
subrecipients that are faith-based or religious organizations.

The text of the regulation, now entitled "Partnerships with Faith-Based and Other Neighborhood
Organizations," is available via the Electronic Code of Federal Regulations (currently accessible
at https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/ECFR?page=browse), by browsing to Title 28-}udicial
Administration, Chapter [, Part 38, under e-CFR "current” data.

21. Restrictions on "lobbying"

In general, as a matter of federal law, federal funds awarded by OJP may not be used by the
recipient, or any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, either directly or indirectly, to support or
oppose the enactment, repeal, modification, or adoption of any law, regulation, or policy, at any
level of government. See 18 U.S .C. 1913. (There may be exceptions if an applicable federal
statute specifically authorizes certain activities that otherwise would be barred by law.)

Another federal law generally prohibits federal funds awarded by OJP from being used by the
recipient, or any subrecipient at any tier, to pay any person to influence (or attempt to influence)
a federal agency, a Member of Congress, or Congress (or an official or employee of any of them)
with respect to the awarding of a federal grant or cooperative agreement, subgrant, contract,
subcontract, or loan, or with respect to actions such as renewing, extending, or modifying any
such award. See 31 U.S.C. 1352. Certain exceptions to this law apply, including an exception
that applies to [ndian tribes and tribal organizations.

Should any question arise as to whether a particular use of federal funds by a recipient (or
subrecipient) would or might fall within the scope of these prohibitions, the recipient is to
contact OJP for guidance, and may not proceed without the express prior written approval of
OJP.

<
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22. Compliance with general appropriations- law restrictions on the use of federal funds (FY
2018)

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable
restrictions on the use of federal funds set out in federal appropriations statutes. Pertinent
restrictions, including from various "general provisions" in the Consolidated Appropriations Act,
2018, are set out at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/FY | 8 AppropriationsRestrictions.htm, and
are incorporated by reference here.

Should a question arise as to whether a particular use of federal funds by a recipient (or a
subrecipient) would or might fall within the scope of an appropriations-law restriction, the
recipient is to contact QJP for guidance, and may not proceed without the express prior written
approval of OJP.

23. Reporting Potential Fraud, Waste, and Abuse, and Similar Misconduct

The recipient and any subrecipients ("subgrantees™) must promptly refer to the DOJ Office of the
Inspector General (O1G) any credible evidence that a principal, employee, agent, subrecipient,
contractor, subcontractor, or other person has, in connection with funds under this award -- {I)
submitted a claim that violates the False Claims Act; or (2) committed a criminal or civil
violation of laws pertaining to fraud, conflict of interest, bribery, gratuity, or similar misconduct.

Potential fraud, waste, abuse, or misconduct involving or relating to funds under this award
should be reported to the OlG by-- (I) mail directed to: Office of the Inspector General, U.S.
Department of Justice, Investigations Division, 1425 New York Avenue, N.W, Suite 7 100,
Washington, DC 20530; and/or (2) the DOJ OIG hotline: (contact information in English and
Spanish) at (800) 869-4499 (phone) or (202) 6 16-9881 (fax).

Additional information is available from the DOJ O1G website at https://oig.justice.gov/hotline.
24. Restrictions and certifications regarding non-disclosure agreements and related matters

No recipient or subrecipient ("subgrantee™) under this award, or entity that receives a
procurement contract or subcontract with any funds under this award, may require any employee
or contractor to sign an internal confidentiality agreement or statement that prohibits or
otherwise restricts, or purports to prohibit or restrict, the reporting (in accordance with law) of
waste, fraud, or abuse to an investigative or law enforcement representative of a federal
department or agency authorized to receive such information.
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The foregoing is not intended, and shall not be understood by the agency making this award, to
contravene requirements applicable to Standard Form 312 (which relates to classified
information), Form 4414 (which relates to sensitive compartmented information), or any other
form issued by a federal department or agency governing the nondisclosure of classified
information.

1. In accepting this award, the recipient--

a. represents that it neither requires nor has required internal confidentiality agreements or
statements from employees or contractors that currently prohibit or otherwise currently restrict
(or purport to prohibit or restrict) employees or contractors from reporting waste, fraud, or abuse
as described above; and

b. certifies that, if it learns or is notified that it is or has been requiring its employees or
contractors to execute agreements or statements that prohibit or otherwise restrict (or purport to
prohibit or restrict}, reporting of waste, fraud, or abuse as described above, it will immediately
stop any further obligations of award funds, will provide prompt written notification to the
federal agency making this award, and will resume (or permit resumption of) such

obligations only if expressly authorized to do so by that agency.

2. If the recipient does or is authorized under this award to make subawards ("subgrants"),
procurement contracts, or both--

a. il represents that--

(1) it has determined that no other entity that the recipient’s application proposes may or will
receive award funds (whether through a subaward ("subgrant™), procurement contract, or
subcontract under a procurement contract) either requires or has required internal confidentiality
agreements or statements from employees or contractors that currently prohibit or otherwise
currently restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict) employees or contractors from reporting
waste, fraud, or abuse as described above; and

(2) it has made appropriate inquiry, or otherwise has an adequate factual basis, to support this
representation; and

b. it certifies that, if it learns or is notified that any subrecipient, contractor, or subcontractor
entity that receives funds under this award is or has been requiring its employees or contraciors
to execute agreements or statements that prohibit or otherwise restrict (or purport to prohibit or
restrict), reporting of waste, fraud, or abuse as described above, it will immediately stop any
further obligations of award funds to or by that entity, will provide prompt written notification to
the federal agency making this award, and will resume (or permit resumption of) such
obligations only if expressly authorized to do so by that agency.
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25. Compliance with 41 U.S.C. 4712 (including prohibitions on reprisal; notice to employees)

The recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must comply with, and is subject to, all
applicable provisions of 41 U.S .C. 4712, including all applicable provisions that prohibit, under
specified circumstances, discrimination against an employee as reprisal for the employee's
disclosure of information related to gross mismanagement of a federal grant, a gross waste of
federal funds, an abuse of authority relating to a federal grant, a substantial and specific danger
to public health or safety, or a violation of law, rule, or regulation related to a federal grant.

The recipient also must inform its employees, in writing (and in the predominant native language
of the workforce), of employee rights and remedies under 41 U.S.C.4712.

Should a question arise as to the applicability of the provisions of41 U.S.C.4712 to this award,
the recipient is to contact the DOJ awarding agency (OJP or OYW, as appropriate) for guidance.

26. Encouragement of policies to ban text messaging while driving

Pursuant to Executive Order 13513, "Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging While
Driving," 74 Fed. Reg. 51225 (October 1, 2009), DOJ encourages recipients and subrecipients
("subgrantees™) to adopt and enforce policies banning employees from text messaging while
driving any vehicle during the course of performing work funded by this award, and to establish
workplace safety policies and conduct education, awareness, and other outreach to decrease
crashes caused by distracted drivers.

27. Requirement to disclose whether recipient is designated "high risk" by a federal grant-
making agency outs ide of DOJ

If the recipient is designated "high risk” by a federal grant-making agency outs ide of DOJ,
currently or at any time during the course of the period of performance under this award, the
recipient must disclose that fact and certain related information to OJP by email at
OJP.ComplianceReporting@ojp.usdoj.gov. For purposes of this disclosure, high risk includes
any status under which a federal awarding agency provides additional oversight due to the
recipient’s past performance, or other programmatic or financial concerns with the recipient. The
recipient’s disclosure must include the following: I. The federal awarding agency that currently
designates the recipient high risk, 2. The date the recipient was designated high risk, 3. The high-
risk point of contact at that federal awarding agency (name, phone number, and email address),
and 4. The reasons for the high-risk status, as set out by the federal awarding agency.

28. The recipient agrees that it will submit quarterly financial status reports to OJP on-line (at
https://grants.ojp.usdoj.gov) using the SF 425 Federal Financial Report form (available for
viewing at https: //www.gsa.gov/forms- library/federal financial-report), not later than 30 days
after the end of each calendar quarter. The final report shall be submitted not later than 90 days
following the end of the award period.
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29. The recipient shall submit semiannual progress reports. Progress reports shall be submitted
within 30 days after the end of the reporting periods, which are June 30 and December 31, for the
ltfe of the award. These reports will be submitted to the Office of Justice Programs, on-line
through the Intemet at https://grants.ojp.usdoj.gov/.

30. The recipient agrees to submit a final report at the end of this award documenting all relevant
project activities during the entire period of support under this award. This report will include
detailed information about the project(s) funded, including, but not limited to, in formation about
how the funds were actually used for each purposec area, data to support statements of progress,
and data concerning individual results and outcomes of funded projects reflecting project
successes and impacts. The final report is due no later than 90 days following the close of this
award period or the expiration of any extension periods. This report will be submitted to the
Office of Justice Programs, on-line through the Internet at https://grants.oj p.usdoj.gov/.

31. Recipient integrity and performance matiers: Requirement to report information on certain
civil, criminal, and administrative procecdings to SAM and FAPIIS

The recipient must comply with any and all applicable requirements regarding reporting of
information on civil, criminal, and administrative proceedings connected with (or connected to
the performance of) either this OJP award or any other grant, cooperative agreement, or
procurement contract from the federal government. Under certain circumstances, recipients of
OJP awards are required to report information about such proceedings, through the federal
System for Award Management (known as "SAM"), to the designated federal integrity and
performance system (currently, "FAPIIS").

The detatls of recipient obligations regarding the required reporting (and updating) of
information on certain c¢ivil, criminal, and administrative proceedings to the federal designated
integrity and performance system (currently, "FAPLS") within SAM are posted on the OJP web
site at https://ojp.gov/funding/FAPIIS .htm (Award condition: Recipient Integrity and
Performance Matters, including Recipient Reporting to FAPIIS), and are incorporated by
reference here.

32. With respect to this award, federal funds may not be used to pay cash compensation (salary
plus bonuses) to any employee of the award recipient at a rate that exceeds 110% of the
maximum annual salary payable to a member of the federal government's Senior Executive
Service (SES) at an agency with a Certified SES Performance Appraisal System for that year.
(An award recipient may compensate an employee at a higher rate, provided the amount in
excess of this compensation limitation is paid with non-federal funds.)

This limitation on compensation rates allowable under this award may be waived on an
individual basis at the discretion of the OJP official indicated in the program announcement
under which this award is made.
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33. Grant funds may be used only for the purposes in the recipient's approved application. The
recipient shall not undertake any work or activities that are not described in the grant application,
and that use staff, equipment, or other goods or services paid for with OJP grant funds, without
prior written approval from OJP.

34, The recipient authorizes the Office for Victims of Crime (OVC) and/or the Office of the
Chief Financial Officer (OCFO), and its representatives, access to and the right to examine all
records, books, papers, or documents related to this grant.

35. OVC reserves the right to take appropriate action in instances when the grantee fails to
initiate aclivity on the grant or misses multiple time task lines. OVC action may include, but is
not limited to, termination or suspension of the grant.

36. The Project Director and key program personnel designated in the application shall be
replaced only for compelling reasons. Successors to key personnel must be approved, and such
approval is contingent upon submission of appropriate information, including, but not limited to,
a resume. OJP will not unreasonably withhold approval. Changes in other program personnel
require only notification to OJP and submission of resumes, unless otherwise designated in the
award document,

37. Justification of consultant rate

Approval of this award does not indicate approval of any consultant rate in excess of $650 per
day. A detailed justification must be submitted to and approved by the QJP program office prior
to obligation or expenditure of such funds.

38. The grantee agrees to submit to OVC, within 30 days of award, a revised time-task plan. This
revised time-task plan should be developed in consultation with the OVC program specialist
assigned to the project, and should clearly indicate the following: (1) each of the stated project
objectives and the tasks to be performed to achieve those objectives; (2) the completion dates for
tasks and delivery dates for products; (3) the project staff responsible for accomplishing each
task; 4) submission dates for financial and programmatic progress reports, consistent with the
requirements of the OJP Financial Guide; and 5) incorporation of development schedule for
print, video, and multimedia products to assure periodic OVC reviews of products (see Product
Submission Requirements).
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39. Copyright; Data rights

The recipient acknowledges that OJP reserves a royalty-free, non-exclusive, and irrevocable
license to reproduce, publish, or otherwise use, and authorize others to use (in whole or in part,
including in connection with derivative works), for Federal purposes: ( I) any work subject to
copyright developed under an award or subaward (at any tier); and (2) any rights of copyright to
which a recipient or subrecipient (at any tier) purchases ownership with Federal support.

The recipient acknowledges that OJP has the right to (1) obtain, reproduce, publish, or otherwise
use the data first produced under any such award or subaward; and (2) authorize others to
receive, reproduce, publish, or otherwise use such data for Federal purposes. "Data” includes
data as defined in Federal Acquisition Regulation (FAR) provision 52.227- 14 (Rights in Data -
General).

It is the responsibility of the recipient (and of each subrecipient (at any tier), if applicable) to
ensure that the provisions of this condition are included in any subaward (at any tier) under this
award.

The recipient has the responsibility to obtain from subrecipients, contractors, and subcontractors
(if any) all rights and data necessary to fulfill the recipient's obligations to the Government under
this award. If a proposed subrecipient, contractor, or subcontractor refuses to accept terms
affording the Government such rights, the recipient shall promptly bring such refusal to the
attention of the OJP program manager for the award and not proceed with the agreement in
question without further authorization from the OJP program office.

40. The grantee agrees to submit any print or electronic promotional materials concerning any
OVC-funded project that are intended for public dissemination to OVC for review seven (7)
working days in advance of release. This includes, but is not limited to: fact sheets, newsletters,
press releases, Web-based materials, and listserv announcements.

4. The grantee agrees to use grant funds to make any substantive corrections, if appropriate, to a
publication or product in response to comments generated through either the OVC peer review
process or the internal Department of Justice review process. Any grant-funded products
(written, Web-based, audio-visual, or any other media format), whether produced at the grantee's
or government's expense, shall contain the following statement: This was produced
by under [2018-V3-GX-0038], awarded by the Office for Victims of Crime,
Office of Justice Programs, U.S. Department of Justice. The opinions, findings, and conclusions
or recommendations expressed in this are those of the contributors and do not
necessarily represent the official position or policies of the U.S. Department of Justice.
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42. Within 90 days of the date of award, the grantee will submit to the Office for Victims of
Crime for review and approval its policies and procedures that it has established to maintain the
confidentiality of victims' names, addresses, telephone numbers, or any other identifying
information, and its policies and procedures relating to information sharing between partners. In
addition, the grantee must submit a signed, written certification that data privacy and sharing
protocols comport with the confidentiality and privacy rights and obligations of federal law or
the grantee jurisdiction's laws, court rules, or rules of professional conduct applicable to the work
performed by the grantee.

43. The recipient agrees that federal funds under this award will be used to supplement but not
supplant state or local
government funds .

44, The Victims of Crime Act (VOCA) of 1984 states that VOCA funds are available during the
federal fiscal year in which the award was actually made, plus the following three fiscal years. At
the end of this period, VOCA funds will be deobligated. OJP has no discretion to permit
extensions beyond the statutory period. (E.g., VOCA funds awarded in FY 2018, are available
until the end of FY 202 [).

45. Discrimination Findings

The recipient assures that in the event that a Federal or State court or Federal or State
administrative agency makes a finding of discrimination after a due process hearing on the
ground of race, religion, national origin, sex, or disability against a recipient of victim assistance
formula funds under this award, the recipient will forward a copy of the findings to the Office for
Civil Rights of OJP.

46. The recipient understands that all QJP awards are subject to the National Environmental
Policy Act (NEPA, 42 U.S.C. section 4321 et seq.) and other related Federal laws (including the
National Historic Preservation Act), if applicable. The recipient agrees to assist OJP in carrying
out its responsibilities under NEPA and related laws, if the recipient plans to use VOCA funds
(directly or through subaward or contract) to undertake any activity that triggers these
requirements, such as renovation or construction. (See 28 C.F.R. Part 61, App. D.) The recipient
also agrees to comply with all Federal, State, and local environmental laws and regulations
applicable to the development and implementation of the activities to be funded under this
award.
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

CERTIFICATIONS REGARDING LOBBYING; DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS; AND DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

Applicants should refer to the regulations cited below to determine the certification to which they
are required to attest. Applicants should also review the instructions for certification included in
the regulations before completing this form. The certifications shall be treated as a material
representation of fact upon which reliance will be placed when the U.S. Department of Justice
(*Department”) determines to award the covered transaction, grant, or cooperative agreement.

1. LOBBYING

As required by 31 U.S.C. § 1352, as implemented by 28 C.F.R. Part 69, the Applicant certifies
and assures (1o the extent applicable) the following:

(a) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behaif of the
Applicant, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any
agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a
Member of Congress in connection with the making of any Federal grant, the entering into of
any cooperative agreement, or the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification
of any Federal grant or cooperative agreement;

(b} If the Applicant’s request for Federal funds is in excess of $100,000, and any funds other
than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, an officer
or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with this
Federal grant or cooperative agreement, the Applicant shall complete and submit Standard Form
- LLL, *Disclosure of Lobbying Activities” in accordance with its (and any DOJ awarding
agency’s) instructions; and

(c) The Applicant shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
documents for all subgrants and procurement contracts {and their subcontracts) funded with
Federal award funds and shall ensure that any certifications or lobbying disclosures required of
recipients of such subgrants and procurement contracts (or their subcontractors) are made and
fited in accordance with 31 U.S.C. § 1352.

2. DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

A. Pursuant to Department regulations on nonprocurement debarment and suspension
implemented at 2 C.F.R. Part 2867, and to other related requirements, the Applicant certifies,



with respect to prospective participants in a primary tier “covered transaction,” as defined at 2
C.F.R. § 2867.20(a), that neither it nor any of its principals—

{a) is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, sentenced to a
denial of Federal benefits by a State or Federal court, or voluntarily excluded from covered
transactions by any Federal department or agency;

(b) has within a three-year period preceding this application been convicted of a felony criminal
violation under any Federal law, or been convicted or had a civil judgment rendered against it for
commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or
performing a public (Federal, State, tribal, or local) transaction or private agreement or
transaction;

violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery,
bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, tax evasion or receiving
stolen property, making false claims, or obstruction of justice, or commission of any offense
indicating a lack of business integrity or business honesty that seriously and directly affects its
(or its principals’) present responsibility;

(c) is presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State, tribal, or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph
(b) of this certification; and/or

(d) has within a three-year period preceding this application had one or more public transactions
(Federal, State, tribal, or local) terminated for cause or default.

B. Where the Applicant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, it shall
attach an explanation to this application. Where the Applicant or any of its principals was
convicted, within a three-year period preceding this application, of a felony criminal violation
under any Federal law, the Applicant also must disclose such felony criminal conviction in
writing to the Department (for OJP Applicants, to OJP at Ojpcompliancereporting@usdoj.gov;
for OVW Applicants, to OVW at OVW.GFMD(@usdoj.gov; or for COPS Applicants, to COPS
at AskCOPSRC@usdoj.gov), unless such disclosure has already been made.

3. FEDERAL TAXES

A. If the Applicant is a corporation, it certifies either that (1) the corporation has no unpaid
Federal tax liability that has been assessed, for which all judicial and administrative remedies
have been exhausted or have lapsed, that is not being paid in a timely manner pursuant to an
agreement with the authority responsible for collecting the tax liability, or (2) the corporation has
provided written notice of such an unpaid tax liability (or liabilities) to the Department (for OJP
Applicants, to QJP at Ojpcompliancereporting@usdoj.gov; for OVW Applicants, to OVW at
OVW.GFMD@usdoj.gov; or for COPS Applicants, to COPS at AskCOPSRC@usdoj.gov).

B. Where the Applicant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, it shall
attach an explanation to this application.



4. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE (GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS)

As required by the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, as implemented at 28 C.F.R. Part 83,
Subpart F, for grantees, as defined at 28 C.F.R. §§ 83.620 and 83.650:

A. The Applicant certifies and assures that it will, or will continue to, provide a drug-free
workplace by—

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession, or use of a controtled substance is prohibited in its workplace and
specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;

(b) Establishing an on-going drug-free awareness program to inform employees about—
(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

(2) The Applicant’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring in the
workplace;

(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the award
be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the award, the employee will—

(1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and

(2) Notify the employer in writing of the employee’s conviction for a violation of a criminal drug
statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction;

(e) Notifying the Department, in writing, within 10 calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title of any such
convicted employee to the Department, as follows:

For COPS award recipients - COPS Office, 145 N Street, NE, Washington, DC, 20530,

For OJP and OVW award recipients - U.S. Department of Justice, Office of Justice Programs,
ATTN: Control Desk, 810 7th Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20531.

Notice shall include the identification number(s) of each affected award,

(f) Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (d}(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted:



(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended; or

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federai, State, or local health, law

enforcement, or other appropriate agency; and

(g)Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (e), and (f).

If you are unable to sign this certification, you must attach an explanation to this
certification.

M/(A&ww(éuk P JM/&"O

Nam d Tltle of Head of Agency

) 1 / 2S5 / (9
/S,igiuatl}( <’ Date'

M g haatu  Lommon L4 )‘kw(/‘“k (ordeq

Namé andeddress:l Agency
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CERTIFICATION FORM
Compliance with the Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP) Requirements

Please read carefully the Instructions (see below) and then complete Section A or Section B or Section C, not all three. If recipient
completes Section A or C and sub-grants a single award over §500,000, in addition, please complete Section DD,

Recipient's Name:

Address:
Is agency a; o Direct or o Sub recipient of QJP, OVW or COPS funding? | Law Enforcement Agency? o Yes o No
DUNS Number: | Vendor Number (only if direct recipient)

Name and Title of Contact Person:

Teleehone Number: | E-Mail Address:

|Sect|on A—Declarition Claiming Complete Exemptnon from the EEOP Reqmrement
' 'Please check-all the fo!!owmg baxes that apply. : B

! . .GlLess than fifty employees. . o lndjan Tribe e Mcdlcal Institution.

! g Nonprof't Orgamzauo o Educational Institution o Recewmg a single award(s) less than $25,000. .

) . -

L 4<fl‘1 M ((_\_Cﬁ O\,(.AM [responsrb[e

noﬁic:a[], certlfy that. lMWL\J/‘]W /{)VVIVVH)H L‘L(A /‘-/{OLM Ml/t
'[récipient] is not required to prepare an EEOP for the reason(s) checked abovg 2ursu to 28 C.FR §42.302.

iI further certify that M _y ¢ An , ol dA C()VVLWLWU [recipien]
1w1l] comply with. apphcable federal civil nghts Iaws that prohibit &‘lscnmmanon in employment and in the delivery of
1serwces

|

. [f recipient sub-grants a smg!e award over 500,000, in addmon please complete Section D

P Km O/QAaow @MWM S /o?S/)"I

i. Print of Type Name and Title fure’ . . Date

Section B—Declaration Claiming Exemption from the EEOP Submission Requirement and Certifying
That an EEOP Is on File for Review

If a recipient agency has fifty or more employees and is receiving u single award or, subaward, of $25,000 or more, but less than 5500,000, then
the recipient agency does not have 1o submit an EEQP 1o the QCR for review us long as it certifies the following (42 C.F.R. § 42.305):

1, [responsible
official], certify that
[recipient], which has fifty or more employees and is receiving a single award or subaward for $25,000 or more, but less
than $500,000, has formulated an EEOP in accordance with 28 CFR pt. 42, subpt. E. | further certify that within the last
twenty-four months, the proper autherity has formulated and signed into effect the EEOP and, as required by applicable
federal law, it is available for review by the public, employees, the appropriate state planning agency, and the Office for
Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs, U.S. Department of Justice. The EEOP is on file at the following office:

[organization],
|address].
Print or T% Name and Title Signa.rure Date

:Section C—Declaration Stating that amEEOP Short Form Has Been Submitted ‘tosthe. Off‘ ice for Civil'
‘Rights for Review - : : ‘

Af a recipient agem.y has fifty or more émployees am:t' is receiving a smgle award, or. subaward, of 5500, 000 or more, then the recipient agency
must send an EEOP Shor! Form tg !he OCRfOr revrew ‘ - .

) 5 R . o : [responsible
officiall, cemfy that : '
[recipient], which has fifty or more employees-and'is receiving-a- smgle award of $500 000 or more,-has formulated an
'EEQP in accordance. with 28 CFR pt. 42, subpt. E, and sent it for review on __~_|

[date] to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs, U:S. Department of Justlce
J_’f recrp:ent sub-gmnls a single award over $300,000, in addition, please complete Section D

1

Print or Tvpe Nameé and Title ~ " - ST, ' Signdture ~ -, - T . : Date




Non-supplanting Certification

Supplanting defined

Federal funds must be used to supplement existing funds for program activities and must not
replace those funds that have been appropriated for the same purpose. Supplanting shall be the
subject of application review, as well as pre-award review, post-award monitoring, and audit. If
there is a potential presence of supplanting, the applicant or grantee will be required to supply
documentation demonstrating that the reduction in non-Federal resources occurred for reasons
other than the receipt or expected receipt of Federal funds. For certain programs, a written
certification may be requested by the awarding agency or recipient agency stating that Federal
funds will not be used to supplant State or local funds. See the OJP Financial Guide (Part II,

Chapter 3). http://www.o]p.usdoj.gov/financialguide/part?/part?chap3.htm.

Supplanting and job retention

A grantee may use federal funds to retain jobs that, without the use of the federal money, would
be lost. If the grantee is planning on using federal funds to retain jobs, it must be able to
substantiate that, without the funds, the jobs would be lost. Substantiation can be, but is not
limited to, one of the following forms: an official memorandum, official minutes of a county or
municipal board meeting or any documentation, that is usual and customarily produced when
making determinations about employment. The documentation must describe the terminated
positions and that the termination is because of lack of the availability of State or local funds.

The MW\{-&\ (OW“V\ UCO‘QM@@QT%II) certifies that any funds awarded

through grant number 5897-01Q-506575  shall be used to supplement existing funds

for program activities and will not replace (supplant) nonfederal funds that have been

appropriated for the purposes and goals of the grant.

The MW{“ G‘V\m W Mplicant) understands that supplanting

violations may result in a range of penalties, including but not limited to suspension of future

funds under this program, suspension or debarment from federal grants, recoupment of monies

provided under this grant, and civil and/or criminal penalties.

Printed Name and Title: Kf S W[O’@L O—Ct% { @\/‘“ lW CS—:_()

Date:_) /er( 0{




U.S. Department of Justice
Office on Violence Against Women

Acknowledgement of Notice of Statutory Requirement to Comply wi'th the
Confidentiality and Privacy Provisions of the Violence Against Women Act, as
Amended

Under section 40002(b)(2) of the Violence Against Women Act, as amended (42 U.S.C.
13925(b)(2)), grantees and subgrantees with funding from the Office on Violénce Against
Women (OV W) are required to meet the following terms with regard to nondisclosure of
confidential or private information and to document their compliance. By signature on this form,
applicants for grants from OVW are acknowledging that that they have notice that, if awarded
funds, they will be required to comply with this provision, and will mandate that subgrantees, if
any, comply with this provision, and will create and maintain documentation of compliance, such
as policies and procedures for release of victim information, and will mandate that subgrantees,
if any, will do so as well.

(A) In general

[n order to ensure the safety of adult, youth, and child victims of domestic violence, dating
violence, sexual assault, or stalking, and their families, grantees and subgrantees under this
subchapter shall protect the confidentiality and privacy of persons receiving services.

(B) Nondisclosure

Subject to subparagraphs (C) and (D), grantees and subgrantees shall not—

(i) disclose, reveal, or release any personally identifying information or individual information
collected in connection with services requested, utilized, or denied through grantees’ and
subgrantees’ programs, regardless of whether the information has been encoded, encrypted,
hashed, or otherwise protected; or

(ii) disclose, reveal, or release individual client information without the inforrhed, written,
reasonably time-limited consent of the person (or in the case of an unemancipated minor, the
minor and the parent or guardian or in the case of legal incapdcity, a court-appointed guardian)
about whom information is sought, whether for this program or any other Federal, State, tribal,
or territorial grant program, except that consent for release may not be given by the abuser of the
minor, incapacitated person, or the abuser of the other parent of the minor.



[f a minor or a person with a legally appointed guardian is permitted by law to receive services
without the parent’s or guardian’s consent, the minor or person with a guardian may release
information without additional consent.

(C) Release -

If release of information described in subparagraph (B) is compelled by statutory or court
mandate—

(i) grantees and subgrantees shall make reasonable attempts to provide notice to victims affected
by the disclosure of information; and

(ii) grantees and subgrantees shall take steps necessary to protect the privacy and safety of the
persons affected by the release of the information.

(D) Information sharing

(1) Grantees and subgrantees may share—

(1) nonpersonally identifying data in the aggregate regarding services to their clients and
nonpersonally identifying demographic information in order to comply with Federal, State,
tribal, or territorial reporting, evaluation, or data collection requirements;

(II) court-generated information and law enforcement-generated information contained in secure,
governmental registries for protection order enforcement purposes; and

(TII) law enforcement-generated and prosecution-generated information necessary for law
enforcement and prosecution purposes.

(if) In no circumstances may—

(1) an adult, youth, or child victim of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or
stalking be required to provide a consent to release his or her personally identifying information
as a condition of eligibility for the services provided by the grantee or subgrantee;

(1) any personally identifying information be shared in order to comply with Federal, tribal, or
State reporting, evaluation, or data collection requirements, whether for this program or any
other Federil, tribal, or State grant program.

(E) Statutorily mandated reports of abuse or neglect
Nothing in this section prohibits a grantee or subgrantee from reporting suspected abuse or
neglect, as those terms are defined and specifically mandated by the State or tribe involved.

(F) Oversight

Nothing in this paragraph shall prevent the Attorney General from disclosing grant activities
authonized in this Act to the chairman and ranking members of the Committee on the Judiciary of
the House of Representatives and the Committee on the Judiciary of the Senate exercising
Congressional oversight authority. All disclosures shall protect confidentiality and omit
personally identifying information, including location information about individuals.

{G) Confidentiality assessment and assurances
Grantees and subgrantees must document their compliance with the confidentiality and privacy
provisions required under this section.



As the duly authorized representative of the applicant, [ hereby acknowledge that the applicant has received notice
of that if awarded funding they wiil comply with the above statutory requirements. This acknowledgement shall be
treated as a material representation of fact upon which the Department of Justice will rely if it determines to award
the covered transaction, grant, or cooperative agreement.

Kris McCracken CEO/PRESIDENT-MCHC

Typed Name of Authorized Representative Title

Telephone Number, & 03 ’ q 3;"5_2‘ O

I/zs”//‘i

Signature of’gﬁﬁ)rﬁ Representative Date Signed
[Mﬁ_Mo&mM Oam MUy Mﬁk C’a)‘-(él/(
Agency Name N

Public Reporting Burden Paperwork Reduction Act Notice. Under the Paperwork Reduction
Act, a person is not required to respond to a collection of information unless it displays a
currently valid OMB control number. We try to create forms that are accurate, can be easily
understood, and which impose the least possible burden on you to provide us with information.
The estimated average time to complete and file this form is 60 minutes per form. [f you have
comments regarding the accuracy of this estimate, or suggestions for making this form simpler,
you can write to the Office on Violence Against Women, U.S. Department of Justice, 145 N
Street, NE, 10" Floor, Washington, DC 20530.



CERTIFICATION OF DE MINIMIS INDIRECT COST RATE

An award recipient that proposes to use federal grant funds to pay for indirect costs but has never received
a federally negotiated indirect cost rate may elect 1o charge a de minimis rate of up to 10% of its modified
total direct costs (MTDC) which may be used indefinitely. (2 CFR § 200.414; 45 CFR § 75.414)

| certify that Manchester Community Health Center meets the following eligibility criteria to use the 10% de
minimis indirect cost rate:

1. The award recipient has never received a Federally-negotiated indirect cost rate for any
federal awards.

2. The award recipient has received less than $35 million in direct federal funding for the fiscal
year requested.

3.. The de minimis rate approved will be applied to Modified Total Direct Cost (MTDC). This
base includes all direct salaries and wages, applicable fringe benefits, materials and supplies,
services, travel, and up to the first $25,000 of each subaward (regardless of the period of
performance of the subawards under the award); excludes equipment, capital expenditures,
charges for patient care, rental costs, tuition remission, scholarships and fellowships,
participant support costs and the portion of each subaward in excess of $25,000. Other items
may only be excluded when necessary to avoid a serious inequity in the distribution of
indirect costs, and with the approval of the cognizant agency for indirect costs.

4. The project costs will be consistently charged as either indirect or direct and will not be
double charged or inconsistently charged as both.

5. The proper use and application of the de minimis rate is the responsibility of the award
recipient.

SUBMITTEBBY:

Signatules Date: ///‘25"//?

/J" p——— / J
Name: Jahet Langlois Title: Chief Financial QOfficer




State-of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of Statc of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that MANCHESTER COMMUNITY
HEALTH CENTER is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered o transact business in New Hampshire on May 07,
1992. | further cértify that ell fees and documents required by the Sectctary of State’s office have been received and is in good
standing as far es this office is conceméd..

Business ID: 175115
Certificate Number: 0004363175

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

[ hereto st my hand and cause to be affixed
the Scal of the State of New Hampshirc,
this 4th day of January A.D. 2019,

William M. Gardner
Sccretary of State




CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I, Kathleen Davidson, of the Manchester Community Health Center do hereby certify that:

(1) the Board of Directors voted to accept funds and enter into a grant agreement with the New
Hampshire Department of Justice on Date: 1/25/19

(2) The Board of Directors further authorizes the President/CEO to execute any documents which
may be necessary for this contract;

(3) This authorization has not been revoked, annulled or amended in any manner whatsoever, and
remains in full force and effect as of the date hereof; and
{4) The following now occupies the office indicated above:

Kris McCracken, President/CEQ

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand as the Vice-Chair of the Board of Directors this 25th
day of January 2019.

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
COUNTY OF HILLSOBORQUGH

On this the 25™ day of January 2019, before me Mﬂ&m undersigned officer,
personally appeared, Kathleen Davidson, who acknowledged their self to be the Vice-Chair of the Board

of Directors for the Manchester Community Health Center, being authorized to do so, executed the
foregoing instrument for the purpose therein contained.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | hereunto set my and official seal

R

Justice of the Peace/Notary
Commission Expiration Dats

%
seon a3
-=_-= B FEB 28, 2019 E
z % o
% %
%Hfl‘!.}! «\;’

/I/ PS
”’mumm\\\\‘



. MANCCOM-01 AGOULD
A CORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE ”'Z}.'Tz'%ﬁ""

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES KOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFQRDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE{SSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
it SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policles may require an endorsement. A statoment on

prooucer License # AGRE160

Clark Insurance
One Sundial Ave Sulte 302N
Manchester, NH 03103

this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holdar In lteu of such endorsemant(s).

ucr L

P, Exty: (603) 622-2865 | FAX wop-(603) 622-2864

288y iInfo@clarkinsurance.com

INSURER([E] AFFQRINNG COVERAGE NAIC#

mayren 4 : Selective Insurance Company of the Southeast 20826

INSURED | msuren 8 ; ALX Specialty Insurance Co 12833
:I:sn;humr Communlity Health Center MCHC | INSURER € :
mnc:ﬁ'u?.t:;tom o1 HUSURERD:
| INSURER € ;
INSURER F:

_COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: __REVISION NUMBER:

THIS 1S TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT YWITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE |SSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR

ADOL Ql_lBR‘
WV

POLICY EFF

TYPE OF INSURANCE Y POLICY NUMBER e LTS
A COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY CF s 1,000,000
j CLAMS-MADE E OCCUR B 2201045 11112018 | 111412019 EJORENTED 300,000
o one 10,000
: PERSONAL & ADVINJURY | § 1,000,000
| GENL AGG E LIMIT PER: | GENERAL AGGREQATE R 3,000,000,
roucy | | BB Loc PRODYCTS - COMPIOP AGG | § 3,000,000
OTHER; $
A | automoBnE LIABILITY | COMBINED SINGLE umr T, 1,000,000
| | avvauro S 2201048 14/4/2018 | 111172019 | BoDILY INJURY (Per pervony | §
| WOESDONL‘.’-. i&ﬂsgtuo | BODILY INJURY {Per accident} . §
[ X | 48 omy SOHRES RO AAGE s
3
A | X |usmsreuams | X | occur | EACH ocoURRENCE s 4,000,000
| excess uaa | cLAIMS-MADE S 2291045 11172018 | 191472019 |, speaare . 4,000,000
bep | X | retenions 0 : — s
A ERS COMPENSAT] X ! ] N
%m";ﬁ”&ﬁﬂgw“ sl HE 8057737 11112018 | 11112019 [ ¢ocu aciment 500,000
ENBER EXCLUDED? DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE] § ., 500,000
If yos, describa "mrpemnonsw N . rls £00,000
B |[FTCA GAP Liability L1VAS16491 712018 | 7/1/2019 |Per Claim 1,000,000
B |FTCA GAP Llabllity L1VAS15491 7/1i2018 71172019 |Aggrogats 3,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES [ACORD 101, Additional Ramarks Schedule, may be aitashad #f rore space la required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

Stato of New Hampshire/Department of Justice

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESGRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WiLL BE DEUVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

VLA

I
ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. Alirights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD




LARA K. QUIROGA, M.ED.

Expertise Highlights

Early Care & Education Program Administration Children and Families Living in Poverty Group Facilitation
Early Childhood Policy Children with Challenging Behaviors Quality Improvement Processes
Early Childhood Curriculum & Environmental Design Professional Development Project Management

Professional Experience

PROJECT LAUNCH NH — MANCHESTER COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER- MANCHESTER, NH 2013 - present

Project LAUNCH Director

= Responsible for oversight of all local system of care activities to improve outcomes for young children through improved collaboration, integration, and
infrastructure development, including the Adverse Childhood Experiences Response Team (ACERT) in collaboration with Manchester Police Deaprtment and
YWCA NH

s Lead all Project LAUNCH {Linking Actions for Unmet Needs in Chitdren's Heallh) activities within the locally-funded community and ensure their effective and
efficient service delivery, including improving a system of developmental screening, enhanced home visiting, mental health consultation in eary care and
education, integration of behavioral health into primary care, and parenting skills raining

= Convene and lead a Local Council on Young Child Wellness to develop and implement Strategic Plan

« Provide leadership In all local facets of young child wellness efforts and facilitale efforts to Improve local infrastructure, including impiementing evidence-based and
promising practices and guiding the establishment of interagency collaborations with other community-based, child- and family-serving public agencies

= Guide the development and implementation of the Strategic Plan and coordinate data and evaluation for performance reporting and evaluation purposes

= Promote the Project LAUNCH mission through upholding standards of cultural competence, system of care principles, family involvement, and integrative practices

TUFTS UNIVERSITY- MEDFORD, MA 2011-2013

Communications and Project Administrator: Office of the President

» Conceptualize and manage implementation of a coordinated system of communications for the university's strategic iniliatives, including diversity, sustainability,
administrative effectiveness, strategic planning, and capital planning .

= Support various committees led by the President and Chief of Staff, including the President's Council on Diversity and Council on Campus Sustainability

« Coordinate with the Office of the Provost regarding strategic plan development aligned to the university's mission and vision and initiatives of the President’s Office

« Collaborate with the Office of Institutional Research to gather and analyze data to be used as an evidence base for a range of on-going and one-time projects

« Wiite and disseminate a broad range of communications and correspondence including reports, announcements, and messages to the Tufts community

= Manage content on the President's Office website

,' "Accreditation Coordinator: Office of Institutional Research and Evaluation

» Provide support to the chair of the NEASC steering committee and assist the chairs of the 11 standard working groups in facilitating meetings and writing reports
» Serve as a fesource for information on the accreditation process and the development of a comprehensive learning outcomes assessment system

» Coordinate and disseminate information to all individuals, committees, and agencies involved with the accreditation process

« Create, manage, organize, and update an accreditation wiki for internal university use and a virtual workroom for visiting accreditation team

« Manage and schedule the accreditation site visit

» Coordinate the preparation of and edit Tufts' accreditation self-study

SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE UNIVERSITY- MANCHESTER, NH : 2007 - 2011
Community Qutreach Coordinator: School of Education

* Support coltaboration with community pariners, state organizations, and accrediling agencies

» Develop and assist in offering outreach programs and events supporting the professional development of students, teachers, parents, and faculty/staft

« Assistin School of Education’s reaccreditation preparation through the NH Department of Education

« Serve as writer and content editor for the university semi-annual magazine and editor of School of Education monthly newsletter

« Support development and design of School of Education marketing materials including program sheets, viewbook, and other materials

« Coordinate with the Offices of Admissions and Transfer Admissions to streamfine activities for prospeciive students, including open house and orientation events

» Developed two university-wide articulation agreements, including dual admission pratocol and transfer credit equivalents, with local community colleges

Adjunet Faculty: School of Education and College of Online and Continuing Education
» Develop syllabus for course offering, including required reading and writing assignments, quizzes, exams, observations, and class content for undergraduate and
graduate level coursework in the field of Child Development and Early Childhood Education :

o Administration of Child Development Programs o Cognitive Development of Young Children o Infants and Toddlers
o Behavior Theory and Practice o Family and Culture o Language and Cognitive Development
o Child Assessment o Foundations and Issues in Child Devetopment o Precursors of Academic Skills
a Child Development o History/Philosophy of the Child Study o Psychosocial Development
o Child Development Practicum Movement » Theories of Play
MANCHESTER COMMUNITY COLLEGE- MANCHESTER, NH 2006 - 2008

Adjunct Faculty: Early Childhood Education Department

= Teach undergraduale level coursework in the field of Early Childhood Education
o ECE 100 Early Child Growth & Development
o ECE 116 Child Health, Safety, & Nutrition
o ECE 250 Childcare Administration and Management



)

VNA CHILD CARE AND FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER- MANCHESTER, NH
Program Manager: Education and Professional Development

2001 - 2007

= Supervise over 50 staff and monitor classrooms to ensure provision of developmentally appropriate care and education to approximately 200 children and famifies

» Coordinate and provide professional development and training for over 50 teaching staff

« Provide evaluation and assistance to teachers who care for children with behavioral issues, including involvement on Universal, Targeted, and Intensive PBIS

Teams to develop school-wide behavior expectations and individualized behavior intervention plans based on functional behavioral assessment

» Ligise with representatives from the Manchester School District to ensure consistent implementation of the Early Reading First program, including Curiosity Comer

cumiculum, PPVT-4 and PALS-PreK assessments, and professional development
« Coordinate with local school district to ensure children with special needs recaive services and in accordance with IEPAIFSP activities/goals
= Increase capacity for and design quality initiatives including literacy, math, science, gross molor, and language arts
» Monitor day to day operational expenditures and discrepancies and provide input into annual budget planning

HEAD START/EARLY HEAD START, SOUTHERN NH SERVICES, INC. - MANCHESTER, NH
Systems Coordinator

» Develop and implement community collaborations and agreements

» Monitor a multi-million dollar budget and assist in development and writing of federal grant proposals

» Collaborale with Management Team to revise various program systems

« Plan and coordinata monthly Parent Policy Committee meetings

Center Director
« Responsible for daily operations, management, and quality child care of the cenfer
» Supervise teaching and family service staff
“ = Design and implement staff training
« Assist in recruitment of eligible families in community for program enrolimenit

Teacher

» Caregiver in Head Start and Early Head Start programs

» Plan and implement developmentally appropriate curriculum
.= Home visit with families enrclled in program

« Select and order equipment for model infantfioddler and preschool dlassrooms

KIDS CARROUSEL — MANCHESTER, NH

| Teacher

« Plan and implement daily schedule and lesson plans
» Supervise two assistants with responsibility for sixteen toddlers
« Develop job description for Assistant Teacher position

Selected Trainer/Consultant Work
SERESC PRESCHOOL TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE NETWORK- BEDFORD, NH
GROW, LEARN, & PLAY AT MOORE CENTER SERVICES, INC. - MANCHESTER, NH
VNA CHILD CARE AND FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER- MANCHESTER, NH
EASTERSEALS CHILD DEVELOPMENT & FAMILY RESCURCE CENTER- MANCHESTER, NH

Education
SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE UNIVERSITY- MANCHESTER, NH
Master of Education in Child Development with a concentration in Administration, 2007
Thesis: The influence of Teacher Education Lave! on Early Childhood Education Program Quality
GRANITE STATE COLLEGE- MANCHESTER, NH
Bachelor of Science in Early Childhood Education Administration, 2004

Professional Summary

AWARDS
« Henry Morgan Award (achievement in professional development and commitment to improving the quality of care and education in NH)
s 2015, 2016, and 2018 NH Early Learning Champicn Award

SELECTED BOARDS, COMMUNITY AFFILIATIONS, AND ACTIVITIES

» Chair of NH Children's Trust Board of Directors (present)

Co-Chair of Spark NH Policy Commitiee (present)

Vica Chair of Manchester Community Resource Center Board of Directors {present)

Presenter at the Zero to Three National Training Institute (2016)

Presenter at the Pyramid Model Consortium National Training Institute on Effective Practices: Addressing Challenging Behavior (2016, 2018)
Presenter al the NAEYC Annual Conference (2008, 2009, 2010) and NAEYC Professional Development Institute (2010)
Mentor in the State of NH Child Development Sureau Trainer Development Program (2008- 2009)

Presenter at the Early Leaming New Hampshire Annual Conference (2006, 2008)

Presenter at the NHAEYC/VTAEYC Administrator's Conference {2008, 2008)

Member of the Task Force for the State of NH Child Care Licensing Regulations Revisions (2006-2008)

1999 - 2001

1998 - 1999

2008 - 2010
2009

2007 - 2010
2014 - present



'MANCHESTER COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER
JOB ’DESCRIPTION
ADOLESCENT CASE M»'INAGER

POSITION SUMMARY:

The Adoléséént Case:.Manager providés weekly, ongoirg counseling -and case minagement services o, addlescents
énrolled in the Adolescent Preventlve Services ‘Program, ‘a collaboration bétween: the Manthéstér: School Dlslrlcl ‘and'
MCHC:. The: goa] of these services. s to: provide’ interventions that enhance the: ovorall phys:cal emotional.and’ educatuonal
-well-bemg of prograrn part1c1pants as-well. as-to: provndc opportunities ‘for parttcapants to build strong - andrmeamngful
connecuons witli thcrr families, schools -and. commumues

.ﬂS&NSIBLE !Q
" 1. Positions: repdrts to- the: Director 6f Béhavioral Health, Providers and othicr: mental health staff. .as well as the
schnol personnel at. the va.nous schools:

nEREORMANCE REsPONsermES':_

L lcvclop d-means; of |dcnt|fymg at-rlsk Youth i in Marichigatér’s. h:gh schools.or mlddle schiools. ThlS is'done by; seeking
referrals from MCHC provsders “aswell as, Manchester Sehool Dtstnct pcrsonncl mcludmg tcachcrs ‘sctiool nurses,
gmdance counsélorsand administration.

2. Seek.parental conscnt*on mdmdual adoléscents who éxpress anintefost in [participation in the. programi. Track aiid,
follow up-onall refenals madé'i m and out of scligol.

3 Assc‘;?.s:m;ejs_oéis_allcrp(bt_jgnalléduéatj(}nél ficeds of the participant:

5. Coordinate. referrals betweéen' the progran and other. agcncws provndmg social angd- mentaj health serviges, s well:as
educatlonnl and rccrcauonal .opportunities in- both the School and. local community. to wotk  toward' mhancmg
partlc:lpants' overall well-bemg

._é::\.

‘ Prowde -ailong-term mentonng re[atlonshlp, follownng the students through mlddlc angd' hlgh school until gmduahon
w1th thc obJoctwe bemg to creaté the greatest posntwe impacton. 1lcm;_;,—te:rm success..

7. Work with and ¢otifisel:stidénts to.énhance: théir personal and social growth,and nicredse. thcu- reSponmbxhty

- for behawor and attltudcs Providé: opportumtles and résources fof studénts to. ifcrease then acadcmjc
success, m:lprovc 1ntcrpcrsonal relatlonshlps, leam: problem-solvmg and: declsmn-makmg skllls ‘and: resolye
‘conflicts.andcrisis situatioris.

8. Communicate’ ahd-collaborate. with,participants? paréni(s)/guardian(s):as needéd to-discuss. concern; trinke. féfefrals;
cte: . '

9. Improve school..connections to €ncourage imiproved acadcn'uc performance, school. attendance- and behaviors; and
attitides. toward Immmg and achlcvcment

10. Atténd schodl meetings (i.c.. TEP) as required and dssist parents’in an.advocacy rgle when @pfbpriﬁ_tg’:‘én‘fqﬁiidétede

11- - Participat¢-in- an mterdlsmplmary teari meeting. (Adolescent Team Confcrence) for-case-cansiiltation, developmg and
lmplemcntmg program policies-and procedures and ¢risis:-management:

12. Maintain; pasitive relatiofiships with ‘Manchcster Schadl. Dlstl‘lct staff and. adm:mstranon ‘with -ongoing
commumcatton about studcnts’ 'neods ofﬁce spacc, cte.



13, Maiintain adeqate safeguards for privacy and:confideiitiality in telationships with adblescerits and fecord-kéeping,

14, Dnsplay the hlghest ethical arid’ professmnal bbehavicr and-standards when worKing with adoléscénts; parents,
sohool pcrsonnel’ arid' coifimuiity: agencles

F5. Demonstrate knowledge and: understandmg of-adolcséent deve|0pment and,atténd conferences/workshops in this:ared -
to-maintain’this. knowlcdge and: contmulng ‘education fequirerents for Ilcensure

I6. These functlons are performed .under ‘the supervision of thé D:rector of"Behaworal Health, however exerclsmg,
mdependent and sound Judgment is also necessary. thlmgness to “travel locaily usmg own » transportatnon (mileage
rclmbursement) is. needed‘*

In addmon, mdwndual must possess.these: knowledge-¢ and| these 'skills. .and abilities-or be:ablé to explmn and. demonstrate
thiit the individual can pcrfortn the: prlmnry\ﬁmct:ons of the Job wnth »or w:thout rcasonable aocommodat:on usmg s0me
other combiration. of-skills arid -abilities ‘and to- possess the necessary physncal requnrements ‘with or wn.hout the aid of
‘mechanicatdevices. to. safely,perform the primary funétions of the JOb

I, Physncal requmemcnts include ability: to- extend ha.nd(s) and arm(s) in-any du'ectlon,,.pxck pmch type or otherwxso
work prlmanly with ﬁngers stand for sustainéd penods ‘of | tirite. and nove about on foot: 10 aceompllsh tasks dise
objects from.a- lower'to a hlgher position ‘or'move. objects honzontally Trom- pos:tmn to- position; *apply pressiureé (o an
ob]ect~w1th ﬂngemps sustain. substantlal movement of wrist, hands and/or ﬁngemps

2. mbility, to-express or exchaigé ideas.by means of the spoken word:
3. Ability toreceivedetailed-information:throgh orl communication and-wake:finie-discrimination in sound

4, Ahnhty to interact efl'ecovcly with people of varied educational; Socio-econormic. and ethnié’ backgmunds skill- levcls
and_ value systems, to work with" frequent mtcrruptlons and to respond‘appmpmtcly to unicXpected sitisations.,
Excellent llstenmg skllls

.oonstantly to l;ﬂ,,cany punch, pull .OF. othervwse move ohjecrs anary functlons mvolve :nttlng, as well s’ sloopmg,
kneelmg, crouchmg, and rea.chmg, walkmg pamaula:ly for Iong dlstances and standmg for sustalned penods of t!me

terrmnal operatlon extenswe readmg. and~v1$ual mspectlon mvolvmg small partsldeﬁ*:ctsr
1. Excellent written, virbal cofmiunication and social.skills:

8: Ability i_b. eridiire-periods-ofieavy workload of excessive siress,

9 Knowledge of. database and_spréadshest software :systéfs: Computer skjlls prefemed and basic f nancial'skills;, as.
well. a.'iranalyllcal skllls for trend and. situational analysmrdmued

10. Atnhty to. transport $elf. to'mectmgs, event.and affiliatéd vendors.

Ii1.. Not-substantiaily,exposed to-adverse environmental 'ganditi@p's"

12. Based on. the mental. Muuremems of the: posmon, please check below'the ADA statémmeiit that best fits the pmrt:on .
Choose ONLY ONE ﬁ-om below?

a chulres the ability to-understand and follow simple instructions and to-usé s1mple equipmedt lnvolvmg few
decigions.

-



1 'Requires the ability to perform repetttlve or routiné duties working from defailed instruétions and understand
procedures. Requires the making of minor décisions.

O Requires the ability to plan and perform diversified duties requmng an extensive knowlédge of a-particular
field and the use of a wide rarige of proccdurcs Iivolves the exercise.of Judgement in the analysns of faéts
and' condntlons régarding - mdmdual problems or transactioris. to. detefmine what actions should be taken:
within the limils of-standard practlcc

a Requu'es the ab:hty to plan and perform & wide variety of duities requiring general kniowledgeé-of policics and
procedures. Requires considerable judgemént to work independently toward general résults, devising
methods, modlfytng orn adaptmg standard procedures to meet différent conditions, making decisions based on
precedent and policy.

O Requires the: ablhty to-plan and perforni difficult wark where: only general methods ar¢ available. Involves
highly téchnical or itvolved projects, presenting new Or constantly changing pmblems Requires outstanding
Judgemcnt and .initiative -in dealing: with coniplex factors not -éasily evaluated, also, making decisions for
which there is.little precedent.

O chulrcs the ability to plan and perform cornplcx work that mvolves new Or constantly changmg problems.
where there is little acccptcd method or proccdure Involves partlclpatlon in’ thé formulation and can-ymg out
of pollcnes objetives end prograrhs for major divisions. of functions. Conmdemblc ingenuity and
cxccptlonal Judgcmcnt reqiiired to deal wnth factors riot easily-evaluated, interpret results and make decisions
carrying.a great deal of respons:blhty Direct or, coordmate the.vork of ubordinate: superwsnon in order to
attain objectives.

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE:
1. Master’s:Degree.in‘Social Work of sifmilarand a valid New Hamipshire License in Social Work or similar preferred.

2. Ability to work cffectively with adolescents; familiés, and professnonals from a wide. .range of cultural, social and
.econommic backgrounds

3. Three to five years of experience working with ai.adolescent population preferred.

4. BLS preferfed.

New Positicn Developed: 07/13
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Manches(cr Co:omunlty l-lcalth Ccntcr
Job-Deseription h

Job Tltlc ) Behnworal Hcald’n Consultant/BHWET Facmtator
»chorts To:. D:rector of Soclal Smnccs
FLSA Status: Exempt

‘Sum mnry Provsdo behavigral: hcalth oonsultatnon to chnldren, adoléscents; adults and fainilies in 6rder to |mprovc
psychosomal ﬁmctlomn,g as'a. component of the mulh dlscuplmary hoalthcarc team. THis: mponsublltly moludcs i
referrals lo othor MCHC staﬁ" communny agency rcferra!s hc_oithmm: lcam collaborauon (to mcludc casc

"ﬁ:U'bmoﬁts

,-Ruponslbillties- Incliide the followmg

f
LIl

Prowde comprehensive nssessme.nt, consultntlon, d.lagnosls bnef mterventlon of psychologlcallpsychlaMc
problems andfor dlsordcrs

“Provide’ oﬁoctwo trcalmont plannmg and assnstmg cllents in. successfully achlevmg goals mcludmg
mf‘ormal:lon and'refcrral, ndvocacy &nd case manngemont

Actwcly partlclpatc in: mcotmgs that suppon MCHC's uneg'atcd kealth ¢are model to provide:
comprehenswe care for chem.s mcludmg consulmtjon with’ modlcal staft.

Assust inthe: detecnon ofr“ar risk": ‘patients’and devclopmeut of plans to prévent further. psychologncal or
physml dctenoranon

managomcnt tcchmques case managcment md patlcnt oducanon to :mprove self-managcmont oﬁchromc

: dlscase

Works collaboratwcly.wnm pnmary providers and:other- mvolved clmlcal staff to develdp. and implémeiit:
‘care plans for. patlcnts

Teaoh pahents, familics; and smff CaTe. prcvenuon and treatment enhancément tcchmqucs'

) Shoﬂ-tcrm counschng

Mmmmn nccurute tlmely documcnumon in: the chent s medlcal record of all. chmtfcontacts case plannmg
«and"the- clierit’s. plan ‘of ‘care: Al documcnmhon in- ﬂle cllent 5 medlcal record must ‘be Ieg1blo and. oasﬂy
understood by anyonc who may neéd 1o nccess the. record

Reséarch available matcnals or. develop now ma(cmls»whcn appropriate. that Caiy ‘be used by chent:s and/ar:

. famllles-to romforcc vorbal mformatlon gwcn by MCHC staff {For oxamplc how 0 apply for Socnal

Support dovelopment of framowork and rnatcnals for lhe Student Intcmshlp ‘Progrim:

‘Attend all mandatory safcty-relatod and; mfoctlon contro] m—scnnm oﬂ‘crcd

Scnsitmty to: culturai dworsny of populanon bemg served. Mmmams clncm ngc-rclated competoncles
Fo]]ow all Personnel POllC!CS as described'in Employoe Oncutatlon Ha.ndbook’reoolvod at lhc time of
employment.

Other dunes as: as.v.lgned

Reguirements

.
..

Excellent working knowledge.of behavioral mediine and evidéncé-based treatments for médical and méental
' hcalth condttlons

Abl[lty to work through brief patient contactsas well as.fo mako -quick-and:accurdte- chmcal asscssments of
mcntal and. bchaworal ‘conditions.

‘BehavioralHealth Corisittant Peige | of 3



Should be comfortable with the pace of primary care, working with an interdisciplinary teem, and have
strong communication skills.

Goad knowledge of psycho-pharmacology

Ability to design and implcment clinical pathways and protocols for treatment of selected chronic conditions.

Kil} flities;

In addition, the individual must possess the knowledge, skills, and abilities, or be able to explain and demonstrate that
they can perform the primery functions of the Job using some other combination of skills and ebilities with or without
reasonable accommodations. They will possess the necessary physical requirements with or without the aid of
mechanical devices to safely perforin the primary functions of the job.

1.

[ ¥V ]

© = =

10,
.
12.

Physical requirements include ebility to extend hand(s) and arm(s) in any direction; pick, pinch, type or
otherwise work primarily with fingers; stand for sustained periods of time and move about on foot to
accomplish tasks; raise objects from & lower to a higher position or move objects horizontally from position
to position; apply pressure to an object with fingertips; sustain substantial movement of wrists, hands and/or
fingertips.

Ability to express or exchange ideas by means of the spoken word.

Ability to receive detailed information through oral communication and make fine discrimination in sound.
Ability to interact effectively with people of varied educational, socioeconomic and ethnic backgrounds, skill
levels and value systems; to work with frequent interruptions and to respond appropriately to unexpected
situations. Excellent listening skills.

Ability to exert up to twenty (20) pounds of force occasionally aad/or negligible amount of force frequently
or constantly to lift, carry, punch, pull, or otherwise move objects. Primary functions involve sitting, as well
as stooping, kneeiing, crouching, and reaching, walking, particularly for long distances, and standing for
sustained periods of time.

Visual acuity sufficient for work which deals largely wilh preparing and analyzing data and (igures,
accounting, computer terminal opcration, extensive reading, and visual perceplion involving smali
parts/defocts,

Excellent written, verbal communication and social skills,

Ability to endure periods of heavy workload or excessive stress.

Knowledge of data basc and spreadsheet software systems. Computer skills preferred and basic financial
skills, as well as analytical skills for trend and situational analysis desired.

Ability to transport sclf to meetings, events and affiliated vendors.

Not substantially exposed to adverse environmental conditions

Based on the mental requirements of the position, please check below the ADA statement that best fits the
position. Choose ONLY ONE from below:

Requires the ability to understand and follow simple instructions and Lo use simple equipment involving few
decisions.

Reguires the ability 1o perform repetitive or routine duties working from detailed instructions end understand
procedures. Requires the making of minor decisions.

Requires the ahility to plan and perform diversified duties requiring an extensive knowledge of a particular
field and the use of a wide range of procedures. Involves the exercise of judgment in the analysis of facts
and conditions regarding individual problems or transactions W determine what actions should be tnken
within the limits of standard practice.

Requircs the ability to plan end perform a wide vericty of dutics requiring general knowledge of policies and
procedures. Requires considerable judgment w work independently toward general results, devising
methods, modifying or adapting standard procedures to meet different conditions, making decisions based on
precedent and policy.

Requires the ability to plan and perform difficult work where only general methods are available. Involves
highty technical or involved projects, presentimg new or constantly changing problems. Requires outstanding
judgment und initiative in dealing with complex factors not easily evaluated, also making decisions for which
there is littlc precedent.

Requircs the ability to plan and perform complex work that involves new or constantly changing problems
where there is littie accepted method or procedure, Involves participation in the formulation and carrying out
of policies, objectives and programs for major divisions or functions. Considerable ingenuity and
exceptiona! judgment required to deal wilh lactors not easily evaluated, interpret results and make decisions

Behavioral Health Consultant Page 2 of 3



carrying a greal deal of responsibility. Direct aad coordinate the work of subordinate supervision in order to
attain objectives.

+ Education/Training: Master’s Degree in Social Work or other related field from 2n accredited graduate
school.

s Experience: Two years' experience in healthcare field. Must demonstrate knowledge of community
resources and the ability to network, Experience with low-income and multi-cuftural populations necessary.

«  Computer Skills: To perform this job successfuily, an individual should have knowledge of Waord Processing
saftware.

¢  Certificates and Licenscs: Licensed or working towards licensure in the State of NH as a Licensed
Independent Clinical Social Worker (LICSW) or other related field.
BLS preferred.
Skills: Ability to work independently. Bilingual ability in English and Spanish preferred.

This is a CATEGORY 2 job (with regard to OSHA):

No rcasonably anticipated exposure to bloed and body fluids in completing this job.

Reviewed/revised 0872002, 0672003

Behavioral Health Consultant Page 3 of 3



MANCHESTER COMMUNITY:HEALTH CENTER

JOB.DESCRIPTION

¢ Inttiatives for Children

40B SUMMARY-

The Director of Strategic Initiatives for- Children leads intérmal and: extemal efforts o design. and coordlnate ,pragrams and servlces to.
suppart: chIIdren In. Manchester The Dlrector of Strategic Inltiatives for Children (Director] facllitates the Local Councll ‘on'Young
Child Wellness (Local Council), -a committee. of the Manchester Health Department Neighborhood Health lmprovement Strategy
Leadershlp Team whose: respons[bllltles include the’ development and implementation overslght of astrateglc plan. The Director |s
responsible for. all aspects of mnmratlve progra mmlng, lncludlng plannlng. developlng, Implementlng, and. evaluatlng programs o
‘meet.the mlsslon vision and:strategic goals of Manchester Communltv Health Center The Birecttr-will collaboratlvely develop and’
maintain‘a dynamrc portfoiio-of child and famlly-focused programs;,

(OB RELATIONSHIPS:

Responsible to.the: Prestdent/Chief Executlve Oﬂlcer \Responsible for: overslght of. Adverse Childhaod Experlences Response
Team (ACERT) and’ supervislon of other éarly-¢hildhood wellness: project dlrectors/coordrnators as assigned. by,the
PresidenthEO

RESPONSIBILITIES AND AUTHORITIES:

Thls positlon is responslble for overslght of all Iocal svstem of childhood inltiatlves to lmprove outcomes for children and their

|n|tiat|ves for. Chlldren Include

1. Collaborate -with ! the: CEO relatlve to:
a_. Engaglng-in outreach strateglc partnerships,:and.developing and recommending long-term strategies and goals for
the ¢ orga ization.
B: Developing innovatlve and, strateglc programsto expand MCHC’ 5  role-3 as a leadér In comimunity wellness
c. Developlng or: malntainlng program partnershlps
Expand exlstlng programs
2. Supports MCHC senior.leadershlp to. understand plan for,.and successfully Implement ‘and: sustain Inltlatwes that bunld on
the. exlstlng strengths oF A MGHC sennces respond to the Iargest gaps. ln servlces and su pports for chlldren and famlliesL and
has mlnlmal adverse unintendéd:: consequences on, the exlsting system
-3 Increase rnteragency collaboratlon wlth cltvwlde partners, Includlng the Manchester Health Department to coordlnate
) *plannlng and lrnplementatlon actlvltles
4. Lead and collaborate across MCHC departménts to develop and lmplement programs
5. . Serves s-Strateglc'lIalson for ltey organitatton inltlatwes between all; programs, departments. and: theélr stakeholders
»6. ConVene the Local Council to facllltate completlon of & Manchester Early Chlldhood Wellness' Strateglc Plan and assoclatedi

n-Y

7 -Engage Internal and external stakeholders to advance early chlldhood pollcles and |nit|atlves for chlldren »

8.’ Communlcate regularly with: approprlate State of NH departments and dlvislons and’ partlclpate on the. Spark NH Councll
and/or relevant commtttees

9, Oversees the Iaunr:h of. an lnitlatwe and exet:utlon of .contracts with the des!gnated agencues

10 Work wlth the local system regardlng lmplementatlon of evidence: based practlces ind workforce development.

11 Attend’ and partlclpate in other MCHC meetings as dlrected if absent responsu:le for. readmg of minutes dnd’ slgnlng the
documentation

13. Malntain current licensure bv ongolng professlonal educatlon (If applicable)

14 Malntaln sensltlvlty to cultural diversity of. populatlon served Maintain, client’ age-related competence

15. Other. responsibllltles as asslgned by supervisor.

“In: addition; lndivldual must’ possess t this: knowledge and these. skills and abilltles or be ableto explaln andderonstrate thatihe
mdlwdual can perform the primary functions of the; job with ar. wlthout reasonable accommodatlon uslng some’ other comblnatlon



of skll]s and abulities and to possess the necessary phvs:cal regiiiféments wuth or mthout the-aid. of,mechanlcal devices to safety
'perform the’ primary functlons of the job,

1. Physncal requnrements include ability to éxtend handls)‘and arrn(sj In any dlrection plck plnch ‘typear. otherwlse work

prlmarlly with ﬁngers standfor- sustamed penods of time: and move: about on foot to: accomplish tasks;: ralse objects from’ a

Iower toa hlgher posltlon or move objects horlzontallv from? position to’ positlon, apply pressure to an object witha ’

i”ngertips ~sustam substantlal movement of wrists hands and/or ﬂngertips

Abllity to- express or exchange ideas: bv means: of the' spoken word

Abllity to receive detalled Informauon through oral communlcation and make fine: discrlminatlon in. sound. .

Abliity to lnteract effectlvelv with people of varled educationai socloeoonomic and-ethric. backgrounds. ‘skill levels and’,

value systems to. work’ wlth frequent lnterruptlons and to- respond appropriateiy to unexpected st atlons Excellent

Iistening skllls

'S Abillty to exert up to twenty (20] pourds of force oocaslonally and/or negllglble amount of force frequently or constantly to..-

*lift; carry;. punch pulI ot othigrwisé move:objects. Primary. functlons lnvolve slttlng, as well as, stooping, kneellng,

crouching, and reaching, walking.,particularly for. Iongldlstances and. standlng for, sutainéd peruods of time.

6, Visual aciity: suff uent for.work. which: deals largely with: preparmg ang’ analyzing data and figures, “accounting, computer
termlnal operation exténsive readlng, and: visual perceptlon Ifvohrig:s small partsfdefects i

B

7. Exceltént Written; verbil, communicatlon and sactal skills
8, Ablllty ta. endure perlods of heavy.vvorkload or. excesswe stress.”
9, Knowledge of data base and spreadsheet software systems + Computer skills: preferred and basic financial‘skills;.as.well as

analytical skllls for. trend and situational analysls desired
10: Abllity to transport self to meetlngs, events.and affi Iiated vendors
21 Not: substant:ally exposed o adverse environmental conditlons

‘Based on the “r_neg""t‘él requirements of. the position, this ADA statement best fits'the-pasition:

o Requlres the. ability to; plan and perform complex work that involves new or. constzntly changlng problems whére. there' is. litte
accepted method or procedure. Involves partldpatlon in the formulatlon andtcarrvlng out of poliaes objectlves and’ programs

-subordmate supervislon in order to attam‘objectlves

QUALIFICATIO!

'ESSENTIAL KNOWLEDGE SKILLS AND ABlLITIES
1 Demonstrated Ieadershlp skllls and ablllty toinfluence and motivate’ constltuencles that: oould span multipté orgamzatlonal
boundaries

2. Ahllltv to organlze. coordlnate. and lead diverse people into.effective committees and. task farces.

3, lDemonstrated excellent plannlng, organizatlonal and analvucal skills..

4. Demonstrated.ability to' make: sound business dedsions uslng good business'judgment and innovatlve and;creative.

problem-solwng

5. Demonstrated: abl]nty to’ manage financlal organlzatlonal and; staff=resources

65, Excellent lnterpersonal and communlcatlons skills"with the abllltv to. cultlvate professlonal and business: partnerships

7. Broad based strateglc plannlng experlence

B bil|tv to-evaluate the. effectlveness of programs andito provide guldance in: preparlng néw and/or improvlng programs.

9 Exeellént and effective commumcatnons skills; Includlng the ablllty to write wéll and' make cléar, condse verbal

. presentataoﬁs ind written reports

10-._ Knowledge of childhood development across, phvslcal mental;; social): emot:onal,,and beh_avio,ral domains and' related
rservice systems

Al Abillty £ mobllize sefvice systems, management npohcv analysis:and strategic. thlnklng, “Abilltyto foster collaboratlve

’ reiatuonshlps, communicate effectively wlth‘professional and- admimstrauve personnel; -exercise: judgment and-discretion in”
.applvlng and- lnterpreting policies and: procedures

12 ’Abllrtv or work with. lndlviduals and. groups ina. culturally and lingulstlcally oornpetent manneér.

13 Expertise in-the- provision of thildhood health.and mental health preventlon services:

MINIMUM EDU(‘ATIGN AND: EXPERIENCE REQUIREMENTS A master’s degree in.early: childtiood: development of educatlon orlpubllc
or human service admmistratlon ora. chlld development or human servlces progr_ammatlc ﬂeld and a mirimum-of four, vears of

Ak



SALARY RANGE: (EXEMPT POSITION)
This Is a CATEGORY 4 job (with regard to OSHA):
There is no reasanably anticipated exposure to blood and body fluids in completing this job.

Educated regarding "Enforcement Policy and Procedures for Occupational Exposure to Tuberculosis,” induding use of NIOSH
approved high efficiency particulate air (HEPA) respirators.

MANCHESTER COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER (EOE)
New Description developed: 11/2014

Revised 02/2016

Revised 03/2018

Signature: Date:
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June 30, 2017 and 2016

with Independent Auditor's Report



Board of Directors
Manchester Community Health Center
Page 2

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present faity, in all material respects, the
financial position of Manchester Community Health Center as of June 30, 2017 and 2016, and the
results of its operations, changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended, in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Bw.a Dasrnn Me el § Freddad,, Losl

Portiand, Maine
December 6, 2017



MANCHESTER COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER

Statements of Operations

‘Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

Operating revenue
Patient service revenue
Provision for. bad debts

Net patient service revenue

Grants and‘contracts

Other operating-réevenue

Net assets released from restiiction for operations
Tatal operating revenue

Operating expenses
Sdlaries-and bénéfits
Other operahng .expense

Depreciation *
Intefest expense

Total ppérating expenses
Operating (loss) income
Other revenues and gains
Contributions
Invéstmentincome
Equity. in eamings from limitéd liability company
Total other revenues and gains

(Deficit) excess of revenue over expenses

Grants for capital acquisition
Net assets released from restriction for capital acquisition

(Decrease) increase in-unrestricted net assets

$ 9,734,445 $ 9,284,028
1,687,439)  (1,098,074)
8,047,006  8,185954
6832720 6,397,842
104,554 154,857
_IJ.E.M __53.3.25&‘
12,556,077 10,658,870
4,579,067 4,221,587
336,129 311,809
54071 __ .38.875

11.824.965) __47.470

194,463
1,166

199,724

(1,625,241)

69; 001
323,523

209,687
984

226,374

273,844
79,924

$(1.227:547) $__353.768

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

.4.



MANCHESTER:COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER

Statérnents of Cash Fiows

Years:Ended Juné 30,2017 and. 2016

Cash flows from-operating activities
Change in fet: assets

Adjustments to.réconcile.change‘in net-asséts to net cash: (used)

provlded by operatmg activities.
Prowsaon for bad debts
Depreclat]on ,
Equ:ty in. eammgs from Ilmlted llablmy cornpany
'Contnbuhons and. -grants- for Iong—term purposes
Increase |n the fo!lowmg assets_
Grants and other reoefvables
aPrepald expenses ‘
Increase in: the followmg Ilabllmes
tACGOL_lntS payable and accmed,expenses

‘Net cash (used) provi‘dedﬁby. q;:)éraﬁng,ai:tiviti'es

‘Cash ﬂows from investlng actwltles

Capltal expendltures
.Net'cash \séd by-invéstinig activities
-_Cash ﬂows frorn ﬁnancmg‘actmueSr

Proceeds fmm Ilne of credlt
Payments*on line of credrt
Payments on long-term debt

Net cash, provided by-ﬁhancing activities.
Net (decrease) mcrease in cash and cash equwalents

Poatiied

- Casfi-and Tash gquivalents; Beginfiing of year

,éa'sh‘ andicash é'c‘;u‘ivaients énd of 'yéaf‘

Cash paid for nntemt
Capttal expendltures in accounts: payable

‘$ 54071 $

$ 9_,9 88) $ 359794

4,687,439, 1,088,074
-338,120. 371,809
J(4,095)  (15:703)
(726,960).  .(79:924)
(1:690,516). (1.219.342)
376.418).  (73,969)
('11.9!?59)." (24,094)
573'177 157,242
-4 2_5 077 _ 312467

._(1.9.&.9.&1)_&&33

150 000 (75,000)
(902,418) . (215 153)
:@52.11.&) _(299.151)
7261960 79,024
'920:000 -

'(110 0000 . -

* Syt LT e e
[ L

'-——-‘-u,. — e

(352 883) 568,122
_1..925.17_3 Jﬁ.ﬁ_ﬁi
.$ - §71 .§gg $,_ .Qg&.ZZQ

38,875
'321 590 -

The acoompanymg notés aré an Integral part of these ﬂnancual statements

-6-



MANCHESTER.COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER
Notes t6.Finaricial Stateniarits.

<hine-30;,.2017-and 2016

A. reconcrllatlon of-the.allowance forluncollectlble aocounts follows

2017 2016
Balancelbegmmng of.year -$ 1 391 5T § 608,028
Prowsnon 1,687, 439 1, 098 074
Wme'OffS .L’IMZ) _(.3.1&..35.5)
'_B_é!afl¢e; e__r‘;d-of-ye_a’r' 3_1.3_03.3_% 5_1..3.91.]_@

10 challenges w1th credentlahng of providers and tlrnely fi lmg Ilmlts |mposed by managed -re
oompanles
Grants andi Otfier Réceivablés

‘Grants’ -angd- othér recelvables are stated at. the. ramount management expectsh tor collect "fram
outstandlng belanoes»All such .amounts‘are con5|dered collectlble o

-

e =.. - D

‘Investment ln Limited. Ltablli'v‘ Com an;_’-’

. Jhe Organlzation is:one’of: elght partners who ‘each: made @ capltal contrlbutlon of $500 to anary
'Health Cars . Partners \LLC 1(PHCP) dunng 2015\ The Grgamzahon s mvestment In vPHCP is
reported usrng the- equuty methodland the‘lnvestment amounted to: $20 298 and $16; 203 at June-
30 2017 and: 2016»respect:vely

Assets lelted as to Use

e

Assets Ilmrted as to- use oonsust of cash.and cash equrvalents and represent assets de5|gnated by’

-Propertyvand equipment acquusmons aré recorded at costor E)eprec:at:on is"providéd gver the
.estjmated useful 'life: of each class of: deprecnable asset and is oomputed onr*the stralght-llne‘
-methodl

‘GIﬂ:S of Iong-llved assets such as. Iand buuldmgs;, ot equrpment are reported as*unrestncted nat.
'assets :and excluded from the (deﬁclt) excess of revenue!over exp-enses unless explrc:t donor

~restnct|ons that specrfy howrth assets areato be'used and glﬂs ofucash or other assels lhat must

donated or: acqunred long-llved assets are placed in. serwce




MANCHESTER COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER
Notes to Financial Statemeénts

June 30, 2017-and 2016

Charity Care

The Organization provndes care to-patients who-meet. certain.critéria under its charity care palicy
without charge or. at amounts less than its established rates. Because the Orgamzatson does not
pursue collection of amounts determined to qualify. as charﬂy care, they are not reported as net
patient service revenue.

Fun ctlonal Expenses

Thé- Organizabon provides various services to résidents within its. geographic location. Expenses
related to providing these services are as.follows:

2017 2016
Prograni services $15,198,514 $13,439,463
Admlnlstrative and general 2,138,503 1,619,871
Funci_ralgl.qg 188327 _ _171.807
Total $17.525.344 $15.231.141

_(De‘ﬁt:it]‘Ex‘cess of Revefiue Over Ex@ nses.

The statements of opérations reflect the (deﬂclt) excess, of revenue over expenses Changas in
unreslncted net assets which are excluded from the (deﬁcnt) excess of revenue: over .expenses,
consistent wuth mdustry practlce lnclude contnbutlons cf Iong Iived -assets (mcludmg assets
acquired using contnbutlons which, by donor restriction, were to be used for the purposes of
aoqumng such assets)

‘For purposes; of the preparation of these financial statements, managément has considered
transactions of évents occurring through December 6, 2017, the date that the financial statéments
were avallable 1o be issued. Management has not, evaluated subsequent events-after.that date for
inclusion in the financial statements.

-10 -



MANCHESTER COMMUNITY HEALTH. CENTER
Notes to-Flnanciat Statements

June 30,2047:and 2016

The. 'Organization has.a promissory- note with Cltizens -Bank, N.:A, (Cltlzens) for the purchase of
the’ medlcal and office faclllty in. Manchester, New' Hampshtre ~The note is collaterahzed by the real
estate. rThe noté ls a five-year. balloon - note due December 1; 2018 10 be pald at. the: amortlzat:on
rate.of 25-years; The note is borrowed at a vanable interést rate with margms adjusted annually on
July 1 based: on the Organlzetlon g achlevement of wo- operatmg -performance. m:lestones
(2 8667% at. ..lune 30 2017). NHHEFA is parttcupat:ng in.the lendlng[ “for 30% -of ‘the" promlssory'
nété: Under the: NHHEFA program the. Interest raté on that portion is approxnrnatety 30% of the
Interest réte: charged by. szens

The Organlzatlon ls _réquired to-meet .an anriual mlnlmum»workmg capltal and’ debt semce-
coverage -as: deﬁned in the loan: agreernent with Cltlzens If the-évent- of default, Citizens has the
ophon to~tem1|nate the agreement and lmmedtately request payrnent of. the outstandmg debt
twlthout notice of »any klnd to the ' Organtzatlon After recelvmg a’'waiver: frorn Cltlzens to exclude
-certaln one-ume (items from the' debt ser\nce' coverage ulculabon the Organtzahon i in
oompl:anoe wlth aII Ioan -covenants at June 30 2017

2018 ‘3. 52“315
‘2019 1, 199 784‘
2020 .B; 115
12021 1518

2022i 58

‘Témporarity and permanently restricted nét asstsiconsisted of tié following:as.of diine 30;

Temporanly réstricted .
Program:36rvices $ .148927. §. 74,280
Chlld health serwces 269,272 356 884
papltal lmprovemenm (expended) 66 955 93, 546
Cap:tal improvements (not yet |n servuce) ..gg_sv, 0 5 = 7_&_ _,22_ ﬁQ
Total "$__810459' $..- 581.700
Permanently restrlc:ted
Work:ng capltal $.. 101,358 ls.ﬂ101 358

£ 12~



MANCHESTER COMMUNITY, HEALTH CENTER

Notes to Fmanclal Statements

Jurie'30;-2017-and; 2016

The Organlzatien provldes care to patlents who. meet oertarn cntena under\tts charlty care pollcy
without  charge: or at-amounts Iess than its. establsshed rates “The' Grganrzatlon‘estlmates the-costs
assoaaled with provudang charlty care. by calculatmg the tatio,of total cost to total:charges and then
*multiplymg that ratio by the- gross unoompensated charges assoclated with provlding care to
‘patierits. ehglbte for free care’ The eshmated cost of provndlng serwces to pahents andér ‘the
Orgamzat:on charrty care pollcy amounted 16:81, 620 083 and $1‘.649 562 for the; years endéd June
30,2017 and.2016: raspéctively”

The~®rganlzatlont is-able to- prov:de these serwces with*a. component:of \funds recelved through
Iocal oommunlty support and: fedéral; and statesgrants
‘Retiréifléri :Plan:

The Orgamzation has a definad: oontnbutlon plan undeér’ Intemal Revenue Code Sectlen 403(b) that
oovers substanhalty aII employees The Organlzatlon oontrlbuted 5289.444 and 5286 304 for the-

......

‘Céné"enj'ratioﬁ o‘f.'Rl-_s'k:,

The. Orgamzabon grants credit without collateral to'its patients,-mast of whorm are’ local nesadents
and' are insured. under ’Ihlrd-party payer agreements. Followung is-a stifmary of eocounts.
sreceivable; by fundlng source at June 30

Medicare 4% 15 %.
Medicaid 42 % 446 %
Other A% 30%

——100% . _. 100 %

—_— - = = —:.—..,‘_

The .rganlzatuon receives a: s:gmﬁcant amount of: grants from the U. S Department'of Health and
Human Semces {DHHS) As with all govemment fundlng~these glants are, sub}ect to- reductlon or

1 termmat:on n future years For the years ended June 30 201.7 andl~2016 grants from: DHHS‘
(mciudlng ‘both dtrect awards and awards passed through other orgamzatlons) re[:ir'"esented
approximately 81% and. 72% respectlvely ofgrants and: oontracts,revenue

- 14.=



MANCHESTER COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER
Notes to Financlal Statements
Junse 30, 2017 and 2016
During 2017, approximately $917,000 in bad debt write-offs oécurred for charges incurred in 2015

and 2016, and were primarily the result of ragulatory issues with credentialing of providers and
timely filing limits imposed by managed care insurers, and are not expected to recur in 2018. In

gddition, provider utilization declined in 2017 due to reduced capacity during renovations, which

will be completed in the first quarter of 2018. That utilization reduction was approximately
$290,000 in 2017.

In 2017, the Organization was awarded a grant and acted in good faith, incurming neary $250,000
in expénses to provide the sefvices, but never received the final signed prospective contract until
2018. Management also plans to implement enhanced charges in 2018 that will caphire servicas
currently being provided but not being billed for which is estimated to provide another $200,000 in
revenue annually, as well as expanding 340B pharmacy .activities which would also provide
another $100,000 annually.

-16-
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GRANT AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Subrecipient hereby
Mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS .
1. Identification and Definitions.

1.1, State Agency Name 1.2. State Agency Address
‘New Hampshire Department of Justice 33 Capitol St. Concord, NH 03301

1.3. Subrecipient Name _ 1.4. Subrecipient Address

YWCA New Hampshire 72 Concord St. Manchester, NH 03101

1.5 Subrecipient Phone # | 1.6. Account Number 17, Completion Date 1.8. Grant Limitation
603-625-5785 5897-072-500575 09/30/2021 ’ 71,577.00

i.9. Grant Officer for State Agency 1.10. State Agency Telephone Number

Kathleen B. Carr 603-271-1234

"By signing this form we certify that we have complied with any public meeting requirement for acceptance of this grant,
including if applicable RSA 31:95-b." -

1.11. Subrecipient Signature | 1.12. Name & Title of Subrecipient Signor |
M Jessica 61/-3M0_ | eCO
Subn\:?l,pient Signw If Applicable Name & Title of Subrecipient Signor 2 If Adpplicable

1.13. nowledgment State of New Hampshire, County of <H\“§b YW§

on|2 207|8 before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identifled in block 1.12., known to me (or
satisfactorily proven) to be the person whose name is signed in block 1.11., and acknowledged that he/she executed this
document in the capacity indicated in block 1.12. ’

, b,

LIS Signaturgs CATHERINE GAGNE, Notary Publlo
[ My Commisaion Explires March 23, 2021
(Sea) ~
1.1372. Nanig & lic o) Justice of the Peace
l.lfi.":'Sla[e\A‘g—mey-E-i'gﬁture(s) 1.15. Name & Title of State Agency Signor(s)
Ay

Xossaaon Coann  1-vn—1\9  Ledieon Coce' Didera & Admuin

1.16. roval by Attomey General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if G & C approval required)

By: - W ‘ Assistant Attorney General, On: [ //7/ [ﬂ7
Adpuqpt W

1.17. Approval by Governor and Council (if applicable)

By: On: 7

2.SCOPE OF WORK: In exchange for grant funds provided by the State of New Hampshire, acting through the Agency
identified in block 1.1 (hereinafter referred to as “the State™), the Subrecipient identified in block 1.3 (hereinafter referred to as
“the Subrecipient”), shall perform that work identified and more particularly described in the scope of work attached hereto as
EXHIBIT A (the scope of work being hereinafter referred to as “the Project”).

Rev. 972015 Page ] of 6 Subrecipient Initial(s): \] a&
. Date: l’?/l?’” 3




5.2.
53.

54.

5.5.

7.2

8.2

83

9.1.

Rev, 972015

AREA COVERED, Except as otherwise specifically provided for herein, the
Subrecipient shall perform the Project in, and with respect to, the Smlc of New
Hampshire.

F A N
‘This Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall become
effective on the date on the date of approval of this Agreement by the Governor
and Council of the State of New Hampshire if required (block 1.17), or upon
signature by the State Agency as shown in block 1,14 (“the effective date”).
Except as otherwise specifically provided hercin, the Project, including all
reports required by this Agreement, shall be completed in ITS entirety prior to
the date in block 1.7 (hercinafier referred to as “the Completion Date™),

. . V R -

The Grant Amount is identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT B,
attached hereto,
The manner of, and schedule of payment shall be as set forth in EXHIBIT B.
In accordance with the provisions set forth in EXHIBIT B, and in consideration
of the satisfactory performance of the Project, as determined by the Staie, and as
limited by subparagreph 5.5 of these general provisions, the State shall pay the
Subrecipient the Grant Amount. The State shall withhold from the amount
otherwise payable to the Subrecipient under this subparagraph 5.3 those sums
required, or permitted, to be withheld pursuant to N.H. RSA 80:7 through 7-¢.
The payment by the State of the Grant amount shall be the only, and the
complete payment to the Subrecipient for all cxpenses, of whatever nature,
incurred by the Subrecipient in the performance hercof, and shall be the only,
and the complete, compensation to the Subrecipient for the Project.  The State
shall have no ligbilities to the Subrecipient other then the Grant Amount.
Notwithstanding anything in this Agreemeni to the contrary, and
notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no cvent shall the total of all
paymenis suthorized, or actually made, hereunder exceed the Grant limitation
set forth in block 1.8 of these general provisions.

: W W
In connection with the performance of the Praject, the Subrecipicnt shall comply
with all statutes, laws regulations, and orders of federal, state, county, or
municipal authorities which shall impose any obligations or duty upon the
Subrecipient, including the acquisition of any and all necessary permits.

Between the Effective Date and the date three (3) years after the Completion
Date the Subrecipicnt shall keep detailed accounts of all expenses incurred in
cohnection with the Project, including, but not limited o, costs of
administration, transportation, insurance, telephone calls, and clerical materials
and services. Such accounts shatl be supported by receipts, invoices, bills and
other simitar documents.

Bertween the Effective Date and the date three (3) years after the Completion
Date, at any time during the Subrecipient’s normal business hours, and as often
as the State shall demand, the Subrecipient shall make available to the State ail
records pertaining to matters covered by this Agreement. The Subrecipient shall
permit the State to audit, examine, and reproduce such records, and 10 make
audits of all contracts, invoices, materials, payrolls, records of personnel, data
(as that term is hereinafter defined), and other information relating to all matters
covered by this Agreement, As used in this paragraph, “Subrecipient” includes
all persons, naturel or fictional, affiliated with, controlled by, or under common
ownership with, the entity identified as the Subrecipient in block 1.3 of these
provisions

The Subrecipiemt shall, a1 its own expense, provide all personnel necessary to
perform the Project, The Subrecipient warrants that all personnel engaged in the
Project shall be qualified to perform such Project, and shall be properly licensed
and authorized to perform such Project under all applicable laws.

The Subrecipient shall not hire, and it shall not permit any subcontractor,
subgrantee, or other person, firm or corporation with whom it is engaged in a
combined ¢ffort to perform the Project, to hire any person who has a contractual
relationship with the State, or who is a State officer or employee, elected or
appointed.

The Grant Officer shall be the representative of the State hereunder. In the event
of any dispute hereunder, the interpretation of this Agreement by the Grant
Officer, and histher decision on any dispute, shall be final.

As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all information and
things developed or obtained during the performance of, or acquired or
developed by reason of, this Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies,
reports, files, formulae, surveys, maps, chars, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic representations,
computer programs, compuier printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, paper, and
documents, all whether finished or unfinished.

v
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9.2,

9.3

9.4,

9.5.

Il
1.1

1L
11.1.2
11.1.3
11.1.4
1.2,

11.2.1

11,22

1123
11.24

12,
12.1,

122,

12.3.

12.4.

Between the Effective Date and the Completion Date the Subrecipient shall
grant to the State, or any person designated by it, unrestricted access to all data
for examination, duplication, publication, translation, sale, disposal, or for any
other purpose whatsoever.

No data shall be subject to copyright in the United Stetes or any other country by
anyone other than the State.

On and after the Effective Date all data, and any property which has been
received from the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose under
this Agreement, shall be the property of the Statg, and shall be retumed to the:
State upon demand or upon termination of this Agreement for any reason,
whichever shall first oceur.

The State, and anyone it shall designate, shall have unrestricted autherity to
publish, disclosc, distribute and otherwise use, in whole or in part, all data.
CONDITIONAL NATURE OR AGREEMENT. Notwuhslandmg anything in
this Agreement to the contrary, &ll obligations ‘of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are contingent upon
the availability or continued appropriation of funds, and in no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of such :available or
appropriated funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of those funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment umiil such funds become
available, if ever, and shall have the right 1o 1erminate this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Subrecipient notice of such termination, v
EVENT OF DEFAULT:; REMEDIES.

Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the Subrecipient shall
constitute an event of default hereunder (hercinafter referred to as “Events of
Default™):

Failure to perform the Project satisfactorily or on schedule; or

Failure to submit any report required hereunder; or

Failure to maintain, or permit access to, the records required hercunder; or
Failure to perform any of the other covenants and conditions of this Agrccmcm
Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may take any one, or
more, or all, of the following actions: ' '
Give the Subrecipient a written notice specifying the Event of Default and
requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of a greater or lesser
specification of time, thirty (30) days from the date of the notice; and if the
Event of Default is not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, ¢ffective two
{2) days after giving the Subreciptent notice of termination; and

Give the Subrecipient a written notice specifying the Event of Default and
suspending ali payments to be made under this Agreement and ordering that the
portion of the Grant Amount which would otherwise accrue to the Subrecipicnt
during the period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Subrecipient has cured the Event of Default shall never be
paid to the Subrecipicnt; and

Set off against any other obligation the State may owe to the Subrecipicnt any
damages the State suffers by reason of any Event of Default; and

Treat the agreement as breached and pursue any of its remedies at law or in
equity, or both.

In the event of any early termination of this Agreement for any reason other than
the completion of the Project, the Subrecipicnt shall deliver to the Grant Officer,
not later than fifieen (15) days after the date of termination, a report (hereinafter
referred to as the “Termination Repont™) describing in detail all Project Work
performed, and the Grant Amount eamed, to and including the date of
termination.

In the event of Termination under paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of these gencral
provisiogs, the approval of such a Termination Report by the State shall entitie
the Subrecipient to receive that portion of the Grant amount camed to and
including the date of termination,

In the event of Termination under paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of these general
provisions, the approvai of such a Termination Report by the State shall in no
event relieve the Subrecipient from any and all lisbitity for damages sustained or
incurred by the State as a result of the Subrecipient’s breach of its obligations
hereunder.

Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, cither the State or,
except where notice default has been given to the Subrecipient hereunder, the
Subrecipient, may terminate this Agreement without cause upon thirty (30) days
written notice.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST. No officer, member of employee of the
Subrecipient, and no representative, officer or employee of the Siate of New
Hampshire or of the governing body of the locality or locelities in which the
Project is o be performed, who exercises any functions or responsibilities in the
review or approval of the undertaking or carrying out of such Project, shall
participate in any decision relating to this Agreement which affects his or her

&S

Subrecipient [nitial(s):

Date; ki 24! 2&“5‘



17,
17,1

17.1.1

17.1.2

Rev. 972015

personal interest or the interest of any corporation, parinership, or association
in which he or she is directly or indirectly interested, nor shall he or she have
any personal or pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement or the
proceeds thereof.

1 : ATION TQ T| . In the performance of this
Agreement the Subrecipient, its employees, and eny subcontractor or
subgrantee of the Subrecipient are in all respects independent contractors, and
are neither agents nor cmployees of the State. Neither the Subrecipient nor any
of its officers, employces, agents, members, subcontractors or subgrantees,
shail have suthority to bind the State nor are they ¢ntitled to any of the benefits,
workmen's compensation or emoluments provided by the State to its
employces.

ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTS. The Subrecipient shall not assign,
or otherwise transfer any interest in this Agreement without the prior wriiten
consent of the State, None of the Project Work shall be subcontracted or
subgranted by the Subrecipient other than as set forth in Exhibit A without the
prior written consent of the State,

INDEMNIFICATION. The Subrecipient shall defend, indemnify and hold
harmless the State, its officers and employees, from and ageinst any and all
losses suflered by the State, its officers and employces, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penaltics asserted against the Siate, its officers and employees, by
or on behalf of any person, on account of, based on, resulting from, arising out
of {or which may be claimed to arise out of} the acts or omissions of the
Subrecipient or subcontractor, or subgrantee or other agent of the Subrecipient.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein contained shall ‘'be deemed to
constitute a waiver of the sovercign immunity of the State, which immunity is
hereby reserved to the State. This covenant shall survive the termination of
this agreement,

The Subrecipient shall, at its own expense, obtain and maintain in force, or
shall require any subcontractor, subgrantee or assignee performing Project
work to obtain and maintain in force, both for the benefit of the State, the
following insurance: ’

Statutory workmen’s compensation and employees liability insurance for al
employees engaged in the performance of the Project, 2nd

Comprehensive public liability insurance against all claims of bodily injurics,
death or property damage, in amounts not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence
and $2,000,000 aggregate for bodily injury or death eny onc incident, and
$500,000 for property damage in any one incident; and
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The policies described in subparagraph 17.1 of this paragraph shall be the
standard form employed in the State of New Hampshire, issued by underwriters
acceptable to the State, and authorized to do business in the State of New
Hampshire. Each policy shall contain a clause prohibiting cancetlation or
modification of the policy carlier than ten (10) days after written notice thereof
has been received by the State.

WAIVER QOF BREACH. No failure by the Staie 1o enforce any provisions
hereof afier any Event of Default shall be deemed 8 waiver of its rights with
regard 1o that Event, or any subsequent Event. No cxpress waiver of any Event
of Default shall be deemed a waiver of any provisions hereof. No such failure of
waiver shall be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all
of the provisions hereof upon any further or other defaut on the part of the
Subrecipient.

NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party shall be deemed 10
have been duly delivered or given at the time of mailing by certified mail,
postage prepaid, in a United States Post Office addressed to the parties at the
addresses first above given.

AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived or discharged only
by an instrument in writing signed by the partics hereto and only afler approval
of such amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and Council of the
State of New Hampshire, if required or by the signing State Agency.
CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS. This Agreement shall be
construed in accordance with the law of the State of New Hampshire, and is
binding upon and inures to the benefit of the paries and their respective
successors and assignees. The captions and contents of the “subject” blank are
uscd only as a matter of convenience, and are not to be considered a part of this
Agreement or to be used in determining the intend of the parties hereto.

THIRD PARTIES. The parties hergto do not intend 10 benefit any third parties
and this Agreement shall not be construed to confer any such benefit.

ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be exccuted in a number
of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, constitutes the entire
agreement and understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings relating hereto.

SPECIAL PROVISIONS. The additional provisions set forth in Exhibit C

hereto are incorporated as part of this agreement,
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EXHIBIT A

-SCOPE OF SERVICES-

YWCA as Subrecipient shall receive a grant from the New Hampshire Department of
Justice (DOJ) for expenses incurred for services provided to victims of opioid crisis in
compliance with the terms, conditions, specifications, and scope of work as outlined in
the joint OVC federal Grant application titled; 2018 Enhancing Community Responses to
the Opioid Crisis: Serving Qur Youngest Crime Victims.

The Subrecipient shall be reimbursed by the DOJ based on budgeted expenditures
described in Exhibit B. The Subrecipient shall submit incurred expenses for
reimbursement on the state approved expenditure reporting form as provided.
Expenditure reports shall be submitted on a quarterly basis, within fifteen (15) days
following the end of the current quarterly activities. Expenditure reports submitted later
than thirty (30) days following the end of the quarter will be considered late and out of
compliance. For example, with an award that begins on January 1, the first quarterly
report is due on April 15" or 15 days after the close of the first quarter ending on March
3. :

Subrecipient is required to maintain supporting documentation for all grant expenses both
state funds and match if provided and to produce those documents upon request of this
office or any other state or federal audit authority. Grant project supporting
documentation should be maintained for at least 5 years after the close of the project.

Subrecipient shall be required to submit an annual application to the DOJ for review and
compliance.

Subrecipient shall be subject to periodic desk audits and program reviews by DCJ. Such
desk audits and program reviews shall be scheduled with Subrecipient and every attempt
shall be made by Subrecipient to accommodate the schedule.

All correspondence and submittals shall be directed to:
NH Department of Justice

Grants Management Unit

33 Capitol Street

Concord, NH 03301

603-271- 8090 or Thomas Kaempfer@doj.nh.gov.
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EXHIBIT B
-SCHEDULE/TERMS OF PAYMENT-

. The Subrecipient shall receive reimbursement in exchange for approved expenditure
reports as described in EXHIBIT A.

. The Subrecipient shall be reimbursed within thirty (30) days following the DOJ’s
approval of expenditures. Said payment shall be made to the Subrecipient’s account
receivables address per the Financial System of the State of New Hampshire.

. The State’s obligation to compensate the Subrecipient under this Agreement shall not
exceed the price limitation set forth in form P-37 section 1.8.

3a.The Subrecipient shall be awarded an amount not to exceed $71,577.00 of the

total Grant Limitation upon Governor and Council approval through 09//30/2021,
with approved expenditure reports. This shall be contingent on continued federal

funding and program performance.
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EXHIBIT C

-SPECIJAL PROVISIONS-

1. Subrecipients shall also be compliant at all times with the terms, conditions and
specifications detailed in the Special Conditions Appendix 1 which is subject to annual
review.

Page 6 of 6
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Appendix 1
1. Requirements of the award; remedies for non-compliance or for. materially false statements

The conditions of this award are material requirements of the award. Compliance with any,
certifications or assurances submitted by or on behalf of the recipient that relate to conduct
durmg the period of performance also is a material requnrement of this award.

Failure to comply with any one or more of these award requirements -- whether a condition set
out in full below, a condition incorporated by reference below, or a certification or assurance
related to conduct during the award period —may result in the Office of Justice Programs ("OJP")
taking appropriate action with respect to the recipient and the award. Among other things, the
OJP may withhold award funds, disallow costs, or suspend or terminate the award. '

The Department of Justice ("DOJ"), including OJP, also may take other legal action as
appropriate.

Any materially false, fictitious, or fraudulent statement to the federal government related to this
award (or concealment or omission of a material fact) may be the subject of criminal prosecution
(including under 18 U.S..C. 1001 and/or 1621, and/or 34 U.S .C. 10271-10273), and also may
lead to imposition of civil penaltles and administrative remedies for false claims or otherwise

(including under 31 U.S.C. 3729-3730 and 3801-3812).

Should any provision of a requirement of this award be held to be invalid or unenforceable by its
terms, that provision shall first be applied with a limited construction so as to give it the
maximum effect permitted by law. Should it be held, instead, that the provision is utterly invalid
or -unenforceable, such prpvision shall be deemed severable from this award. '

2. Applicability of Part 200 Uniform Requirements

The Uniform Administrétive Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements in 2 C.F.R.
Part 200, as adopted and supplemented by DOJin 2 C.F.R. Part 2800 (together, the "Part 200
Uniform Requirements') app]y to this FY 2018 award from OJP.

The Part 200 Uniform Reqmrements were ﬁrst adopted by DOJ on December 26, 2014, If this
FY 2018 award supplements funds previously awarded by OJP under the same award number
(e.g., funds awardec_l during or before December 20 14), the Part 200 Uniform Requirements
apply with respect to all funds under that award number (regardless of the award date, and
regardless of whether derived from the initial award or a supplemental award) that are obligated
on or after the acceptance date of this FY 2018 award.

For more infor,m_at'i_on and resources on the Part 200 Uniform Requirements as they relate to OJP

awards and subawards ("subgrants"), see the OJP website at
https://ojp.gov/funding/Part200UnifonnRequirements.htm.

1
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Record retention and access: Records pertinent to the award that the recipient (and any
subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier) must retain -- typically for a period of 3 years from the
date of submission of the final expenditure report (SF 425), unless a different retention period
applies -- and to which the recipient (and any subrecipient ("subgrantee™) at any tier) must
provide access, include performance measurement information, in addition to the financial
records, supporting documents, statistical records, and other pertinent records indicated at 2
C.F.R. 200.333. In the event that an award-related question arises from documents or other
materials prepared or distributed by OJ P that may appear to conflict with, or differ in some way
from , the provisions of the Part 200 Uniform Requirements, the recipient is to contact OJP
promptly for clarification.

3. Compliance with DOJ Grants Financial Guide

References to the DOJ Grants Financial Guide are to the DOJ Grants Financial Guide as posted
on the OJP website (currently, the "DOJ Grants Financial Guide" available at
https://ojp.gov/financialguide/DOJ /index.htm), including any updated version that may be
posted during the period of performance. The recipient agrees to comply with the DOJ Grants
Financial Guide.

4. Reclassification of various statutory provistons to a new Title 34 of the United States Code

On September I, 2017, various statutory provisions previously codified elsewhere in the U.S.
Code were editorially reclassified to'a néw Title 34, entitled "Crime Contro! and Law
Enforcement.” The reclassification encompassed a number of statutory provisions pertment to
OJP awards (that is, OJP grants and cooperative agreements), including many provisions
previously codified in Title 42 of the U.S. Code.

Effective as of September I, 2017, any reference in this award document to a statutory provision
that has been reclassified to the new Title 34 of the U.S. Code is to be read as a reference to that
statutory provision as reclassified to Title 34. This rule of construction specifically includes
references set out in award conditions, references set out in material incorporated by reference
through award conditions, and references $et out in other' award requirements.

5. Required training for Point of Contact and all Financial Points of Contact -
Both the Point of Contact (POC) and all Financial Points of Contact (FPOCs) for this award must
have successfully completed an "OJP financial management and grant administration training"

by 120 days after the date of the recipient's acceptance of the award. Successful completion of
such a training on or after January I, 2016, will satisfy this condition.

2
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In the event that either the POC or an FPOC for this award changes during the period of
performance, the new POC or FPOC must have successfully completed an "OJP financiat
management and grant administration training" by 120 calendar days after-- (1) the date.of OJP's
approval of the "Change Grantee Contact™ GAN (in the case of a néw POC), or (2) the date the
POC enters information on the new FPOC in GMS (in the case of a new FPOC). Successful
completion of such a training on or after J anuary I, 2016, will satisfy this condition.

A list of QJP trainings that O.I P will consider "OJP financial management and grant
admmlstratmn training" for purposes of this condition is avallable at
https://www.ojp.gov/training/fmts.htm . All trainings that satisfy this condition mc]ude a session
on grant fraud prevention and detection.

The recipient should anticipate that OJP will immediately withhold ("freeze") award funds if the
recipient fails to comply with this condition. The recipient's failure to comply also may lead OJP
to impose additional appropriate conditions on this award.

6. Requirements related to "de minimis” indirect cost rate ,

A recipient that is eligible under the Part 200 Umform Requ1rements and other appllcable law to
use the "de minimis" indirect cost rate described in 2 C.F.R. 200.414(!), and that elects to use the
"de minimis" indirect-cost rate, must ac_lv1se QOIJP in writing of both its eligibility and its election,
and must comply with all associated requirements in the Part 200 Uniform Requirements. The
"de minimis" rate may be applied only to modified total direct costs (MTDC) as defined by the
Part 200 Uniform Requirements. .

7. Requirement to report potentially duplicative f{lnding

If the recipient currently has other active awards of federal funds, or if the recipient receives any
other award of federal funds during the period of performance for this award, the recipient ,
promptly must determine whether funds from any of those other federal awards have been, are
being, or are to be used (in whole or in part) for one or more of the identical cost items for which
funds are provided under this award. If so, the recipient must promptly. notify the DOJ awarding
agency (OJP or OVW, as appropriate) in writing of the potential duplication, and, if so requested
by the DOJ awarding agency, must seek.a budget-modification or change-of-project-scope grant
adjustment notice (GAN) to eliminate any inappropriate duplication of funding. '

8. Requirements related to System for Award Management and Universal Ideﬁtiﬁer
Req_uirements :

The recipient must comply with applicable requirements regarding the System for Award
Management (SAM) currently accessible at https://www.sam.gov/. This includes applicable
requirements regarding registration with SAM, as well as mamtalmng the currency of
information in SAM.
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The recipient also must comply with applicable restrictions on subawards ("subgrants”) to first-
tier subrecipients (first-tier "subgrantees"), including restrictions on subawards to entities that do
not acquire and provide (to the recipient) the umque entity ideritifier required for SAM
registration.

The details of the recipient's obligations related to SAM and to unique entity identifiers are
posted on the OJP web site at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/SAM.htm (Award condition:
System for Award Management (SAM) and Universal Identifier Requirements), and are
incorporated by reference here. '

This condition does not apply to an award to an individual who received the award as a natural
person (i.e., unrélated to any business or non-profit organization that he or she may own or
operate in his or her name).

9. Requirement to report actual or imminent breach of personally identifiable information (PII)

The recipient (and any "subrecipient” at any tier) must have written procedures in place to
respond in the évent of an actual of imminent "breach" (OMB M-17-12) if it (or a subrecipient)--
1) creates, collécts, uses, processes, stores, maintains, disseminates, discloses, or disposes of
"personilly identifiable information (P11)" (2 CFR 200.79) within the scope of an QJP grant-
funded program or activity, or 2) uses or operates a "Federal information system" (OMB

Circular A-130). The recipient's breach procedures must include a requirement to report actual or
imminent breach of PII to an OJP Program Manager no later than 24 hours after an occurrence of
an actual breach, or the detection of an imminent breach.

10. All subawards ("subgrants") must have speciﬁc'federal authorization

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable
requirements for authorization of any subaward. This condition applies to agreements that -- for
purposes of federal grants administrative requirements -- OJP considers a "subaward" (and
therefore does not consider a procurement "contract').

The details of the reqi_;irement for authorization of any subaward are posted on the OJP web site
at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/Subaward Authorization.htm (Award condition: All subawards
("subgrants") must have specific federal authorization), and are incorporated by reference here.

11, Specific post-award approval required to use a noncompetitive approach in any procurement
contract that would exceed $ 150,000
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The recipient; and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable
requirements to obtain specific advance approval to use a noncompetitive approach in any
procurement contract that would exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold (currently, $
150,000). This condition applies to agreements that -- for purposes of federal grants
administrative requirements -- OJP considers a procurement "contract” (and therefore does not
consider a subaward),

The details of the requirement for advance approval to use a noncompetitive approach ina
procurement contract under an OJP award are posted on the OJP web site a
https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/NoncompetitiveProcurement.htm (Award condition: SpeCIﬁc
post-award approval required to, use a noncompetitive approach in a procurement contract (if
contract would exceed $ 150,000)), and are incorporated by reference here. '

12. Requirements pertaining to prohibited conduct related to trafficking in persons (including
reporting requirements and OJP authority to terminate award)

The recipient, and any subrecipient-("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable
reqmrements (including requirements to report allegations) pertammg to prohibited conduct
related to the trafficking of persons, whether on the part of recipients, subrecipients
("subgrantees"), or individuals defined (for purposes of this condition) as "employees" of the
recipient or of any subrecipient. "

The details of the recipient's obligations related to prohibited conduct related to trafficking in
persons are posted on the QJP web site at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/ProhibitedConduct-
Trafficking.htm (Award condition: Prohibited conduct by recipients and subrecipients related to
trafficking in persons (including reporting requirements and OJP authonty to terminate award}),
and are incorporated by reference here. :

13, Compliance with applicable rules regarding approval, planning, and rep,@rting of conferences,
meetings, trainings, and other events

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable
laws, regulations, policies, and official DOJ guidance (mcludmg specific cost limits, prior
approval and reporting requirements, where applicable) governing the use of federal funds for
expenses related to conferences (as that term is defined by DOJ) , including the provision of food
and/or beverages at such conferences, and costs of attendance at such conferences.

Information on the pertinent DOJ definition of conferences and the rules applicable to this award
appears in the DOJ Grants Financial Guide (currently, as section 3.10 of "Postaward
Requirements" in the "DOJ Grants Financial Guide").
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14. Requirement for data on performance and effectiveness under the award -

The recipient must collect and maintain data that measure the performance and effectiveness of
work under this award. The data must be provided to OJP in the manner (including within the
timeframes) specified by OJP in the program solicitation or other applicable written guidance.
Data collection supports compliance with the Government Performance and Results Act (GPRA)
and the GPRA Modernization Act 0f201 0, and other applicable laws.

15. OJP Training Guiding Principles

Any training or training materials that the recipient -- or any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any
tier -- develops or delivers with OJP award funds must adhere to the OJP Training Guiding
Principles for Grantees and Subgrantees, available at https
:/lojp.gov/funding/Implement/TrainingPrinciplesForGrantees-Subgrantees.htm.

16. Effect of failure to address audit issues

The recipient understands and agrees that the DOJ awarding agency (OJP or OVW, as
appropriate) may withhold award funds, or may impose other related requirements, if (as
determined by the DOJ awarding agency) the recipient does not satisfactorily and promptly
address outstanding issues from audits required by the Part 200 Uniform Requirements (or by the
terms of this award), or other outstanding issues that arise in connection with audits,
investigations, or reviews of DOJ awards.

17. Potential imposition of additional requirements’

The recipient agrees to comply with any additional requirements that may be imposéd by the
DOJ awarding agency (OJP or OVW, as appropriate) during the period of performance for this
award, if-the recipient is designated as "high risk" for purposes of the DOJ high-risk grantee list.

18. Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination - 28 C.F.R.
Part 42

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable
requirements of 28 C.F.R. Part 42, specifically including any applicable requirements in Subpart
E of 28 C.F.R. Part 42 that relate to an equal employment opportunity program.

19. Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination - 28 C.F.R.
Part 54 '
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The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicab]e
requirements of 28 C.F R. Pan 54, which relates to nondlscnmmatlon on the basis of sex in
certain "education programs.”

20. Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights a.nd nondisc_ri_mih_ation -28 C.F.
R. Part 38 ,

The recipient,-and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any ‘t‘i_er, must comply with_ all applicable
requirements of 28 C.F.R. Part 38, specifically including any applicable requirements regarding
written notice to program beneficiaries and prospective program beneficiaries.

Among other things, 28 C.F.R. Part 38 includes rules that prohibit specific forms of
discrimination on the basis of religion, a religious belief, a refusal to hold a religious belief, or
refusal to attend or participate in a religious practice. Part 38 also sets out rules and requirements
that pertain to recipient and subrecipient ("subgrantee") organizations that engage in or conduct
explicitly religious activities, as well as rules and requirements that pertain to recipients : and
subrecipients that are faith-based or religious organizations.

The text of the regulation, now entitled "Partnerships with Faith-Based and Other Neighborhood
Organizations," is available via the Electronic Code of Federal Regulations (currently accessible
at https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/ECFR ?page=browse), by browsing to Title 28- J udicial
Administration, Chapter I, Part 38, under e-CFR "current” data .

21. Restrictions on "lobbymg

In general, as a matter of federal law, federa] funds awarded by OJP may not be used by the
recipient, or any subrecipient (" subgrantec“) at any tier, either directly or indirectly, to support or
oppose the enactment, repeal, modification, or adoption of any law, regulation, or policy, at any
level of government. See 18 U.S .C. 1913. (There may be exceptions if an applicable federal
statute specifically authorizes certain activities that otherwise would be barred by law.)

Another federal law generally prohibits federal funds awarded by OJP from being used by the
recipient, or any subrecipient at any tier, to pay any person to influence (or attempt to influence)
a federal agency, a Member of Congress, or Congress (or an official or employee of any of them)
with respect to the awardmg of a federal grant or cooperative agreement, subgrant, contract,
subcontract, or loan, or with respect to actions such as renewing, extending, or modifying any
such award. See 31 USs.C. 1352. Certain exceptions to this law apply, including an exception
that applies to Indian tribes and tribal organizations. .

Should any question arise as to whether a particular use of federal funds by a recipient (or
subrecipient) would or might fall within the scope of these prohibitions, the recipient is to
contact OJP for guidance, and may not proceed without the express prior written approval of
OJP.
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22. Compliance with general appropriations- law restrictions on the use of federal funds (FY
2018)

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee"} at any tier, must comply with all applicable
restrictions on the use of federal funds set out in federal appropriations statutes. Pertinent
restrictions, including from various "general provisions" in the Consolidated Appropriations Act,
2018, are set out at https:/ojp. gov/fundmg/Explore/F Y 1 8 AppropriationsRestrictions.htm, and
are mcorporated by reference here.

Should a question arise as to whether a particular use of federal funds by a recipient (or a
subrecipient) would or might fall within the scope of an appropriations-law réstriction, the
recipient is to contact OJP for guidancé, and may not proceed without the express prior written
approval of QJP.

23. Reporting Potential Fraud, Waste, and Abuse, and Similar Misconduct

The recipient and any subrecipients ("subgrantees") must promptly refer to the DOJ Office of the
Inspector General (OIG) any credible evidence that a principal, employee, agent, subrecipient,
contractor, subcontractor, or other person has, in connection with funds under this award -- {I)
submitted a claim that violates the False Claims Act; or (2) committed a criminal or civil
violation of laws pertaining to fraud, conflict of interest, bribery, gratuity, or similar misconduict.

Potential fraud, waste, abuse, or misconduct involving or relating to funds under this award
should be reported to the OIG by-- (I} mail directed to: Office of the Inspector General, U.S.
Department of Justice, Investigations Division, 1425 New York Avenue, N.W. Suite 7 100,
Washington, DC 20530; and/or (2) the DOJ OIG hothine: (contact inférmation in English and
Spanish) at (800) 869-4499 (phone) or (202) 6 16-9881 (fax).

Additional information is available from the DOJ OIG website at https:/oig.justice.gov/hotline.
24. Restrictions and certifications regarding non-disclosure agreements and related matters

No recipient or subrecipient ("subgrantee") under this award, or entity that receives a
procurement contract or subcontract with any funds under this award, may réquire any employee
or contractor to sign an internal confidentiality agreement or statement that prohibits or
otherwise restricts, or purports to prohibit or restrict, the reporting (in accordance with law) of
waste, fraud, or abuse to an investigative or law enforcement representative of a federal
department or agency authorized to receive such information.
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The foregoing is not intended, and shall not be understood by the agency making this award, to
contravene requirements applicable to Standard Form 312 (which relates to classified
information), Form 4414 (which relates to sensitive compartmented information), or any other
form issued by a federal department or agency. governing the nondisclosure of classified
information. -

1. In accepting this award, the recipient--

a. represents that it neither requires nor has required internal confidentiality agreements or
statements from employees or contractors that currently prohibit or otherwise currently restrict.
{or purport to prohibit or restnct) employees or contractors from reporting waste, fraud, or abuse
as described above; and

b. certifies that, if it learns or is notified that it is or has been requiring its employees or
contractors to execute agreements or statements that prohibit or otherwise restrict (or purport to
prohibit or restrict), reporting of waste, fraud, or abuse as described above, it will immediately
stop any further obligations of award funds, will provide prompt written notification to the
federal agency making this award, and will resume (or permit resumption of) such
obligations only if expressly authorized to do so by that agency.

......

procu_remerit contracts, or both-- .
a. it represents that--

(1) it has determined that no other entity that the recipient's application proposes may or will
receive award funds (whether through a subaward ("subgrant"), procurement contract, or
subcontract under a procurement contract) either requires or has required internal confidentiality
agreements or statements from employees or contractors that currently pl‘Ohlblt or otherwise
currently restrict {(or purport to prohibit.or restrict) employees or contractors from reporting
waste, fraud, or abuse as described above; and

(2) it has made appropriate inquiry, or otherwise has an adequate factual basis, to support this
representation; and

b. it certifies that, if it learns or is notified that any subrecipient, contractor, or subcontractor
entity that receives funds under this award is or has been requiring its employees or contractors
to execute agreements or statements that prohibit or otherwise restrict (or purport to prohibit or
restrict), reporting of waste, fraud, or abuse as described above, it will immediately stop any
further obligations of award funds to or by that entity, will provide prompt written notification to
the federal agency making this award, and will resume (or permit resumption of) such
obligations only if expressly authorized to do so by that agency.

Subrecipient Initials %
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25. Compliance with 41 U.S.C. 4712 (including prohibitions on reprisal; notice to employees)

The recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must comply with, and is subject to, all
applicable provisions of 41 U.S .C. 4712, including all applicable provisions that prohibit, under
specified circumstances, discrimination against an employee as reprisal for the employee's
disclosure of information related to gross mismanagement of a federal grant, a gross waste of
federal funds, an abuse of authority relating to a federal grant, a substantial and specific danger
to public health or safety, or a violation of law, rule, or regulation related to a federal grant.

The recipient also must inform its employees, in writing (and in the predominant native language
of the workforce), 6f employee rights and remedies under 41 U.S.C.4712.

Should a question arise as to the applicability of the provisions of41 U.S.C.4712 to this award,
the recipient is to contact the DOJ awarding agency (OJP or OYW, as appropriate) for guidance.

26. Encouragement of policies to ban text messaging while driving

Pursuant to Executive Order 13513, "Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging While
Driving," 74 Fed. Reg. 51225 (October 1, 2009), DOJ encourages recipients and subrecipients
("subgrantees") to adopt and enforce policies banning employees from text messaging while
driving any vehicle during the course of performing work funded by this award, and to establish
workplace safety policies and conduct education, awareness, and other outreach to decrease
crashes caused by distracted drivers.

27. Requirement to disclose whether recipient is designated "high risk" by a federal grant-
making agency outs ide of DOJ ’

If the recipient is designated "high risk" by a federal grant-making agency outs ide of DOJ,
currently or at any time during the course of the period of performance under this award, the
recipient must disclose that fact and certain related information to OJP by eail at
OJP.ComplianceReporting@ojp.usdoj.gov. For purposes of this disclosure, high risk includes
any status under which a federal awarding agency provides additional oversight due to the
recipient's past performance, or other programmatic or financial concerns with the recipient. The
recipient's disclosure must include the following: I. The federal awarding agency that currently
designates the recipient high risk, 2. The date the recipient was designated high risk, 3. The high-
risk point of-contact at that federal awarding agency (name, phone numbér, and email address),
and 4. The reasons for the high-risk statis, as set out by the federal awarding agency.

28. The recipient agrees that it will submit quarterly financial status reports to OJP on-line (at
https://grants.ojp.usdoj.gov) using the SF 425 Federal Financial Report form (available for
viewing at https: //www.gsa.gov/forms- library/federal financial-report), not later than 30 days
after the end of each calendar quarter. The final report shall be submitted not later than 90 days

following the end of the award period.
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29. The recipient shall submit-semiannual progress reports. Progress reports shall be submitted
within 30 days after the end of the reporting periads, which are June 30 and December 31, for the
life of the award. These reports will be submitted to the Office of Justice Programs, on-line
through the Internet at https://grants.ojp.usdoj.gov/.

30. The recipient égrecs to submit a final report at the end of this award documenting all relevant
project activities during the entire period of support under this award. This report will include
detailed information about the project(s) funded, including, but not limited to, in formation about
how the funds were actually used for each purpose area, data to support statements of progress,
and data concerning individual results and outcomes of funded projects reflecting project
successes and impacts. The final report;is due no later than 90:days following the close of this
award period or the expiration of any extension periods. This report will be submitted to the
Office of Justice Programs, on-line through the Internet at https://grants.oj p,usdoj.gov/.

31. Recipient integrity and performance matters: Requirement to report information on certain
civil, criminal, and administrative proceedings to SAM and FAPIIS

The recipient must comply with any and all applicable requirements regardmg reporting of
information on civil, cnmmal and administrative proceedings connected with (or connected to
the performance of) either this OJP award or any other grant, cooperative agreement, or
procurement contract from the federal government. Under certain circumstances, recipients of
OJP awards are required to report information about such proceedmgs through the federal
System for Awa_rd Management (known as "SAM"), to the designated federal. integrity and
performance system (currently, "FAPIIS").

The details of recipient obligations regarding the required reporting (and updating) of
information on certain civil, criminal, and administrative proceedings to the federal designated
integrity and performance system (currently, "FAP1IS") within SAM are posted on the OJP web
site at https://ojp.gov/funding/FAPIIS.htm (Award condition: Recipient Integrity and
Performance Matters, including Recipient Reporting to FAPIIS), and are incorporated by
reference here. '

32. With respect to this award, federal funds may not be used to pay cash compensation (salary
plus bonuses) to any employee of the award recipient at a rate that exceeds 110% of the
maximum annual salary payable to a member of the federal government's Senior Executive
Service (SES) at an agency with a Certlfied SES Performance Appraisal System for that year.
(An award recipient may compensate an employee at a higher rate, provided the amount in
excess of this compensation limitation is paid with non-federal funds.)

This limitation on compensation rates allowable under this award may be waived on an

individual basis at the discretion of the OJP official indicated in the program announcement
under which this award is made.
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33. Grant funds may be used only for the purposes in the recipient's approved application. The
recipient shall not undertake any work or activities that are not described in the grant application,
and that use staff, equipment, or other goods or services paid for with' QOJP grant funds, without
prior written approval from QJP.

34. The recipient authorizes the Office for Victims of Crime (OVC) and/or the Office of the
Chief Financial Officer (OCFO), and its representatives, access to and the right to examine all
records, books, papérs, or documents related to this grant.

35. OVC reserves the right to take appropriate action in instances when the grantee fails to
initiate activity on the grant or misses multiple time task lines. OVC action may include, but is
not limited to, termination or suspension of the grant.

36. The Project Director and key program personnel designated in the application shall be
replaced only for compelling réasons. Successors to key personnel must be approved, arid such
approval is contingent upon submission of appropriate information, including, but not limited to,
a resume. OJP will not unreasonably withhold approval. Changes in other program personnel
require only notification to OJP and submission of resunies, unless otherwise designated in the
award documerit. '

37. Justification of consultant rate

Approval of this award does not indicate approval of any consultant rate in excess of $650 per
day. A detailed justification must be submitted to and approved by the OJP program office prior
to obligation or expenditure of such funds.

38. The grantee agrees to submit to OVC, within 30 days of award, a revised time-task plan. This
revised time-task plan should be developed in consultation with the OVC program specialist
assigned 1o the project, and should clearly indicate the following: (I) each of the stated project
objectives and the tasks to be performed to achieve those objectives; (2) the completion dates for
tasks and delivery dates for products; (3) the project staff responsible for accomplishing each
task; 4) submission dates for financial and programmatic progress réports, consistent with the
requirements of the OJP Financial Guide; and 5) incorporation of devclopment’ scheduie for
print, vidéo, and multimedia products to assure perlodlc OVC reviews of products (see Product
Submission Requirements).
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39. Copyrlght Data rights

The recnplent acknowledges that OJP reserves a royalty free, non-exclusive, and irrevocable
license to reproduce, publish, or otherwise use, and authorize others to use {in whole or in part,
including in connection with derivative works), for Fecleral purposes: ( I) any work subjcct to
copyright developed under an award or subaward (at any tier); and (2) any rights of copyright to
which a recipient or subrecipient (at any tier) purchases ownership with Federal support.

The recipient acknowledges that OJP has the right to (I} obtain, reproduce, publish, or otherwise
use the data first produced under any such award or subaward; and (2) authorize others to
receive, reproduce, publish, or otherwise use such data for Federal purposes. "Data” includes
data as defined in Federal Acquisition Regulation (FAR) provision 52.227- 14 (Rights in Data -
General).

It is the respon51b1hty of the recipient (and of each subrecipient (at any tier), if applicable) to
ensure that the provisions of this condition are included in any subaward (at any tier) under this |
award. :

The recipient has the responsibility to obtain from subrecipients, contractors and subcontractors
(if any) all rights and data necessary to fulfill the recipient's obligations to the Govemment under
this award. If a proposed subrecipient, contractor, or subcontractor refuses to accept terms
affording the Government such rights, the recipient shall promptly bring such refusal to the
attention of the OJP program manager for the award and not proceed with the agreement in
question without further authorization from the OJP program office.

40. The grantee agrees to submit any print or electronic promotional materials concerning any
OVC-funded project that are int_e‘l__ld%;d for public dissemination to OVC for review seven (7)
working days in advance of release. This includes, but is not limited to: fact sheets, newsletters,
press releases, Web-based materials, and listserv announcements.

41. The grantee agrees to use grant funds to make any substantive corrections, if appropriate, to a
publication or product in'response to comments generated through either the OVC peer review
process or the internal Department of Justice review process. Any grant-funded products
(written, Web-based, audio-visual, or any other media format), whether produced at the grantee's
or government's expense, shall contain the following statement: This was produced
by under [2018-V3-GX-0038], awarded by the Office for Victims of Crime,
Office of Justice Programs, U.S. Department of Justice. The opinions, findings, and conclusions
or recommendations expressed in this are those of the contributors and do not
necessarily represent the official position or policies of the U.S. Department of Justice.
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42. Within 90 days of the date of award, the grantee will submit to the Office for Victims of
Crime for review and approval its policies and procedures that it has established to maintain the
confidentiality of victims$' names, addresses, telephone numbers, or any other identifying
information, and its policies and procedures relating to information sharing between partners. In
addition, the grantee must submit a signed, written certification that data privacy and sharing
protocols comport with the confidentiality and privacy rights and obligations of federal law or
the grantee jurisdiction's laws, court rules, or rules of professional conduct applicable to the work
performed by the grantee.

43. The recipient agrees that federal funds under this award will be used to supplement but not
supplant state or local

government funds .

44. The Victims of Crime Act (VOCA) of 1984 states that VOCA funds are available during the
federal fiscal year in which the award was actually made, plus the following three fiscal years. At
~ the end of this period, VOCA funds will be deobligated. OJP has no discretion to permit
extensions beyond the statutory period. (E.g., VOCA funds awarded in FY 2018, are available
until the end of FY 202 1).

45. Discrimination Findings

The recipient assures that in the event that a Federal or State court or Federal or State
administrative agency makes a finding of discrimination after a due process hearing on the
ground of race, téligion, national crigin, sex, or disability agaifist a recipient of victim assistance
formula funds under this award, the recipiént will forward a copy of the findings to the Office for
Civil Rights of OJP.

46. The recipient understands that all QJP awards are subject to the National Environmental
Policy Act (NEPA, 42 U.S.C. section 4321 et seq.) and other related Federal laws (including the
National Historic Preservation Act), if applicable. The récipient agrees to assist OJP in carrying
out it§ responsibilities under NEPA and related laws, if the recipient plans to use VOCA funds
(directly or through subaward ot contract) to undertake any activity that triggers these
requirements, such as reriovation or construction. (See 28 C.F.R. Part 61, App. D.) The recipient
also agrées to comply with all Federal, State, and local environmental laws and regulations
applicable to the development and implementation of the activities to be funded undér this
award. :
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

CERTIFICATIONS REGARDING LOBBYING; DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS; AND DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

Applicants should refer to the regulations cited below to determine the certification to which they
are required to attest. Applicants should also review the instructions for certification included in
the regulatlons before completing this form. The certifications shall be treated as a material
representation of fact upon which reliance will be placed when the U. S. Department of Justice
(“Department”) determines to award the covered transaction, grant, or cooperative agreement.

1. LOBBYING

As required by 31 U.S.C. § 1352, as implemented by 28 C.F.R. Part 69, the Applicant certifies
and assures (to the extent applicable) the following:

(a) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the
Applicant, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any
agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a
Member of Congress in connection with the making of any Federal grant, the entering into of
any cooperative agreement, or the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification
of any Federal grant or cooperative agreement;

(b) If the Applicant’s request for Federal funds is in excess of $100,000, and any funds other
than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, an officer
or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with this
Federal grant or cooperative agreement, the Applicant shall complete and submit Standard Form
- LLL, “Disclosure of Lobbying Activities” in accordance with its (and any DOJ awarding
agency’s) instructions; and

(c) The Applicant shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
documents for all subgrants and procurement contracts (and their subcontracts) funded with

"Federal award funds and shall ensure that any certifications or lobbying disclosures required of
recipients of such subgrants and procurement contracts (or their subcontractors) are made and
filed in accordance with 31 U.S.C. § 1352.

2. DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MAT’fERS
: 1

A. Pursuant to Department regulations on nonprocurement debarment and suspension
implemented at 2 C.F:R. Part 2867, and to other related requirements, the Applicant certifies,



with respect to prospective participants in a primary tier “covered transaction,” as defined at 2
C.F.R. § 2867.20(a), that neither it nor any of its principals—

(a) is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, sentenced to a
denial of Federal benefits by a State or Federal court, or voluntarily excluded from covered
transactions by any Federal department or agency;

(b) has within a three-year period preceding this application been convicted of a felony criminal
violation under any Federal law, or been convicted or had a civil judgment rendered against it for
commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or
performing a public (Federal, State, tribal, or local) transaction or private agreement or
transaction;

violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery,
bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, tax evasion or receiving
stolen property, making false claims, or obstruction of justice, or commission of any offense
indicating a lack of business integrity or business honesty that seriously and directly affects its
(or its principals’) present responsibility;

(c) is presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State, tribal, or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph
(b) of this certification; and/or

(d) has within a three-year period preceding this application had one or more public transactions
(Federal, State, tribal, or local) terminated for cause or default.

B. Where the Applicant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, it shall -
attach an explanation to this application. Where the Applicant or'any of its principals was
convicted, within a three-year period preceding this application, of a felony criminal violation
under any Federal law, the Applicant also must disclose such felony criminal conviction in
writing to the Department (for OJP Applicants, to OJP at Ojpcompliancereporting@usdoj.gov;
for OVW Applicants, to OVW at OVW.GFMD(@usdoj.gov; or for COPS Applicants, to COPS
at AskCOPSRC(@usdoj.gov), unless such disclosure has already been made.

3. FEDERAL TAXES

A. If the Applicant is a corporation, it certifies either that (1) the corporation has no unpaid
Federal tax liability that has been assessed, for which all judicial and administrative remedies
have been exhausted or have lapsed, that is not being paid in a timely manner pursuant to an
agreement with the authority responsible for collecting the tax liability, or (2) the corporation has
provided written notice of such an unpaid tax liability (or liabilities) to the Department (for OJP
Applicants, to OJP at Ojpcompliancereporting@usdoj.gov; for OVW Applicants, to OVW at
OVW.GFMD@usdoj.gov; or for COPS Applicants, to COPS at AskCOPSRC@usdoj.gov).

B. Where the Applicant is unable to certify to any of the statements in thls certification, it shall
attach an explanation to this application.



4. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE (GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS)

As required by the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, as implemented at 28 C.F.R. Part 83,
Subpart F, for grantees, as defined at 28 C.F.R. §§ 83.620 and 83.650:

A. The Applicant certifies and assures that it will, or will continue to, provide a drug-free
workplace by—

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in its workplace and
specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such-prohibition;

{b) Establishing an on-going drug-free awareness program to inform employees about—
(1) The dangers o%drug abuse in the workplace;

(2) The Applicant’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring in the
workplace;

(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the award
be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the award, the employee will—

(1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and

(2) Notify the employer in writing of the employee’s conviction for a violation of a criminal drug
statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction;

(e) Notifying the Department, in writing, within 10 calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title of any such
convicted employee to the Department, as follows:

For-COPS award recipients - COPS Office, 145 N Street, NE, Washington, DC, 20530;

For OJP and OVW award recipients - U.S. Department of Justice, Office of Justice Programs,
ATTN: Control Desk, 810 7th Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20531.

Notice shall include the identification number(s) of each affected award,;

(f) Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted:



(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended; or

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health, law
enforcement, or other appropriate agency; and

(g)Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace througt;
implementation of paragraphs (a), (b}, (c), (d), (¢), and .

If you are unable to sign this certification, you must attach an explanation to this
certification.

essica omanut . CED

Name and Title of Head ofAgency -

_ 1o /202018

Signgture () Date
Ywep it 72 Congod Dt Maunchosier O G310\

Name and Address of Agency



EEQP Reporting

I, : [responsibie official], certify that
\‘IM ,{4—/ M [recipient] has completed the EEO reporting tool certification
form at: https:lloiE.‘govlabqqthgr/fag_ eegp.htm on l( \QLQOl 8 [Date]

And that &5‘3\ ca 6MNL [responsible official] has completed th?EOP
iilgb& N

training at http_s:lloip.gov/about/ocﬂjr—traini_ng-videos/vide&ocr-training.htm on: [date]

| further certify that; YIA) Cﬁ‘ g—\"" [recipient]

will comply with applicable federal civil rights laws that prohibit discrimination in employment and in the
delivery of services.

Signatuxe‘(%\/% Date: 1&]@'130 g




Non-supplanting Certification

Supplanting defined
Federal funds must be used to supplement existing funds for program activities and must not

replace those funds that have been appropriated for the same purpose. Supplanting shall be the
subject of application review, as well as pre-award review, post-award monitoring, and audit. If
there is a potential presence of supplanting, the applicant or grantee will be required to supply
documentation demonstrating that the reduction in non-Federal resources occurred for reasons
other than the receipt or expected receipt of Federal funds. For certain programs, a written
certification may be requested by the awarding agency or recipient agency stating that Federal
funds will not be used to supplant State or local funds. See the OJP Financial Guide (Part II,

Chapter 3). http://www.ojp.usdoj.gov/financialguide/part?/partZchap3.htm.

Supplanting and job retention
A grantee may use federal funds to retain jobs that, without the use of the federal money, would

be lost. If the grantee is planning on using federal funds to retain jobs, it must be able to
substantiate that, without the funds, the jobs would be lost. Substantiation can be, but is not
limited to, one of the following forms: an official memorandum, official minutes of a county or
municipal board meeting or any documentation, that is usual and customarily produced when
making determinations about employment. The documentation must describe the terminated
positions and that the termination is because of lack of the availability of State or local funds.

The \!V() m' M (Applicant) certifies that any funds awarded

through grant number : shall be used to supplement existing funds

for program activities and will not replace (supplant) nonfederal funds that have been

appropriated for the purposes and goals of the grant.

The \! wrm" D)r\— (Applicant) understands that supplanting

violations may result in a range of penalties, including but not limited to suspension of future
funds under this program, suspension or debarment from federal grants, recoupment of monies

provided under this grant, and civil and/or criminal penalties.

Printed Name and Title: A%A_CC‘%M C/ED

Signature: Date: \3’]9—0 1310 (&

"é‘*




If a minor or a person with a legally appointed guardian is permitted by law to receive services
without the parent’s or guardian’s consent, the minor or person with a guardian may release
information without additional consent.

(C) Release

If release of information described in subparagraph (B} is compelled by statutory or court

mandate—*

(i) grantees and subgrantees shall make reasonable attempts to provnde notice to victims affected

by the disclosure of information; and :

(1) grantees and subgrantees shall take steps necessary to protect the privacy a.nd safety of the

persons affected by the release of the information.

* -4 = b F

(D) Information sharing : ' I

(i) Grantees and subgrantees may share—

(I) nonpersonally identifying data in the aggrcgate regarding services to their clients and

nonpersonally identifying demographic informatién ini order to comply with Federal Statc —

tribal, or territorial reporting, evaluation, or data'collection requirements; ;

(IT) court-generated information and law enforcement-generated information contained in secure,

governmental registries for protection order enforcement purposes; and :

(I11) law enforcement-generated and prosecution-generated information ftecessary for law

enforcement and prosecution purposes.

(i1) In no circumstances may— ' P

(1) an adult, youth, or child victim of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault or

stalking be required to provide a consent to release his or her personally 1dent1fy1ng information

as a condition of eligibility for the services provided by the grantee or subgrantee; ™

(1) any personally identifying information be shared in order to comply with Federal, tnbar or
State reporting, evaluation, or data collection requirements, whether for this program or any

other Federal, tribal, or State grant program.

(E) Statutorily mandated reports of abuse or neglect
Nothing in this section prohibits a grantee or subgrantee from reporting suspected abuse or
neglect, as those terms are defined and specifically mandated by the State or tribe involved.

(F) Oversnght

Nothing in this paragraph shall prevent the Attorney General from disclosing grant activities
authorized in this Act to the chairman and ranking members of the Committee on the Judiciary of
the House of Representatives and the Committee on the Judiciary of the Senate exercising
Congressional oversight authority. All disclosures shall protect confidentiality and omit
personally identifying information, including location information about individuals.

(G) Confidentiality assessment and assurances
Grantees and subgrantees must document their compliance with the confidentiality and privacy
provisions required under this section.



U.S. Department of Justice
Office on Violence Against Women
3

Aéknowlédgemenf of Né)tice of Statutdry Requirement to Comply \.vitl-fthe '
Confidentiality and Privacy Provisions of the Violence Against Women Act, as
Amended

Under section 40002(b)(2) of the Violence Against Women Act, as amended (42 U.S.C.
13925(b)(2)), grantees and subgrantees with funding from the Office on Violence Against
Women (OVW) are required to meet the following terms with regard to nondisclosure of
confidential or private information and to document their compliance. By signature on this form,
applicants for grants from OVW are acknowledging that that they have notice that, if awarded
funds, they will be required to comply with this provision, and will mandate that subgrantees, if
any, comply with this provision, and will create and maintain documentation of compliance, such
as policies and procedures for release of victim information, and will mandate that subgrantees,

if any, will do so as well.

(A) In general

In order to ensure the safety of adult, youth, and child victims of domestic violence, dating
violence, sexual assault, or stalking, and their families, grantees and subgrantees under this
subchapter shall protect the confidentiality and privacy of persons receiving services.

(B) Nondisclosure

Subject to subparagraphs (C) and (D), grantees and subgrantees shall not—

(i) disclose, reveal, or release any personally identifying information or individual information
collected in connection with services requested, utilized, or denied through grantees’ and
subgrantees’ programs, regardless of whether the information has been encoded, éncrypted,
hashed, or otherwise protected; or

(ii) disclose, reveal, or release individual client information without the informed, written,
rcasonably time-limited consent of the person (or in the case of an unemancipated minor, the
minor and the parent or guardian or in the case of legal incapacity, a court-appointed guardian)
about whom information is sought, whether for this program or any other Federal, State, tribal,
or territorial grant program, except that consent for release may not be given by the abuser of the
minor, incapacitated person, or the abuser of the other parent of the minor.



As the duly authorized representative of the applicant, | hereby acknowledge that the applicant has received notice
of that if awarded funding they.will comply with the above statutory requirements. This acknowledgement shall be
treated as a material representation of fact upon which the Department of Justice will rely if it determines to award
the covered transaction, grant, or cooperative agreement.

Sess\ca Suc AL CeED

Typed Name of Authorized Repre@ative © Title

| '.l"'clcphone Number ®0?> ’69'5 - 5) %‘

(2f21[1§
/
S@\at/ur} of Authorized P@tﬂtive Date Signed

N A OR—

Agency Name

Public Reporting Burden Paperwork Reduction Act Notice. Under the Paperwork Reduction
Act, a person is not required to respond to a collection of information unless it displays a
currently valid OMB control number. We try to create forms that are accurate, can be easily
understood, and which impose the least possible burden on you to provide us with information.
The estimated average time to complete and file this form is 60 minutes per form. If you have
comments regarding the accuracy of this estimate, or suggestions for making this form simpler,
you can write to the Office on Violence Against Women, U.S. Department of Justice, 145 N
Street, NE, 10" Floor, Washington, DC 20530,



State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I. William M. Gardner, Secrctary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do bereby centify that YWCA NEW HAMPSHIRE is
a New Hampshire Noaprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on September 25, 1920. 1 further
cenify that all fees and Jocuments required by the Secrtary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as
this office is concerved, .

Business ID: 66716
Certiltcate Number ; 6004209771

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto sei my hand and cause ta be affixed
.lh!: Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
. this 8th day of November A.D. 2018,

For ok

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State




gliminating racism
empowering women

YWCA New Hampshire

72 Concord Street
Manchester, NH, 03101
P603.625.5785

F 603.627.8900

CERTIFICATE OFAUTHORITY

'I, Patricia Findlen, Chair, YWCA Board of Directors, do hereby certify that:

1. The YWCA NH Board of Directors has agreed to “accept funds and
enter into a grant agreement with the NH Department of Justice;

2. The YWCA NH Board of'Director_S' atfthorizes the CEO to execute
any documents which may be necessary for this contract;

3. This authorization has not been revoked, annulled or amended in
any manner whatsoever, and remains in full force and effect as of the date
hereof, and

4. The following now occupies the office indicated above:

Jessica Sugrue, CEO

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, | have hereunto set my hand as the Board Chair
on this 20th day of December 2018.

-,

7
{ 'Patricia Findlen, Chair
YWOCA NH Board ofDirectors

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
COUNTY OFHILLSBOROUGH

On this 20th day -of December 2018, before me, Catherine Gagne, the
undersigned-officer, personally appeared Patricia Findlen, who
acknowledged their self to be the Board Chair for YWCA New Hampshire,
being authorized to do so, executed the foregoing instrument for the
purpose herein contained. :

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | hereunto set my and official seal. __:

fon 1

«r 'a.‘-




m IR Department of the Treasury
Internal Hevenue Service

P.0. Box 2508, Room 4010 ‘ In reply refer to: 64077552844
‘Cincinnati OH 45201 July 21, 2010 LTR 4168C O

* - bR 02-0222254- 000000 00

| ) . [T y I} ) 00037153

o ~ BODC: TE
YWCA NEW HAMPSHIRE ' et TR o e

72 CONCORD ST
MANCHESTER NH 03101-1806

5470

B I PURCEEE B N,
Emplover Identification Number: 02-0222254
e - Person. to. Contact: - MS _FOX- -~ « -t o e LT

T011 Free ‘Telephone Number' 1-877-829-5500

Dear Taxpayer: i -

o2 b
Th1s is in response to- your Apr .S 05, 2010, request for information
regarding vour tax-exempt status.
Our records indicate that your organization was recognized as exempt
under section 501(c){(03) of the Internal Revenue Code in a
determination letter issued in November 1929.
Our records also indicate that you are not-a private foundation within
the meaning of section 509%(a) of the Code because you are described in
section(s) 509(a)(1l) and 170(b)(1)CA)(vi).

Donors may deduct contributions to you as provided in section 170 of
the Code. Bequests, legacies, devises, transfers, or gifts to you or
for vour use are deductible for Federal estate and gift tax purposes
if they meet the applicable provisions of sections 2055, 2106, and

2522 of the Code.. T ‘

Beginning with the organization's sixth. taxable vear and all
succeeding years, it must wmeet one of the public support tests under
section 170(b) (1) (A)(vi) or section 509(a)(2) as reported on Schedule

-—~A-o0f the Form 990.-If-your—organization does-not-meet the-public - —
support test for two consecutive years, it is required to file Formo
990-PF, Return of Private Foundation, for the second tax year that the
organization failed:to meet the support test and will be reclassified
as a private foundation.

If you have any questions, please call us at the telephone number
shown in the heading of this,K letter.
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ACORD
u

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MWDOYYYYY)
1BS2018

[ THIS CERTIFICATE 13 ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMAT!ON ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFCATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED 8Y THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING lNSURER(S}. AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRCDUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is-an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the poticy(los) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be ondorsed.
#f SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject ta tho terms and conditions of the poiicy, certain policies may requiro an endorsement. A statoment on
mmmmmmwmmmmhudmmn«n

PRODUCER TeuET Judith George CIC.CPIW.CRIS
FLAI/Cross insurance PHONE . {803) 669-2218 —Im Nop (503) 6454331
1100 Eim Street | ADORESS: morne@ormm com
i INSURER(S) AFFORDING DOVERAGE HAKC @
Marichaster NH 03101 msurera: |linois Natonal Ins. Co.
INSURED msurerp: |linois National Ins. Co.
YWCA New Hampshire insuner ¢ ; National Union Fire Insurance Company of Pittsburgh PA 19445
DBA: 72 Concord Street Condaminium msurcr o LM Insurance Cop 33600
72 Concord Street INSURER E : '
Manchastar . NM 03101 | nsunerE:
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 18-10 All Lines REVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABCOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN 15 SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.
EUOR TV
D] COMMERCIAL GEMERAL LIABILITY : ' EACH OCCURRENCE g 1,000,000
X cLamsuane [:] OCCUR | PREMISES Eaocrumencyy | 3 100-000
] MED EXP {Acy one persony | 3 5.000
Al 06-LX-027571357-0 08/01/2018 | OAN1/2019 | perooma a apviuiey | s 1.000.000
GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE s 2.000,000
POLCY yrie (oc PRODUCTS - COMPIOPAGG | 3 2:000.000
OTHER: Each Occurrences retro $
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
ﬁmm LIAgLTY {Ea sccident) b
ANY AUTO BOOILY INJURY (Perperson) |3 1,000,000
[~ | ownED SCHEDULED
B #ge%sm' AUTES 0B-CA-023317817-0 080172018 | 0801/2018 | BODILY IRKJRY (Per sccicent) | §
E AUTOS OHLY ALITOS ONLY | (Per ocident) 3
s
LD ,000,000
[ <} umBRELLA § <} ocour EACH OCCURRENCE s 3.000
c EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE 29-UD-025009097-0 DED1/2018 | OBO2019 | socrecate s 3.000,000
oep | <) reTenmon s 10.000 g $
WORNKERS COMPENSATION o) om
AND EMPLOTERS® LIABILITY YIN )a—gmn‘& E Py
D [ o Y e NIA WC5315808405 08/01/2018 | 080172019 (L EACHACCIDENT M
{Mandstory In NH) E.L. DNSEASE - EA EMPLOVEE | 3 500,000
i yos, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS wlow E.L DISEASE - POuCY uwrr_| 5 500,000
Workers Compensation
) pe 3(a) State: NH All Officers Included
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEMIGLES (AGORD 101, Additiona! s may be sttached f more spece bs required)
%
CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State of New Hampshire Department of Justics
33 Capital Street

Concord NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOQF, NOTICE WILL 8E DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

(M¥ .,{Ir.a-n.s&‘ Cit eRTs P

ACORD 25 {2016/03)

© 4838-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reservod.

The ACORD name and logo are registorod marks of ACORD



YWCA JOB DESCRIPTION
TITLE CLASSIFICATION DATE OF REVISION
Director of Crisis Services Program Full-Time December 2015
Exempt
BRANCH/DEPARTMENT TITLE OF SUPERVISOR
Crisis Services ' CEO

MAJOR PURPOSE:

Design, develop and provide supervision for YWCA Crisis Services based on program standards and best
practices; established service delivery, safety and confidentiality policies and protocols; and established
program outcomes and participation goals.

PRIMARY FUNCTION:

Program Administration

¢ Submit an annual work plan to the CEQ to meet the goals of YWCA Crisis Services.

o  Work with the CEO to prepare and implement the annual budget for YWCA Crisis Services.
¢ Submit all proposals for funding from grant programs offered through the NHCADSV.

¢ Ensure that reports and data are submitted to funders on a timely basis.

e Document and implement program policies, ensuring compliance with NHCADSYV program standards as
well as YWCA New Hampshire agency policies.and the mission of YWCA New Hampshire.

¢ Ensure that YWCA Crisis Services Volunteer Training is in compliance with the law and meets the goals of
the program and the agency.

» Ensure that adequate program records and statistics are kept within the program to meet all requirements.
Program Coordination

¢ Direct program planning, implementation and evaluation for YWCA Crisis Services. ’

¢ Recruit, schedule and supervise all staff in YWCA Crisis Se_rvices.

e Oversee program implementation to ensure that consistent and high quality services are being offered at all
locations. )

e Ensure that program planning and implementation at Emily’s Place meets the requirements of the YWCA
Crisis Service.

¢ Provide staff orientation and professional development opportunities to attract and retain qualified staff.
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Community Relations

e Ensure effective communication with all systems working with YWCA Crisis Services, including law
enforcement, the courts, State of NH departments, and other community agencies, including other YWCA
New Hampshire programs and departments.

¢ Facilitate collaborative program initiatives and development of joint programs with other social service
agencies in order to enhance the community response to victims of domestic and sexual violence.

e In conjunction with the CEO, network with local and statewide groups and organizations to ensure visibility
for YWCA Crisis Services program and services and to ensure that YWCA Crisis Services is aware of
initiatives that impact victim services.

» Attend, whenever possible, all events at YWCA New Hampshire.

General

¢ Provide backup to direct service staff (direct services to clients), as needed.
e Promote YWCA mission, and work to eradicate violence against women.

¢ Foster teamwork within the program and the agency.

e Perform other tasks as assigned.

REQUIREMENTS:

» M.S. W. Preferred or Bachelor’s degree and three years experience in domestic and sexual violence issues
on management level. Equivalent of degree and experience may be considered. Successful completion.of
mandatory thirty-hour training required.

» Understanding of domestic and sexual violence issues and a victim services model that focuses on victim
safety and perpetrator accountability.

* Commitment to the mission of YWCA and to the empowerment model of service delivery used at YWCA
Crisis Services.

= 3.5 years of progressively responsible supervisory, project management and administrative experience.
* Prior experience in budgeting and grants management.

» Must have valid driver’s license, reliable transportation and proof of automobile insurance.

r

Employee Signature Date



Amy M. Pettengill, M.S.W LADC

Education:

Licensed Drug Alcohol Counselor (LADC)
New Hampshire License # 0957 — Expiration: 6/30/19

- University of New Hampshzre
Durbam, NH
-Master of Social Work

College of New Rochelle
New Rochelle, NY

- Bachelor of Social Work
- Minor in Sociology

Work Experience:

k'

Director of Crisis Services

YWCA NH, Manchester, NH (July 2015- Present)

- Supervise all Staff, Interns, Volunteers, and Americorp members

- Ensure that effective services are being provided to over 5,000 clients annually

- Manage the Emergency Domestic Violence Shelter

- Participate in regularly scheduled community meetings such as the Domestic Violence Council
and the Sexual Assault Response Team

- Provide Case Management and Drug and Alcohol Counseling

- Facilitate regular staff meetings and trainings

Program Coordinator of the Supervised Visitation and Child Exchange Center
YWCA NH, Manchester, NH (November 2013- July 2015)

- Conducted intake assessments to determine program eligibility

- Provided program staff supervision

- Monitored supervised visits and exchanges

- Maintained family files

- Provided monthly and annual, statistics of families using the center

Supervisor

TCA Crossroads, Haverhlll MA (January 2012 - March 2013)
- Provided weekly staff supervision

- Ensured the safety and well-being of 9 teenaged boys



r

- Conducted weekly primary sessions with residents
- Facilitated a variety of therapeutic groups

Case Worker . ,

Child and Family Services, Concord, NH (June 2011 - December 2012)
- Coordinated therapeutic treatment for youth on probation

- Facilitated weekly independent living groups "

- Provided weekly 1:1 counseling to youth

- Wrote treatment plans and monthly reports

Substance Abuse Counselor

Farnum Center, Manchester, NH (January 2009 - June 2011)
- Provided regular counseling to substance abusing adults :
- Facilitated weekly family education groups

- Completed multiple assessments on clients

- Made community referrals with discharge planning

1:1 Counselor

Dare Family Services, Newburyport, MA (May 2008 - June 2010)

- Taught and monitored parenting skills to pregnant and parenting teens

- Provided weekly individual counseling

- Communicated and collaborated with all treatment professionals involved with the client
- Transported and attended medical appointments with residents

MSW Intern

NH State Prison for Women, Goffstown, NH (May 2007 - May 2008)
- Facilitated weekly substance abuse, victim impact, and eating disorder groups
- Assisted inmates with after care planning

- Attended regular court and parolejhearings

- Participated in weekly LICSW and LADC supervision

Case Manager :

Community Partners, Rochester, NH (May 2006 - May 2008)

- Provided in home mental iliness management to children aged 4-18

- Assisted families with developing goals and a treatment plan

- Facilitated State of NH Child Impact Seminar \

Case Manager

Our House for Girls, Dover, NH (May 2004 - May 2006)
- Assisted with the creation of resident treatment plans

- Facilitated quarterly case planning meetings

- Met weekly with individual clients to discuss progress and goals
- Monitored residents during daily activities



2018/2019 YWCA New Hampshire Board of Directors

(Revised 8/30/2018)
Name and Address Work Work Fax
Adumene, Kile
Term 1: March 2020
[ Agbenowossi, Yawa La:ltjata Assistant 8366675
. . 500 North River Road
Term 1: August 2021 anchester. NH 03106
Ahyi-Amendah, PhD, Nathalie ontractor Scientist
Pfizer .
dover MA
Term 1: January 2020 .
ennequaurie , St Anselm College L_B_gﬂ'ﬂ@ﬂ-—i
400°St Anselm Drive ) ; anselm.ed
Manchester NH 03102 '
Term 1: Janaury 2021
Bird, Megan
Temn 1: August 2021
Day, Julie Strengthening Families Director 224-1279 Jday@nhchildrenstrust.org
NH Children's Trust nhchildrenstrust.or
10 Ferry Street Suite 315
Term 1: June 2021 Concord NH 03301
Senior Vice President 716-2402 dehrer@C i
Camden National Bank amdenNational.com
600 Etm Street Suite 802
Term 1: November Manchester NH 03101
Findlen, Patricia {Chair) gggioh:mn?:}:zxnivsrsitg 23245648
o er Roa .
Manchester NH 03106 P Findlen@snhu gdu
Term 2. Janua :
eorqe, Jud ice Chair Account Executive 206-0904 | 6454331 jgeorge@crossagency.com
Cross Insurance
1100 Elm Street
Term 2 October‘zuzo Manchester NH 03101
j rooke Director, Deborah L. Coffin Women's 644-3190 b.gimore@snhu.edu
Center/Asst Professor at Southem New
Hampshire University
2500 N. River Road
Term 1: August 2020 Manchester, NH 03106
: ia Compliance Manager 2231127 ssarabia@nedelta.com
Northeast Delta Dental ssarabia@nedelta.com
One Delta Drive
Tern 1: August 2020 Concord NH 03302-2002
Seaton, Jennifer
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.. | HESSION & PARE, «

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

64 Srark Sueer, Manchester, New Hampshire 04101

GFL 6005477 FAX HOT-660.0197

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
YWCA New Hampshire . | . ‘
Manchester, New Hampshire ' . ’

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of YWCA New Hampshire (the
“Association”) (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statements of financial
position as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, and the related statements of activities, functional
expenses and cash flows for-Jthe years then ended, and the related notes to the financial

statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. '

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from

material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Association’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
inciudes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.



To the Board of Directors
YWCA New Hampshire

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Association as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, and the
changes in its pet assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,

September 18, 2018

Manchester, New Hampshire /\M } / JM-L f (/
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YWCA NEW HAMPSHIRE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

See notes to financial statements.

As of June 30, 2018
(with comparative totals for 2017)
ASSETS
. 2018 2017
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents § 15915 $ 15624
Grants receivable 91,178 269,186+
- Prepaid expenses 2,048 4,449
Total current assets 109,141 289,259
" Security deposit 2,470 2,470
Investments 182,856 226,045
Beneficial interest in trust 1,692,087 1,642,127
Property and equipment, net 1,057,695 944,678
Total assets $ 3,044,249 $ 3,104,579
\
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 47245 $ 26,000
Deferred revenue 30,686 26,273
Line of credit . 153,528 175,116
Current portion of long-term debt 22,968 21,498
Total current liabilities 254,427 248,887
Non-current liabilities
Long-term debt, less current portion 113,749 97,970
Other liability (Note 10) 34,866 34,866
Total non-current liabilities 148,615 132,836
Total liabilities 403,042 381,723
Net assets
" Unrestricted 732,339 729,136
Temporarily restricted 1,779,778 1,864,630
Permanently restricted 129,090 129,090
Total net assets 2,641,207 2,722,856
Total liabilities and net assets 3 3;044,249 $ 3,104,579




Public support
Foundations and grants
United Way
Contributions
Memberships
In-kind donations
Special events (net of direct costs of
$22,281 in 2018)

Total public support
Revenue
Program fees
Facilities rental
Investment income, net of fees
Other revenue
Net assets released from restrictions
Total revenue
Total public support and revenue
Expenses
Program services
Management and general

Total expenses

Increase (decrease) in net assets
from operations

Non-operating income
Unrealized losses on investments
Realized gains on investments
Change in beneficial interest in trust

Total non-operating income

Increase {decrease} in net assels

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of vear

See notes to financial statements.
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YWCA NEW HAMPSHIRE

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Temporarily = Permanently

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted . 2018
§ 555,494 3 47,000 $ - $ 602494
5137 - - 5,137
35,907 3,004 - 38,911
210 - - 210
25,300 - . 25,300
31,437 - - 31,437
653,485 50,004 - 703,489
88,779 - - 88,779
29,047 . . 29,047
781 2,629 - 3,410
19,204 - - 19,204
190,009 (190,009) - :
327,820 (187,380) - 140,440
981,305 (137,376) - 843,929.
797,635 - - 797,635
181,304 - - 181,304
978,939 - - 978,939
2,366 (137,376) - (135,010)
(1,497) (6,632) . (8,129)
2,334 9,196 - 11,530
] 49,960 - 49,960
837 52,524 - 53,361
3,203 (84,852) . (81,649)
729,136 1,864,630 129,090 2,722,856
$ 732339 § 1779778 § 129,090 $ 2,641,207
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YWCA NEW HAMPSHIRE

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017
Tcmporz;rily Permanently

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted 2017
Public support

Foundations and grants § 456,923 § 135000 § - $ 591,923

United Way 44,070 - - 44,070

Contributions. 29,352 42,399 - 71,751

In-kind donations 18,286 - - 18,286

Speciel events (net of direct costs of

$13,277in 2017) 38,840 - - 38,840

Total public support 587,471 177,399 - 764,870
Revenue:

Program fees 36,964 - - 36,964

Facilities rental 19,369 - - 19,369

[nvestment income, net of fees 523 5,203 - 5,726

Other revenue 37,224 R - 37,224

Net assets released from restrictions 28,607 (28,607) - - v -
Total revenue 122,687 (23,404) - 99,283
Total public support and revenue 710,158 153,995 - 864,153
Expenses .

Program services 645,379 - - 645,379

Manegement and general - 126,254 - - 126,254
Total expenses 771,633 - - ~ 771,633
(Decrease) increase i net assets

from operetions (61,475) 153,995 - 92,520
Non-cperating income )

Unrealized gains on investments _ 2,024 16,666 - 18,650

Realized losses on investments (1,029) (8,500) - {9,529)

Change in beneficial interest in trust - 43,676 - 43,676
Total non-operating income 995 51,842 - 52,837
(Decrease) increase in net assets (60,480) 205,837 - 145,357
Net assets, beginning of year ' 789,616 1,658,793 129,090 2,577,499
Net assets, end of year ! $ 729,136 $ 1,864,630 $ 129,090 $ 2,722.856

See notes to financial statements.



Wages
Payroll taxes
Health and retirement benefits

Total wages, benefits and payroll taxes

Maintenance and repairs
Insurance

Program expense

Heat and unlities

Office expense

Telephone

Interest

Professional fees

Travel and transportation
Training, meetings and conferences
Dues and subscriptions
Miscellaneous

Postage

Dues to national organization
Advertising

Total expenses before depreciation
Depreciation

Total expenses

See notes to financial statements.

a
YWCA NEW HAMPSHIRE

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018
(with comparative totals for 2017)

Program Services
) Youth and Total
Crisis Commumity Program Management
Services Service Services and General 2018 2017

$ 435,107 $ 42255 $ 477,362 $ 27164 S 504,526 $ 404,932
39,087 4,201 43,288 2,641 45,929 37,781
18,179 1,105 19,284 616 19,900 17,112
492,373 47,561 539,934 30,421 570,355 459,825
10,207 2,927 43,134 52,111 95,245 26,212
66,916 8,785 75,701 7,354 83,055 83,084
37.567 2,827 40,394 16,011 56,405 39,972
2% 951 2,073 31,024 4,754 35,778 29,713
10,625 1,809 12,434 5,267 17,701 18,866
11,722 1,157 12,879 2,198 15,077 14,323
655 - 655 11,222 11,877 11,113
9,595 914 10,509 1,111 11,620 17,186
7,933 46 . 7.979 1,217 9,196 4,490
5,147 ' - 5,147 2,458 7,605 3,475
2,313 - . 2,313 3,981 6,294 2,314
1,323 . 31t 1,634 4,524 6,158 4,495
498 65 563 922 1,485 725
- 501 501 159 660 4,578
100 - 100 - 100 2,207
715,925 68,976 784,901 143,710 928,611 722,578
12,734 - 12,734 37,594 50,328 49.055
$ 728,659 $ 68976 $ 797,635 $ 181,304 $ 978,939 $ 771,633
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YWCA NEW HAMPSHIRE

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018
(with comparative totals for:2017)

: 20]8 2017
Cash flows from operating activities .
Change in net assets $ (81,649) $ 145357
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to cash
provided by (used in) operating activities

Depreciation . 50,328 49,055
Unrealized losses (geins) on investments . 8,129 (18,690)
Realized (gains) losses on investments (11,530) 9,529
Decrease (increase) in grants receivable 178,008 (166,999)
Decrease in interest receivable o - 1,667
Decrease (increase) in deposits and prepaid expenses 2,401 {1,603)
(Increase) in security deposit . - (2,470
(Increase) in beneficial interest in trust (49,960) (43,676)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued expenses 21,245 - (807
Increase in deferred revenue 4,413 26,273
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 121,385 (2,364)
Cash flows from investing activities ) B
Purchases of capital assets ’ (163,345) (1,540)
Proceeds from sale of investments ) ‘ 67,800 95,051
Purchase of investments - ' (21,210) (43,779)
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities {116,755) 49,732
Cash flows from financing activities . .

. Cash proceeds from line-of-credit : 370,100 345,788
Cash payments on line-of-credit : (391,688) (373,634)
Proceeds from loans 37,500 -
Debt principal payments (20,251) (20,858)

. — . .
Net cash (used in) financing activities (4,339) (48,704)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents - 291 (1,336)
. Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year ' 15624 16,960
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year s 15915 $ 15624

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information

Cash paid for interest ’ S 11,577 $ 1,113

See notes to financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. NATURE OF ACTIVITIES

YWCA New Hampshire (the “Association”), is a state-wide New Hampshire non-
profit organization. It is a member of YWCA USA, with whom it shares the
mission of eliminating racism, empowering women and promoting peace, justice,
freedom and dignity for all. This mission is met locally through the delivery of
social service programs, as well as programs that enrich the general community.
The Association’s current services include: youth and community services and
programming, and victim services which include 24-hour crisis services, an
emergency shelter, support groups and criminal and civil court advocacy.

Note 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Significant accounting policies

The Association prepares its financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles promulgated in the United States of America (U.S.
GAAP) for not-for-profit entities. The significant accounting and reporting
policies used by the Association are described subsequently to enhance the
usefulness and understandability of the financial statements.

Net assets

The categories, unrestricted, temporarily restricted and permanently restricted net
assets are defined as follows:

Unrestricted — Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
stipulations. Unrestricted net assets may be designated for specific
purposes by action of the Board of Directors.

Temporarily Restricted — Net assets whose use is limited by law or
donor-imposed stipulations that will either expire with the passage
of time or be fulfilled or removed by actions of the Association.

Permanently Restricted - Reflects the historical cost of gifts (and
in certain circumstances, the earnings from those gifts), subject to
donor-imposed stipulations, which require the corpus to be
invested in perpetuity to produce income for general or specific

purposes.
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. NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents

The Association considers all highly liquid investments with an initial maturity of
three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Grants receivable and revenue

Grants receivable are recognized when the qualifying costs are incurred for cost-
reimbursement grants or contracts, or when a unit of service is provided for
performance grants. Grant revenue from federal agencies is subject to review by
grantor agencies. The review could result in the disallowance of expenditures
under the terms of the grants, or reductions of future grant awards: Based on prior
experience, the Association’s management believes that costs ultimately
disallowed, .if any, would not materially affect the financial position of the
Association.

T

Inves_tments

The Association accounts for investments in accordance with U.S. GAAP. US.
GAAP requires that investments with readily 'determinable values and all
investments in debt securities are’ stated at their fair value in the statement of
financial position. Investments, which consist of marketable equity, mutual funds
and money market accounts, are carried at market value and are classified as long-
term assets since it is the Association’s intent to hold these securities for more
than one year. All realized and unrealized gains ‘and losses are included in the
changes in net assets in the accompanying statement of activities. Investrient
income is recorded on the accrual basis. '
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Endowment investments

Endowment investments consist of investments purchased with the following
resources:

e Donor-restricted permanent endowments, which are contributions
restricted by donors to investment in perpetuity with only investment
income and appreciation being used to support the Association’s
activities. ‘

e Board-designated endowments, which are resources set aside by the
Board of Directors for an indeterminate period to operate in a manner
similar to a donor-restricted permanent endowment. Because a Board-
designated-endowment results from an internal designation, it can be
spent upon action of the Board of Directors.

Endowment investments also include investments purchased with unspent
investment income and net gains on these resources.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost, or in the case of donated assets, at
fair market value. Items with an individual or aggregate cost of less than $1,000
are expensed in the year of purchase. Repairs and maintenance are expensed as
incurred.

"Deprcciation is provided on the straight-line method by charges to expense in
amounts estimated to recover the cost of these assets over their estimated useful
lives as follows:

Buildings and improvements 10 - 39 years
Equipment 5 -7 years
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Contributions and grants

In accordance with U.S. GAAP, contributions and grants received are recorded as

unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently restricted, dependmg on the
existence and/or nature of any donor/grantor restrictions. Contributions and grants
restricted for a specific purpose are reported as temporarily restricted support and
are then reclassified to unrestricted net assets upon satisfaction of those restrictions.

'

Donated material and services

Donated services are recognized as contributions'in accordance with U.S. GAAP if
the services (a) create or enhance nonfinancial assets or (b) require specialized
skills that are provided by people with those skills and would otherwise be
purchased by the.Association. ) .

A substantial number of volunteers have donated significant amounts of their time
to the Association's program services; however, the value of this contributed time
is not reflected in the accompanying financial statements since the volunteers' time
does not meet the criteria for recognition.

Donations of materials and equipment are recorded as support at fair market vatue
on the date of receipt. At June 30, 2018 and 2017, there were donated materials of

$25, 300 and $18,286, respectively.

Functional allocation of expenses

The costs of providing various programs and other activities have been summarized
on a functional basis in the statement of functional €xpenses. Accordipgl_y, certain
costs have been allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited.

Compensated absences

It is thé Association's policy that accrued vacation benefits must be used by the end
of the second quarter of the next calendar year or be lost. Sick leave benefits up to
60 days accrue, but are not payable upon severance. Therefore, no provision has

" been made for such absences.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (concluded)
Fair value of financial instruments

Cash, trade and other accounts receivable, accounts payable, accrued expenses
and other lisbilities are carried in the financial statements as amounts which
approximate fair value due to the inherently short-term nature of the transactions.
The fair values determined for financial instruments are estimates, which for
certain accounts may differ sxgmﬁcant]y from the amounts that could be realized
upon immediate liquidation.

Income taxes

! The Association is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of
the Internal Revenue Code as a charitable organization, whereby only unrelated
business income as defined by Section 509(a)(1) of the Code is subject to federal
income tax. At June 30, 2018 and 2017, the Association had no unrelated business
income. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes has been recorded. The
income tax filings for the tax years before 2014 are no Ionger subject to
examination by federal and state taxing authorities.

Note 3. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The FASB defines fair value as the price that would be received for an asset or
paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the Association’s principal or most
advantageous market in an orderly transaction between market participants on the
measurement date.

The standard establishes a fair value hierarchy which requires the Association to
maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable
inputs when measuring fair value. The standard describes three levels of inputs
that may be used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs consist of unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets and have the highest priority.

Level 2 inputs consist of quoted prices for similar assets in active
markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets in inactive
markets, or observable inputs other than quoted market prices.

Level 3 inputs consist of inputs that are unobservable and significant
to the fair value measurement and have the lowest priority.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 3. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (concluded)

The Association uses appropriate valuation techniques based on available inputs to
measure the fair value of its investments and beneficial interest in trust. An asset’s
fair value mcasurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest
level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation
techniques must maximize the use of observable inputs. and minimize the use of
unobservable i inputs.

Note 4. INVESTMENTS

Investments consisted of the following at June 30:

2018 . 201

Market. Market

Cost Value . Cost Value

Money market funds $ 6884 S 6884 $ 7813 § 7813

. Mutual funds- domestic 137,540 138,050 132,824 135,956

Mutual funds- international 18,816 17,898 19,932 . 21,862

- Common stock- domestic 15,345 20,024 47,099 55,095
Common stock- international - - 5,978 5319

Total $178585 S182.856 $213646 $226.045

For the ye;irs ended Jm;e'BO, 2018 and 2017, investment fees were $2,264 and
$2,770, respectively.

Investment return at June 30 is summarized as follows:

B

2018 2017
Net interest and dividend income $ 3,410 $ 5,726
- Realized gain (loss) on investments 11,530 - (9,527)
Unrealized (loss) gain on investments (8,129) 18,690

Total $ 6811 $ 14,889




-14-
YWCA NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 4. INVESTMENTS (concluded)

As discussed in Note 3 to these financial statements, the Association is required to
report its fair value measurements in one of three levels, which are based on the
ability to observe in the marketplace the inputs to the Association’s valuation
techniques. The valuation technique used to measure investments is Level 1.
Level 1, the most observable level of inputs, is for investments measured at
quoted prices in active markets for identical investments as of June 30, 2018.

Note 5. ENDOWMENT FUND ASSETS

The Association’s endowment consists of funds established either by donors
(referred to as donor designated endowment funds) and/or by resources set aside
by the Board of Directors to function as endowments (referred to as board
designated endowment funds).” As required by GAAP, net assets associated with
endowment funds are classified and reported based on the existence or absence of
donor imposed restrictions.

The State of New Hampshire enacted the Uniform Prudent Management of
Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA). UPMIFA establishes law for the management
and investment of donor-restricted endowment funds. Thé Board of Directors of
the Association has interpreted UPMIFA as requiring the preservation of the fair
value of the original g1ft as of the gift date of the donor-restricted permanent
endowment funds-uriless there are explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. As a
result of this interpretation, the Association classifies as permanently restricted
net assets (a) the original value of gifts donated to all donor-restricted
endowments, (b) the original value of any subsequent gifts to donor-restricted
permanent endowments, and (c) the ongmal value of accumulations to donor-
restricted permanent endowments made in accordance with the direction of the
applicable donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation is added to the fund.
The remaining portion of a donor-restricted permanent endowment fund is -
classified as temporarily restricted net assets until those amounts are appropriated
for expenditure by the Association. All donor-restricted term endowments are
classified as temporarily restricted net assets until ‘the term expires and they are
used in accordance with the donor’s restriction on use.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 5. ENDOWMENT FUND ASSETS (continued)
The following schedule includes activity for all investments held by the Association:

Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted  Restricted Restricted Total

June 30, 2018
Investments, beginning of
year $ 49,574 $ 47,381 $ 129,090 $ 226,045
Investment return
Net investment income 781 2,629 - 3,410
Realized gain 2,334 9,196 - 11,530
Unrealized loss __(1.497) (6.632) - (8.129)
Total investment return 1618 - 5,193 - 6811
Appropriation of
endowment assets:
Board designated 7
~ withdrawal (50,000) - - (50,000)
Spending rate 12,962 (12,962) - -

Investments, end of year ~ §_14,134 2 39612  $129.000  §182.856

Investment Net Asset Composition by Fund Type

Temporarily Permanently

Unrestricted  Restricted Restricted Total
June 30, 2018
Board designated $ 14,154 $ - $ - § 14,154
Donor designated . - 39.612 129,090 168.702

Total $ 14154  $ 39612 £129090  §182.856
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 5. ENDOWMENT FUND ASSETS (continued)

Temporarily Permanently

Unrestricted  Restricted Restricted Total
June 30, 2017
Investments, beginning of
year $ 91,631 $ 47,435 $ 129,090 $ 268,156
Investment return
Net investment income 523 5,203 - 5,726
Realized (loss) (1,027) (8,500) - (9,527)
Unrealized gain 2,024 16,666 - 18.690
Total investment return © 1,520 13,369 - 14,889
Appropriation of
-endowment assets:
Board designated
withdrawal (57,000) - - (57,000)
Spending rate 13,423 (13,423) - -

Investments, end of year ~ § 49,574 § 47381 §129000  §$226045

Investment Net Asset Composition by Fund Type

Temporarily Permanently

Unrestricted ~ Restricted Restricted Total
June 30, 2017
Board designated $ 49,574 $ - 8 - $ 49,574
Donor designated - 47381 129.090 176,471
Total $ 49574  § 47381 $129000  $226045

The Association has adopted an investment policy to provide a total return
sufficient to support annual funding needs while preserving the assets against
inflation. Total return is defined as dividend or interest income, plus realized and
unrealized capital appreciation or depreciation at fair market value, net of fees.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 5. ENDOWMENT FUND ASSETS (concluded)

‘The Association has a Board approved spending policy of up to 6% of the total
value of the portfolio, which includes interest and dividends, as annual cash
requirements. :

In recognition of the prudence required of fiduciaries, reasonable diversification is
sought where possible. Asset allocation parameters have been developed based on
investment objectives, liquidity needs, and time horizon for mtended use.

" Note 6. BENEFICIAL INTEREST IN TRUST

The Association is an irrevocable beneficiary of a charitable remainder trust held
by a bank as trustee. These resources are neither in the possessnon of, nor under
the control of the Association. The terms of the trust provide for income of the
trust to be distributed to the current beneficiary, and upon the beneficiary’s death,
the principal is to be distributed to charitable beneficiaries. The fair value of the
beneficial interest was determined by applying the Association’s percentage
interest (14%) to the fair value of the trust assets as reported by the Trustee.

Thé fair market value of the beneficial interest in a ) trust is based upon the present
value of the estimated future cash receipts from the trust’s assets, considering a
rate of ‘return on the assets in the trust: As discussed in Note 3, the valuation
technique used by the Association is a Level 3 measure because there are no
observable market transactions.

Changes in fair value of the beneficial interest in trust are comprised of the

following:
Balance at June 30, 2016 $ 1,598,451
Change in value of beneﬂcial interest in
trust ' 43,676
Balance at June 30, 2017 O $1,642)127

Change in value of beneficial interest in
trust B . 49,960

Balance at June 30, 2018 $1,692,087
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 7. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consisted of the following at June 30:

2018 2017
" Land ' $ 63325 $ 63,325
Buildings and improvements 2,719,034 2,555,689
Equipment 93,348 93,348
Total 2,875,707 2,712,362
Less accumulated depreciation 1,818,012 1,767,684
Net property and equipment | $ 1,057,695 $ 944,678

Note 8. LINE OF CREDIT

In fiscal year 2005, the Association entered into a revolving line of credit agreement
with a bank for $150,000. During fiscal year 2014, the Association increased the
line of credit for maximum borrowings of $225,000. The terms of the agreement
are due on demand, at a rate of interest equal to 1.5% above the Wall Street Journal
prime rate (6.5% at June 30, 2018). The line of credit is secured by general business
assets of the Association, As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, $153,528 and $175,116

was advanced on the line of credit, respectively.
Note 9. LONG-TERM DEBT
Long-term debt consisted of the following at June 30:

Note payable to NH Housing Finance Authority, in
monthly installments of $1,448 including interest at
4%, due December 1, 2018, secured by real property
located in Manchestetr, New Hampshire. $

Note payable to City of Manchester in annual
installments of $3,750, interest at 0%, due July i,
2028, secured by real property located in
Manchester, New Hampshire.

2018 2017

14,217 § 29,468

37,500 -



-19-
YWCA NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

" Note 9. LONG-TERM DEBT (concluded)

Note payable to City of Manchester in annual
installments of $5,000, interest at O%, due’
October 1, 2034, secured by real property located in

Manchester, New Hampshire. ‘ 85,000 90,000
Total debt 136,717 119,468
Less current maturities 22.968 21,498
Long-term debt . L113749 § 97970
The following is a summary of maturities due on long-term debt as of June 30,
2018:;
Year ending ‘ .
June 30 Amount
2019 ) $ 22,968
2020 8,750
2021 8,750
2022 8,750,
2023 , 8,750
Thereafter 78,749
Total $136.717

Note 10. OTHER LIABILITY

The Association owed $34,866 in 2018 and 2017 to Antoinette Hill apartments for
building improvements paid on thexr behalf during fiscal year 2010. In return, the
Association has agreed to lease four parking spaces at a current value of $2 880
per year until the ll&blllty is paid in full.
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Note 11. TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Temporarily restricted net assets were available for the following purposes as of

June 30:
2018 2017
Beneficial interest in trust $ 1,692,087 $ 1,642,127
Endowment earnings 39,612 47,381
Shelter replacement reserve 12,022 9,918
Crisis services 32,254 27,704
Missy’s closet - 2,500
Building improvements . 3,803 135,000

$1,779,778  $ 1,864,630

The shelter replacement reserve is an escrow account required as part of the New
Hampshire Housing Finance Authority mortgage (Note 9). The Association is
required to deposit $167 each month into the account, and disbursements are
restricted to repair and replacement expenses for the mortgaged property. The
Authority controls the account and must give prior approval for all disbursements.

Note 12. PERMANENTLY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

A

At June 30, 2018 and 2017, permanently restricted net assets of $129,090 consisted
of investment principal maintained in perpetuity. The income earned may be used
to support operations.

Note 13. PENSION PLAN

The Association participates in a defined benefit retirement plan with the YWCA
Retirement Fund, Inc. There are no prior service costs and it is the policy of the
Association to tlmely fund pension costs. For the years ended June 30, 2018 and
2017, total pension expense associated with -this plan was $8,597 and $7,939,

respectively.
Note 14. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Association is affiliated with the National Office of the YWCA. The
Association is required to pay dues to the National Office, calculated as a

percentage of certain expenses.
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LEASE OF FACILITIES

The Association entered into a three-year lease agreement to lease office space to
other nonprofit organizations, with total monthly lease payments of $2,500 expiring
between September 2019 and December 2020. The minimum rental income under
this operating lease agreement is as follows:

Year ending
June 30, Amount
2019 $ 30,000
2020 12,000
Total $ 42,000

During June 30, 2018 and 2017, total rental income was $29,047 and $19,369,
respectively.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Association invests in various investment securities. Investment securities are
exposed to various risks such as interest rate, market and credit risks. Due to the
level of risk associated with certain investment securities, it is at least reasonably
possible that changes in the values of investment securities will occur in the near
term and such changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the
statements of financial position.

The majority of the Association’s grants are received from foundations and from
agencies of the State of New Hampshire. As such, the Association’s ability to
generate resources via grants is dependent upon the economic health of that area
and of the State of New Hampshlrc An economic downturn could cause a decrease
in grants that coincides with an increase in demand for the Association’s services.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Association bas evaluated subsequent events through September 18, 2018, the
date which the financial statements were available to be issued, and has not

“ evaluated subsequent events after that date. No subsequent events were identified

that would require disclosure in the financial statements for the year ended

~June 30, 2018.



